
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 27 

2:00pm 
2:00pm - 3:00pm 

3:00pm - 4:30pm 

5:30pm - 8:00pm 

THURSDAY,OCTOBER28 

8:30am - 9:30am 
9:30am 

PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

NCPA Commission Meeting 
October 27-28, 2021 
Redding, California 

Meet at Redding Electric, 3611 Avtech Parkway, Redding (530) 339-7351 
Presentation and Tour of Redding Electric1s new Emergency Operations 
Center at Electric1s Headquarters. 
Presentation and Tour of the City of Redding's revitalized Downtown 
area. 
Reception and Dinner at the Mosaic Restaurant (next to the Sheraton) 
826 Sundial Bridge Drive, Redding 

Breakfast at Redding Electric, 3611 Avtech Parkway 
Commission Meeting 

****************************************************************************** 
LODGING INFORMATION: 
Sheraton Redding Hotel at the Sundial Bridge 
820 Sundial Bridge Drive, Redding 
(530) 634-2800 

****************************************************************************** 
I plan to attend: (please specify how many attending) 

_ Redding Tour of Facilities 
_ # Dinner (Member no charge / Guest = $40 - make check payable to NCPA) 

_ Commission Meeting 

Dietary Restrictions or Vegetarian _______________ _ 

NAME: ______________ _ MEMBER: _______ _ 

GUEST NAME: ___________ _ 

PLEASE RSVP to Cary Padgett by cary.padgett@ncpa.com or phone (916) 781-4202 



651 Commerce Drive 

PUBLI C AG£ HCY 
Roseville, CA 95678 

CPA phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 

web www.ncpa.com 

Minutes 

Date: October 1, 2021 

To: NCPA Commission 

From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commissi,on 

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions 

Chair David Hagele called the meeting to order at 10:28 am at Sltvetado Resort, 1600 Atlas Peak 
Road, Napa, California. Introductions were ·made. Those in attendance are shown on the attached 
attendance list. 

2. Approve Minutes of the August 26, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting 

MOTION: A motion was made by Pauline Roccuccl and seconded by Jerry Serventi to approve the 
Minutes of the August 26, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a majority on a 
voice vote of those members present. San Francisco BART, Shasta Lake and Truckee Donner were 
absent. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

No comments from the public addres.sed the Commission. 

REPORTSAND COMMITTEE UPDATES 

3. General Manager's Business Progress Report and Update 

General Manager Randy Howard reported: 

• COVID-19 update: Due to the increase in hospitalization and the Delta Variant, NCPA extended 
the optional, part-time telecommuting program for HQ employees through the October 29, 
pending approval from the employee's manager and Assistant General Manager. 

• Provided an update on NCPA's progress on working with Plumas-Sierra to assist in getting their 
system back online due to outage caused by the Dixie Fire. 

• Provided a brief overview of the Annual Conference Program and thanked NCPA staff for a job 
well done. Next year's Annual Conference is scheduled at the Resort at Squaw Creek in Olympic 
Valley. 

• Noted the NCPA / NWPPA Federal Policy Conference scheduled for the week of October 15th 

has been cancelled due to several congressional offices only holding meetings virtually, rather 



than in person. However, there will be a small delegation of Members and staff traveling to 
Washington, DC to do some advocacy work with federal and as·sociation staff. 

4. Executive Committee 

Committee Chair Hagele reported the Executive Committee met once since the last Commission 
meeting. The Committee discussed the General Manager and General Counsel Performance review 
schedule and met in closed session. No reportable action was taken in closed session. The next 
Committee meeting is scheduled on October 28 in Redding. 

5. Facilities Committee 

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met:: once sin'$e the last 
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed Items 12-18 QA today's agent'Ja. A quorum of the 
Committee was established, and recommended Commission apJroval of all items, The next 
Committee meeting is scheduled on October 6. 

6. Finance Committee 

Chair Greg Scharff reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission meeting. The next 
Committee meeting is scheduled on October 12. 

7. Legal Committee 

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported the Committee met once since the last Commission 
meeting. The Committee heard a panel discussion on publicly owned utilities' experiences with 
electric vehicle charges, business models, rates, and the customer experience. The next Committee 
meeting is scheduled on November 4. 

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee 

Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee met once since the last Commission meeting. 
The Committee heard from Kip Lipper, Chief Policy Advisor to California Senate President pro Tempore 
Toni Atkins; Nidia Bautista, Chief Consultant for the Senate Energy, Utilities and Communications 
Committee, and; Laura Shybut, Chief Consultant for the Assembly Utilities and Energy Committee, who 
discussed the 2021 legislative yeij'r and the policy outlook for the upcoming 2022 session. The 
Committee also h~ard remarks from newly appointed Administrator of the Western Area Power 
Administration, Traeey LeBeau, on current federal policy issues. 

Chair Chandler announced the upcoming NCPA / NWPPA Federal Policy Conference scheduled in 
mid-October was cancelled. The 2022 NCPA / NWPPA Federal Policy Conference is scheduled for 
April 3-7, 2022 in Washington, DC. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on December 1. 

9. Members' Announcements & Meeting Reporting 

Bob Marshall, Plumas-Sierra, thanked NCPA and the Generation Services team for their assistance in 
working to get their system back online due to PG&E's line being out of service because of the impacts 
from the Dixie Fire. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

October 1, 2021 

2 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine 
if any Member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. 

No items were pulled from Consent. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Suds Jain, and seconded by Greg Scharff to approve the Consent 
Calendar consisting of Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, and 18. The motion carried by a majority of 
those members present on a roll call vote with abstentions noted below for each item. 
San Francisco BART, Shasta Lake and Truckee Donner were absent. 

10. NCPA 's Financials for the Month Ended August 31, 2021 - approve by all Members 

11. Treasurer's Report for the Month Ended August 31, 2021- accept by ait Members. 

12. Resolution 21-87, McHale & Associates, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task Consutting Services 
Agreement for Plant Performance Improvement Consulting Services; Applicable to the 
following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Membets, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Meml:,ers - approve resolution by all 
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting 
Services Agreement with McHale & Associates, Inc. for plant performance improvement consulting 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five 
years. 

13. Resolution 21-88, Famand, Inc. dba Indoor Environmental Services - Five Year Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement for Heating, Ventilation and Air-conditioning ( 11HVAC 11

) 

Maintenance Services; Applicable to the followiTl{lt All Northern California Power Agency 
(NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, So,utbern Califernia Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and 
SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his 
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Famand, Inc. dba Indoor 
Environmental Services for heating, ventilation and air-conditioning ("HVAC") maintenance services, 
with ahy non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which 
shall not exceed $1,000,0QQ>over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five 
years. 

14. Resolution 21-89, Famand, Inc., dba SiteloglQ - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement for Energy, Solar, Lighting Technology and Advanced Controls 
Services; Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, 
NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members -
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Famand, Inc., dba SiteloglQ for 
energy, solar, lighting technology and advanced controls services, updating the Scope of Work with 
no changes to the contract term or not to exceed amount, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, for continued use at any facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will remain the 
unchanged at not to exceed $1,000,000. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

October 1, 2021 

3 



15. Resolution 21-90, Rescue Solutions, LLC - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement 
for Emergency Rescue Response and Training Services; Applicable to the following: All 
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities - adopt resolution by all members 
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Rescue Solutions, LLC for emergency rescue response and training services, with 
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which 
shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five 
years. 
Redding abstained. 

16. Resolution 21-91, AECOM Technical Services, Inc. - Five Year Matti-Task Consulting Services 
Agreement for Consulting Services and Project Support Related le Injection Wells and Plant 
Operations; Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) 
Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA 
Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager o,' his designee to 
enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for 
consulting services and project support related to injection wells and plant operations, with any non
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not 
exceed $2,500,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement i$ not to exceed $2,500,000 over five 
years. 

17. Resolution 21-92, Utility Services Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task Professional 
Services Agreement for NERC related regulatory compliance services, changing the vendor 
name to Utility Services of V.rmont, LLC; Allplicab~ to No,t#Jern California Power Agency 
(NCPA), NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA 
Members - adopt resofuticm by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to 
enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Utility Services, 
Inc., for NERC related regulatory compliance services, changing the vendor name to Utility Services 
of Vermont, LLC, with no change to the not to exceed amount or contract term, with any non
substantial changes recomme,nded and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, for continued use 
at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution~ the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will remain the 
unchanged at not to exceed $1,000,000. 

18. Resolution 21-93, Approval of CY 2022 Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Capacity 
Pool Rates - adopt resolution by all members approving the Local Area, System, and Flexible 
Resource Adequacy capacity rates proposed herein for use in the NCPA Capacity Pool, as further 
described in Pooling Schedule 4, during the 2022 Resource Adequacy compliance year. 
Fiscal Impact: Work associated with developing the NCPA Capacity Pool Local Area, System, and 
Flexible Resource Adequacy capacity rates was undertaken pursuant to approved Power 
Management budget categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in accordance 
with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget. 
Redding and Roseville abstained. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

No discussion items were discussed. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

October 1, 2021 

4 



NEW BUSINESS 

No new items were discussed. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The October 1, 2021, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:45 am by Chair Hagele. 

Respectfully submitted, 

II 
DAVID HAGELE 
Commission Chair 

Attachments 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

October 1, 2021 

Prepared by, 

II 
CARY A. PAD~ETT 
Assistant Secrem, to the Commission 

5 



Northern California Power Agency 
Commission Meeting/ Teleconference 

October 1, 2021 

COMMISSIONERS 
Attendance List 

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER 

1-ALAMEDA 

2 - BIGGS 

3 - GRIDLEY 

4 - HEALDSBURG 

5 - LODI 

6-LOMPOC 

7- PALO ALTO 

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND 

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC 

10- REDDING 

11 - ROSEVILLE 

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID 

TRANSIT DISTRICT 

13 - SANTA CLARA 

14 - SHASTA LAKE 

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER 

16- UKIAH 

NAME 

73D 



Northern California Power Agency 
Commission Meeting/ Teleconference 

October 1, 2021 

Attendance List 

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the 
public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 



Northern California Power Agency 
Commission Meeting/ Teleconference 

October 1, 2021 

Attendance List 

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the 
public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without discussion by a 
single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove any item from the Consent 
Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately following approval of the remainder of 
the Consent Calendar. 

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to 
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-C~LL APPROWAL 

Commission Meeting Da~ 

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: #__ to# 
Consent Items Removed from the Agenda Approved Separately: 

# ______________ _,____,_+--_______ ........., ___ ~ ----I 

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: 

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent 
Alameda 

Biggs 

Gridley 

Healdsburg 

Lodi 

Lompoc 

Palo Alto 

Port of Oakland 

Redding 

Roseville 

San Francisco BART 

Santa Clara 

Shasta Lake 

Truckee Donner 

Ukiah 

Plumas-Sierra 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 

web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5 

Date: October 28, 2021 

To: NCPA Commission 

Subject: October, 6 2021 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes, and the October 14, 
2021 Special Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral 
Committee report. 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 

fax (916) 783-7693 

web www.ncpa.com 

Minutes - Draft 
Date: October 7, 2021 

To: NCPA Facilities Committee 

From: Carrie Pollo 

Subject: October 6, 2021 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Basil 
Wong (Santa Clara) at 9:04 am. Attending via teleconference and/or on-line presentation were Alan 
Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Catalina Sanchez (Gridley), Jiayo Chiang and 
Melissa Price (Lodi), CJ Berry and Matthew MacDonald (Lompoc), Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), 
Mike Brozo (Plumas-Sierra), Khaly Nguyen (Port of Oakland), Nick Rossow (Redding), Brian 
Schinstock (Roseville), Monica Nguyen, Bill Her and Suds Jain (Santa Clara). Those attending in 
person are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, 
Healdsburg, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established. 

PUBLIC FORUM 
No public comment. 

2. Approval of Minutes from the September 1, 2021 Facilities Committee Meeting. 

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
approval of the minutes from the September 1, 2021, Facilities Committee meeting. A vote was 
taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, 
Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

**Prior to this item at 9:10 am, Jane Luckhardt, NCPA General Counsel, stepped out of the 
conference room due to a conflict of interest.* 

3. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- Black &Veatch Corporation Second Amendment to 
MTPSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval of the Second Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task Professional Services 
Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation for consulting services related project support and 
plant operations, extending the contract expiration date to January 31, 2022, with no other changes 
to the contract terms, for continued-use-at all-facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NC-f2-A- -
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. 



NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 
Corporation effective May 26, 2016. NCPA has been working on a renewal agreement with Black & 
Veatch, however this process is taking longer than anticipated. A First Amendment was executed 
on May 10, 2021 extending the agreement expiration date from May 26, 2021 to November 26, 
2021. NCPA is currently utilizing Black & Veatch for hydrogen expertise support and consulting 
regarding Lodi's Lakehouse Development Project, neither of which is completed. This Second 
Amendment will extend the agreement expiration date from November 26, 2021 to January 31, 
2022, to avoid any lapse in coverage while NCPA continues to work on the new agreement with 
Black & Veatch. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with HDR Engineering, Inc., 
and Worley Group, Inc. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of 
funds. A draft Commission Staff Report, draft Second Amendment, the original MTPSA, and First 
Amendment were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission 
Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Shiva Swaminathan 
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter 
into a Second Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 
Corporation for consulting services related to project support and plant operations, with any non
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel or her designee, 
extending the agreement expiration date from November 26, 2021 to January 31, 2022, for 
continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, 
Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

-lrltAfter this item was completed, at 9:16 am, Jane Luckhardt, NCPA General Counsel, 
stepped back into the conference room. 'lrlt 

4. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. First Amendment 
to MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval of the First Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. for HVAC maintenance services, extending the 
contract expiration date to January 31, 2022, with no other changes to the contract terms, for 
continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Merpbers. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered 
Systems, Inc. effective November 17, 2016, for an amount not to exceed $750,000, for use at all 
NCPA, NCPA Member, SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities. NCPA has utilized this vendor for 
the past five years for HVAC maintenance services at its CT plants, and this vendor has shown 
themselves to be competent and responsible. 

The current agreement is set to expire on November 17, 2021. NCPA is currently in the process of 
obtaining bids for maintenance services for the CT facilities for the next five year term. NCPA now 
desires to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services agreement to extend 
the agreement expiration date to January 31, 2022 to allow NCPA additional time to obtain bids 
and negotiate terms of the agreement with the winning bidder. NCPA has agreements in place for 
simR~r_s~rv_i_ce~ with ABM Building Solutions, Comfort Air, I0_9_.LCre~,tive C_ooling Technologies, 
EMCOR Services Mesa Energy, Johnson Controls, Inc. and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc. This 
enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. A draft Commission Staff 
Report, draft First Amendment, and the original MTGSA were available for review. It is 
recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

2 



Motion: A motion was made by Shiva Swaminathan and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 
for HVAC maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by 
the NCPA General Counsel, extending the agreement expiration from November 17, 2021 to 
January 31, 2022, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES= Alameda, Biggs, 
Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The 
motion passed. 

5. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. First Amendment to 
MTPSA- Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval of the First Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task Professional Services 
Agreement with CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. for compliance support for biological monitoring and 
general compliance support services, increasing the not to exceed from $200,000 to $500,000, for 
continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill 
Engineers, Inc., effective April 23, 2018 for an amount not to exceed $200,000, for use at any 
facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA) or SCPPA Members. This agreement has been used frequently by NCPA for CEC 
certification at its plants and biological monitoring for various projects, and this agreement is now 
running low on funds. To ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder of the contract 
term, this amendment will increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000, for 
continued use at any facility owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with EGS Consulting and 
Stratus Environmental. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of 
funds. A draft Commission Staff Report, draft First Amendment, and the original MTPSA were 
available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Shiva Swaminathan and seconded by Brian Schinstock 
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter 
into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill 
Engineers, Inc. for compliance support services, including biological monitoring and general 
compliance support, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Gounsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000, for continued 
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA 
Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, 
Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

6. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC First Amendment 
to MTGSA- Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval of the First Amendment to the five-year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC, to modify the warranty language in Sections 
12.1 and 12.2 and add emergency delivery pricing to Exhibit B, for continued use at any facilities 

_________ pwoed_ and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Memb~f§~_~y_SCePA, and SCPPA Members. All 
purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water 
Technologies, LLC effective November 1, 2020. Per Section 12.1 of the Agreement, "For the Lodi 
Energy Center Condensate Polishers, Contractor will guarantee, by way of an amendment to the 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

3 



Agreement, a throughput amount to be determined and mutually agreed upon ... ". Discussions were 
had between Evoqua and NCPA and a throughput amount of 28,000,000 gallons was mutually 
agreed upon. This First Amendment will modify the warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 
and add emergency delivery pricing to Exhibit B. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA 
to any expenditure of funds. There is no other agreement currently in place for similar services. A 
draft Commission Staff Report, draft First Amendment, and the original MTGSA were available for 
review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 
for condensate polisher resin regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, RO & UF 
membrane cleaning and other water treatment support services, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel or her designee, modifying the 
warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 and adding emergency delivery pricing in Exhibit B, 
for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, 
and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, 
Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

7. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- Hometown Connections, Inc. First Amendment to 
MTCSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Five-Year Multi-Task Consulting Services 
Agreement with Hometown Connections, Inc. for various consulting related tasks including but not 
limited to organization assessments, strategic planning, market research, and training, increasing 
the not to exceed amount from $250,000 to $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be 
issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

Hometown Connections, Inc. (HCI) is a national, non-profit utility services organization specializing 
in the unique challenges of community-owned utilities. Their team of consultants and vendor 
partners help utilities streamline business processes, enhance customer service, improve security, 
and develop plans for the future. Serving community-owned utilities of every size and type, HCI 
provides products and services to develop all areas of the utility business, including operations, 
cybersecurity, business strategy, customer care, finance, workforce, and technology. 

On July 19, 2019, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with 
HCI, for services to the Agency and/or its Members in an amount not-to-exceed $250,000. Since 
inception, HCl's contract has been used six times by NCPA Members (Redding (3), Alameda, 
Lompoc, and Truckee Donner) nearing the not-to-exceed limit. Due to expressed Member interest, 
the Agency now desires to amend the agreement to increase the total compensation from the not
to-exceed amount of $250,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000 over the term. NCPA's 
investment in HCI as a founding member in 2018 was for just this purpose - to provide access to 
technology and services and integrated solutions that are specifically designed to help public power 
utilities succeed in the communities they serve. A draft Commission Staff Report, draft First 
Amendment, and the original MTCSA were available for review. It is recommended to place this 
item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Shiv_§_S_waminathan and seconded by Mark Sorensen 
recommending Commission approval authorizing the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) 
General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Consulting 
Services Agreement with Hometown Connections, Inc. for various consulting related tasks 
including but not limited to organization assessments, strategic planning, market research, and 
training, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

4 



Counsel, increasing the not to exceed to $1,000,000, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or 
SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, 
Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

8. NCPA HQ Facilities - Consolidated Communications - Staff provided background information 
and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the Third Amendment to the 
Lease Agreement with Consolidated Communications for the Disaster Recovery Center extending 
the term of the lease for up to 24 months. The lease is included in the General Services budget. 

In 2009 the NCPA Commission approved the lease of a 3,797 square foot facility from SureWest 
Telephone (now Consolidated Communications) as the backup site for our mission critical 24/7 
Scheduling and Dispatch operations. This facility provides replicated hardware, software, and data 
to provide seamless transfer of personnel to this site in case of an emergency. 

In early 2021, Consolidated Communications approached NCPA with an offer to purchase the 
building. Since multiple buildings sit on the parcel sharing utilities (electric, gas, water, wastewater, 
etc.), NCPA needed to engage with an architect firm to analyze the scope of work and provide an 
estimated cost to split the parcel, add independent utilities, an emergency generator, and impacts 
of other property attributes. With the current lease set to expire in April 2022, staff requested a two
year extension to the current lease. This will allow sufficient time to analyze the financial impacts of 
a parcel split. If a parcel split is not financially feasible, it allows additional time to seek alternatives 
such as an ownership percentage of the same property or finding another building to purchase. 

The terms of this third amendment are largely unchanged with monthly base rent increasing 2% 
each year, the same as previous amendments. New language was added to terminate the lease 
upon sale of the building to NCPA. There will be no further options to extend the lease when it ends 
on April 30, 2024. Approval of the third amendment will cost $130,608 through April 2024. The 
lease is included in the current fiscal year budget with funds available in the General Services 
budget. A draft Commission Staff Report, and draft Third Amendment to the Lease Agreement with 
Consolidated Communications were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on 
the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Sorensen and seconded by Basil Wong recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute the Third 
Amendment to the Lease Agreement extending the period for up to two years or April 30, 2024, 
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the General Counsel. A vote 
was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, 
Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

9. CT1 Alameda Electric Start Project - Staff presented background information and was seeking a 
recommendation for Commission approval of the CT1 Alameda Electric Start Project including 
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, 
and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and 
procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost not to exceed $2,900,000. 

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District limits the CT1 Alameda diesel starting motors to 20 
hours of operation per rQJling 12-mgnth period. This means that the availabi_lity of the Alam9-da _units 
is based off the previous 12-months' combined usage, with the units being placed in a forced 
outage when the operating limits are met. The NCPA CT1 Alameda Electric Start Project would 
replace the diesel starting motors with electric starting motors, removing the use restriction. Electric 
motors will also reduce site noise and the prevalence of diesel exhaust fumes, two of the most 
common neighborhood complaints. If this project is approved, expected completion will be in the 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

5 



January 2023 outage. In addition, this project is expected to realize some de minimis benefits. 
These include increased start reliability and reduced maintenance cost. 
On August 9, 2020, NCPA put out a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the CT1 Alameda Electric 
Start Project. A bid request went out to several contractors. NCPA's RFP was refined over the 
course of the year, with the final draft of bids due on September 3, 2021. GE Power, Siemens 
Energy, Inc., and TTS Construction Corporation were the only contractors that submitted final bids. 
Bids submitted ranged in price from $2,853,625 to $5, 149,664. TTS Construction Corporation was 
selected as the winning bidder due to having the lowest project cost, previous project experience, 
and the most complete project proposal. 

The total cost is anticipated not to exceed $2,900,000. Funds for the project were encumbered from 
the approved FY21 CT1 Alameda budget and Maintenance Reserves. 

The NCPA CT1 Alameda Electric Start Project cost breakdown is shown below. 

TTS Construction 
Equipment Identification & $ 1,050,000.00 
Procurement 
Engineering, Installation & Site $ 1,060,000.00 
Support 
Optional SSS Starting Clutch $ 100,000.00 
Subtotal $ 2,210,000.00 
Sales Tax (10.75%) $ 123,625.00 
Shipping (estimated) $ 20,000.00 
Contingency (-22.5%) $ 500,000.00 
Total Estimated Cost $ 2,853,625.00 

Motion: A motion was made by Alan Harbottle and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the NCPA CT1 Alameda Electric Start Project and delegating 
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue 
purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, 
without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed amount of $2,900,000, with 
$650,000 being used from the Maintenance Reserve Fund, and $2,250,000 from the encumbered 
FY 2021 funds. A vote was taken by roll call: YES= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, 
Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN= Palo Alto, Redding, and Roseville. 
The motion passed. 

10. 2025 Western Base Resource Contract - Staff presented contracts and materials in support of 
review and approval of the 2025 Western Base Resource Contract. 

Staff presented background information regarding Western's (WAPA) 2025 Base Resource 
Contract. This is the contract used for marketing output produced by the Central Valley Project 
(CVP). The Assignment Administration Agreement (AAA) is the agreement under which NCPA 
manages the Base Resource Contract (BR) assignments on behalf of Members. The Request for 
Assignment of BR is a letter agreement used by a Member to assign its share of BR to NCPA's BR 
Contract. 

NCPA will need to execute the 2025 BR Contract to become a "Customer" of WAPA. This will 
enable NCPA to receive Member assignments. Once this agreement is signed a new AAA will need 
to be developed for administration of the 2025 BR Contract assignments. The existing AAA can 
also be amended and restated as an alternative to developing a new AAA. The AAA will need to be 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

6 



approved by each assigning Member. Once NCPA has executed the 2025 BR Contract, NCPA can 
accept assignments by executing individual Requests for Assignment. NCPA and Members will be 
required to execute the AAA prior to accepting assignment, ensuring the assigning Member 
accepts financial responsibility of assignment. 

Next steps include NCPA distributing a new AAA for Member review and comment. The first draft 
should be distributed by October 15, 2021. NCPA will seek Member comments and feedback prior 
to the November 2021 Facilities Committee Meeting. Staff will seek approval of the 2025 BR 
Contract, the AAA, and the Request for Assignment at the November Facilities and Commission 
meetings. 

11. Glover Solar PPA and Third Phase Agreement - Staff will review and seek a recommendation 
for Commission approval of the Power Purchase Agreement between Northern California Power 
Agency and Glover Solar, LLC, and the Third Phase Agreement for Power Purchase Agreement 
with Glover Solar, LLC. 

1rlt This item was pulled from the agenda, and will be brought back to the Committee at a 
later time. 1r1r 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

12. New Business Opportunities - Staff provided an update regarding new business opportunities. 
Listed below are active projects under consideration. 

Glover Solar, LLC - PPA negotiations are nearly complete. The next steps will to seek approval of 
the PPA and Third Phase Agreement. 

Camp Far West-A PPA is currently being negotiated. Staff is seeking SSWD feedback on current 
draft of PPA. 

McCloud Solar-A PPA is currently being negotiated. Next steps will be to present the updated 
PPA to the developer. Then coordinate with Members regarding continued interest in project. 

Stagecoach Solar - Staff is currently performing due diligence on the project offer. Depending on 
Member continued interest, staff will seek to enter into Letter of Intent to engage in active PPA 
negotiations. Term would be 10 to 20 years with the quantity to be determined. The product 
includes energy, capacity and environmental attributes through the Calpine Geothermal Resource 
at approximately $68.00 per MWh (to be negotiated with counterparty). 

13. FY2021 Annual Billing Settlements Review - Staff presented a draft of the FY2021 Annual 
Billing Settlement and encumbrances for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 

After internal accounting review, the final draft of the FY2021 Annual Billing Settlement was 
reviewed by the Facilities Committee. The draft results include an approximate $1.5 million charge 
from the plant operations, and approximately $930,000 refund coming from management services, 
pass-through costs, and third party revenues. Encumbered funds for FY2021 total $5.36 million. 

The next st~p§ in this process are to present this draft tQ __ tb§__l.fC F?PC October 11, 2021, then the 
Utility Directors at the October 14, 2021 UD meeting. The final version of the FY2021 Annual Billing 
Settlement will be presented to the Facilities Committee at the November 3, 2021 Facilities 
Committee meeting, seeking a recommendation for Commission approval. After that it will be 
presented to the LEC PPC for approval, and again to the UDs in November. Staff will be seeking 
Commission approval at the December 2, 2021 Commission meeting. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

7 



14. Overview of FY2023 Budget Process and Approach - Staff provided an overview of the FY2023 
Budget process and recommended operating budget directions. 

The proposed budget process will continue with review of the draft budgets through the Facilities, 
LEC PPC, and L&R Committees, and UD meeting, seeking a recommendation for Commission 
approval. The budget is prepared on a project/program basis. Allocation for all allocated costs are 
Power Management, Legislative and Regulatory, Judicial Action, Administrative and General, and 
direct allocations. Previously approved methods will be continued at this time with focus on NCPA 
controllable costs and aligning budgets with expectations and previous actuals. Issues impacting 
the FY2023 budget include the PERS Pension with an increase of $200,000, OPEB, and the CPI 
index at 5.3%, which will jmpact the plants O&M budgets. Other issues include insurance premiums 
with property increasing 20% and casualty by 15%, and legal and consulting costs with increased 
us of legal contracts and integration of new projects. 

Recommendations for the FY2023 budget include a target increase of 5.3% for regular operating 
and maintenance of the plants. All maintenance and capital projects will be reviewed and vetted by 
the Facilities Committee and the LEC PPC Committee prior to seeking a recommendation for 
Commission approval. The salary increase target of $1 million includes union negotiated general 
wage increases and broad banding adjustment for merits, promotions, and upgrades. All other 
operating expenses will target no more than a 5.3% increase as well. 

15. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates - Plant Staff provided an informational update on 
current plant activities and conditions. 

Hydro - Collierville Powerhouse was in a dual unit outage from October 1 - 3, 2021. CAISO 
approved the outage just days prior to the outage. McKays intake maintenance was performed 
removing several baskets of debris during the outage, as well as other annual maintenance to the 
project. Emergency Action Plan binders have been updated per the five year FERC mandate, and 
distributed. Other highlights of the month include the FERC Part_ 12 Five Year Dam Safety 
Inspection and Potential Failure Modes Analysis Workshop, annual maintenance outages for New 
Spicer Meadows Units 1, 2, and 3, Beaver Creek and North Fork Diversion Dams were drained for 
maintenance, ongoing maintenance is occurring at Lake Alpine Dam, the New Spicer Powerhouse 
is undergoing roof sealing maintenance, and SWRCB Water Rights and been filed. 

Geo - There were no safety recordable incidents to report for the month of September. Safety 
training is 62.6% complete. Per CalFire recommendation fire proof signage has been installed at 
the Geo project. The average net generation for the month was 94.5 MW. Total net generation was 
68.1 GWh. CY 2021 net generation is 581.8 GWh at 7.3% over forecast. Maintenance activities 
included replacing air relief valves on the SEGEP, repairing the evaporation tower in Stratford, and 
insulation repairs are completed. The Plant 1 Fire Protection Project is currently in the second 
phase, and the Plant 1 Cooling Tower Test has been completed. 

CTs - September was another busy month for the CTs. CT1 had 24 actual starts, with 4 ghost 
starts bringing the FYTD total to 112. CT2 had 6 actual starts this month brining the FYTD total to 
43 starts. There were two forced outages during the month. CT1 Alameda Unit 2 was due to the 
diesel starter and both air compressors. CT1 was out due to a generator oil leak. There were no 

__ planned outages for the month of Septembe.r_._J;IUod_i_has used 155 hours already out of 200 
allowed. CT1 Alameda Diesel Unit 1 has used 7 .44 hours of 20, and Unit 2, 7.35 hours of 20. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

8 



16. Planning and Operations Update -

Resource Integration 

SFWPA (Members)- December 19, 2021 
Sky River Wind (BART)- September 1, 2021 
Slate 1 Solar (BART) - October 31, 2021 
Ukiah Mendocino Hydro (Ukiah) - Ongoing 

- Antelope Solar (NCPA) - December 1, 2021 
Camp Far West (SVP) - Q4, 2021 
Henrietta D Energy Storage - October 2021 
Golden Fields Solar 111 - March 31 , 2022 
Rosamond Solar - 2022 
CT Project No. 1 - AGC Controls 

Key Areas Impacted by Resource Integration - Bid-to-Bill software application, scheduling, 
operations, dispatch and controls, and settlements/accounting. Organization impacts include 
people, the process and the prioritization of activities. Mitigation strategies include focusing on 
the need to have elements, and then nice to have elements, utilization of external support and 
services, and evaluation of resource staffing and bandwidth. Staff is working on a coordinated 
integration plan, focused on controlled staggering of the integration of projects. 

17. Next Meeting - The next Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for November 3, 2021. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:21 pm by the Committee Chair. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2021 

9 



-

Teleconference call only due to Covid19 

Northern callfornia Power Agency 
October 6, 2021 Facllltles Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

ALAMEDA ✓ 
BART 

BIGGS / 
GRIDLEY / 

HEALDSBURG 

LODI ✓ 
LOMPOC \/ 

PALO ALTO ✓ 
PLUMAS-SIERRA REC ✓ 
PORT OF OAKLAND ✓ 

REDDING ✓ 
ROSEVILLE ✓ 

SANTA CLARA ✓ 
--

TID 

UKIAH 



Northern California Power Agency 
October 6, 2021 Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance Ust 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by 
members of the public Is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 

C rhvv l ~ ?oUo vlGVA 
T Ovt-L( :e z.WUo/L <,. r- l \ 

Q ~L ~~I~ vt-WvcLt l l 

l fZt WV(., CL, i ( t\-J D W evl cl \\ 

V'Yl~t cr ft{~::, l I 

9ovtA-tklL Ask~t I \ 

ts., A' , · · yt..C,{)-t, ~ t IA S ~~ \\ 

rVl t 't.t-, ~ ~ hw -to~~ ·t' 

~cl~ ftJowu-btJY~ ( ( 

VVl Me, u ¥ ~ Ue,,-t t tv l l 



651 Commerce·Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Minutes - Draft 
Date: October 19, 2021 

To: NCPA Facilities Committee 

From: Carrie Pollo 

Subject: October 14, 2021 Special Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

1. Call meeting to order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Basil 
Wong (Santa Clara) at 2:03 pm. Attending via teleconference and/or on-line presentation were 
Alan Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Terry Crowley (Healdsburg), Jiayo Chiang 
(Lodi), Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), Mike Brozo (Plumas-Sierra), Jared Carpenter and Khaly 
Nguyen (Port of Oakland), Nick Rossow (Redding), Brian Schinstock (Roseville), Steve Hance 
(Santa Clara), and Willie Manual and Owen Goldstrom (TIO). Those attending in person are listed 
on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, Gridley, 
Lompoc, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established. 

PUBLIC FORUM 
No public comment. 

OPEN SESSION 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 

2. 2022 Major Insurance Renewal Proposal - Staff presented background information and was a 
seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of the NCPA Major insurance renewals for 
2022. 

Shortly after the last renewal, staff reached out to FM Global directly given their significant 
experience and strong reputation in the property insurance market. Founded in 1835, FM Global 
insures more than a third of the Fortune 1000 companies and total assets in excess of $25 billion. 
FM Global takes an engineering-first approach helping their clients be resilient against natural 
disasters-and this philosophy matched our core principles. FM Global is guided by the belief that 
most losses are preventable and they will dig deep to understand each business' needs to help 
reduce risk. In order to have FM Global quote the agency, NCPA held weekly meetings beginning 
in February and eventually scheduled site visits in April, May and June. After FM Global 
completed its review, a meeting with thePlam:7vlan-agers was held to review findings and -
recommendations. This was the critical last step prior to FM Global providing a quote. To put this 
in perspective, AEGIS, the current incumbent with a 39% share, scheduled virtual loss control 
visits. Feedback received from the Plant Managers regarding the loss control process was more 
positive with the FM Global team than the AEGIS team. 



FM Global's proposal has several enhancements in critical areas such as providing a policy limit of 
$500 million versus $325 million and higher sublimits. In addition to the policy enhancements and 
reduced premium, FM Global provides other value-added services that help reduce NCPA risk, 
truly making this a partnership. Loss control visits and engineering services are included at no 
additional charge. For example, if staff engages in a large or complex project, the FM Global team 
of engineers are ready to assist with plan review services providing their input based on their 
experiences and data fact sheets, where applicable. To reflect their commitment to a long-term 
partnership, FM Global's proposal also includes a two-year rate lock. The property premium 
quoted in Option 2 is $1 million less than 2021 premiums and $2 million less than what is 
estimated from the other markets for 2022. Coupled with a 2-year team, the Agency is set to save 
over $4 million. 

The remaining markets have been directed to provide their indications by the week of October 
18th. Unless they can competitively quote, match (or improve) policy coverages, and provide 
similar value-added services, staff plans to bind property coverages with FM Global. 

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Schinstock and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager to negotiate and bind policy year 2022 
property and liability coverages at a not-to-exceed amount of $5,700,000. This authority includes a 
not-to-exceed of $3,700,000 for property insurance and $2,000,000 for casualty insurance. A vote 
was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Healdsburg, Lodi, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, 
Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara, and TIO. The motion passed. 

3. Glover Solar PPA and Third Phase Agreement- Staff will review and seek a recommendation 
for Commission approval of the Power Purchase Agreement between Northern California Power 
Agency and Glover Solar, LLC, and the Third Phase Agreement for Power Purchase Agreement 
with Glover Solar, LLC. 1rltThis item was pulled from the agenda. 1rlt 

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for the closed session discussion Items #4 
and #5. 

CLOSED SESSION 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(1 ): Name of case: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric 
Company, Debtors; United States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California, Case Nos. 19-
30088 (Lead Case) and 19-30089 OM. 

5. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Anticipated Litigation, significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)- two cases. 

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION 

All meeting attendees rejoined the public meeting. 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated no reportable action was taken 
on the closed session Items #4---and---#-5-:--

ADJOURNM ENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:29 pm by the Committee Chair. 

Special Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 14, 2021 

2 



Teleconference call only due to Covid19 

Northern California Power Agency 
October 14, 2021 Special Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

ALAMEDA ✓ 
BART 

BIGGS ✓ 
GRIDLEY 

HEALDSBURG ✓ 

LODI ✓ 
LOMPOC 

PALO ALTO ✓ 

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC ✓ 
PORT OF OAl(LAND ✓ 

REDDING ✓ 

ROSEVILLE ✓ 
SANTA CLARA ✓ 

-· 
TID -

✓ 
UKIAH 



I 

Northern California Power Agency 
October 14, 2021 Special Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by 
members of the public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 

Ce<,,v- r- i~ ?o ~lo VLC\JA 
-rovt..-1 ~( 1-_,, l .. ~ -uvt~r rec., YA 
vvlotX-r. l J ~ ~ S VlC»A_ 
:sr A---Vl V c.)~~c,Ji, kMc,l-t t/LA,,VA 
~ r A--\oweJt,,cL VGC~A 
A-vt A~ ;.,1 A L cJ VLrA/VL,,el VGC)?A. 
(Y'L irl~~ U{,, \hor{-;olA,: VucvA 
Al uAIL 1/1.,M h cn r- rYr C:--i wk>ev l 

-
-



Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: September 30, 2021 Financial Report (unaudited) 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth \ZW ~ THOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller NIA 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 234:21 

ID 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



September 30, 2021 Financial Report (unaudited} 
October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Financial Report for month ending September 30, 2021. 

NOTICE: 

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported 
herein, will be approved at the October 28, 2021 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The 
following page is a summary of those disbursements. 

Prior to the Chairman's call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon 
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements. 

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited September 30, 2021 financial reports 
are also included. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R~~ IM 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
- September 30, 2021 Financial Report 

SR: 234:21 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of September 2021 

Operations: 

Geothermal $ 
Hydroelectric 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 

CT#2 STIG 

Lodi Energy Center 

NCPA Operating 

Total $ 

1,191,861 

3,017,851 

174,283 

688,127 

9,621,519 

63,829,938 

78,523,579 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 25% 

This Actual Year FY 2022 
Month To-Date Budget %Used 

GENERATION RESOURCES 
NCPAPlants 

Hydroelectric 
Other Plant Cost $ 2,278,088 $ 5,819,337 $ 20,659,536 28% 
Debt Service (Net) 2,785,136 8,355,409 33,421,637 25% 

Annual Budget Cost 5,063,224 14,174,746 54,081,173 26% 

Geothermal 
Other Plant Cost 2,662,674 9,287,939 35,708,919 26% 
Debt Service (Net) 412,788 1,238,363 4,953,453 25% 

Annual Budget Cost 3,075,462 10,526,302 40,662,372 26% 

Combustion Turbine No. 1 
Fuel 236,603 440,287 791,613 56% (a) 
Other Plant Cost 300,279 1,750,641 6,263,071 28% 

Annual Budget Cost 536,882 2,190,928 7,054,684 31% 

Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig) 
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 255,509 1,007,614 1,265,369 80% {b) 
Other Plant Cost 168,336 603,560 2,649,010 23% 
Debt Service (Net) 420,667 1,262,000 5,048,000 25% 

Annual Budget Cost 844,512 2,873,174 8,962,379 32% 

Lodi Energy Center 
Fuel 9,637,111 24,828,427 31,029,301 80% (b) 
Other Plant Cost 3,746,492 11,795,105 31,775,721 37% (b) 
Debt Service (Net) 2,197,050 6,591,149 26,008,267 25% 

Annual Budget Cost 15,580,653 43,214,681 88,813,289 49% 

Member Resources • Energy 5,486,956 20,734,980 67,416,504 31% (b) 
Member Resources - Natural Gas 645,180 1,941,537 2,981,422 65% (a) 
Western Resources 841,782 7,422,978 27,302,082 27% 
Market Power Purchases 5,162,375 15,549,667 17,224,803 90% (c) 
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 118,664,526 287 I 142,200 282,244,061 102% (d) 
Net GHG Obligations 605,800 1,276,784 N/A 

155,901,552 406,376,993 598,019,553 68% 

TRANSMISSION 
Independent System Operator 

Grid Management Charge 694,802 2,075,627 2,417,506 86% (e) 
Wheeling Access Charge 9,693,886 30,441,523 119,362,830 26% 
Ancillary Services 1,995,735 5,668,154 3,846,319 147% (f) 
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (2,757,382) 35,069,056 946,016 3707% {g) 

9,627,041 73,254,360 126,572,671 58% 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Legislative & Regulatory 

Legislative Representation 145,982 401,490 2,101,373 19% 
Regulatory Representation 51,248 153,192 633,940 24% 
Western Representation 45,169 131,859 693,937 19% 
Customer Programs 30,741 101,410 481,257 21% 
Judicial Action 167,092 167,092 300,000 56% (h) 

Power Management 
System Control & Load Dispatch 535,002 1,705,075 7,427,479 23% 
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 232,785 671,499 2,810,687 24% 
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 34,779 104,289 423,181 25% 
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 81,357 249,615 974,600 26% 
Gas Purchase Program 5,424 15,151 80,779 19% 
Market Purchase Project 7,284 21,201 115,897 18% 

Management Services continued on next page 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 25% 

This Actual Year FY 2022 
Month To-Date %Used Bud9et 

Energy Risk Management 11,954 30,651 198,417 7s%"" 
Settlements 75,559 228,497 975,283 
Integrated Systems Support 15,116 112,580 307,165 
Participant Pass Through Costs 50,094 217,112 1,717,765 
Support Services 122,688 322,663 

1,612,274 41633,376 19,241,760 

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 16711401867 48412641729 7 431833,984 

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE 
Plant ISO Energy Sales 20,765,570 64,272,834 101,639,828 
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 3,899,484 13,381,254 34,352,521 
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 12,324,119 40,566,738 83,030,430 
Revenue from Customers (27,809,416} 44,640,694 
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 4,458,094 12,703,815 12,614,852 
Western Resource Energy Sales 2,855,023 12,092,697 19,296,646 
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 72,325,095 147,573,478 
Ancillary Services Sales 1,434,524 3,633,531 4,317,168 
Transmission Sales 9,198 27,594 110,376 
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 4,190,847 18,542,570 41,468,679 

94,452,538 357,435,205 296,830,500 

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 72,688,329 $ 126,829,524 $ 447,003,484 

(a) CT1 monthly generation varies throughout the year. Majority of generation occur during the first four months of the fiscal year. 
Costs expected to levelize by the end of the year. 

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 450% of budgeted MWhs and 
LEC is at 230% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/21. Fuel costs, CA ISO charges, GHG allowance costs, and variable costs 
have increased as a result of increased generation. 

(c) Increase due to higher than anticipated market purchases and price per Mwh. 

23% 
37% 
13% 
N/A 

24% 

65% 

63% 
39% 
49% 
N/A 

101% 
63% 
NIA 
84% 
25% 
45% 

120% 

28% 

{d} Increase due to unbudgeted energy purchases and sales related to CCAs (East Bay Community Energy, San Jose Clean Energy, and 
Sonoma Clean Power), which is offset by revenue from customers. 

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted grid management estimates, neutrality charges estimates and other cost estimates related to CCAs, 
which is offset by revenue from customers. 

(f} Increase due to unbudgeted ancillary services cost estimates related to CCAs, which is offset by revenue from customers, as well as 
greater than expected spinning, non-spinning, reg up and down obligation settlements for the NCPA pool. 

(g) In the current month, adjustments were made to prior months sales to CCAs for trued-up energy and transmission costs, resulting in 
a credit to Other ISO Charges and a negative amount for Revenue from Customers. 
Revenue from Customers was unbudgeted in FY22. The Actual Year-To-Date amount represents CCA energy and transmission costs. 

(h) Budgeted costs are partially offset by available encumbrances from the prior years. Additional increases relate to unbudgeted costs 
for privileged and confidential legal matters related to a multiyear litigation. 

(i) Variance caused by FY22 software maintenance contract costs paid in-full during July. Variance expected to levelize throughout the year. 

(j) Higher plant revenues due to higher generation. 

(k) Higher revenues due to higher energy prices and higher than budgeted contract energy. 

(I) Increase primarily due to greater than expected spinning and reg up capacity settlements revenue from Hydro plant. 

(m) Increase due primarily to higher than anticipated Western O&M revenue credits and member contract sales. 

{i) 

(j) 
(k) 
{k) 
(g} 
(k) 
(k} 
(c) 
(I} 

(m) 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Preliminary survey and investigation costs 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

$ 

$ 

September 30, 
2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

68,002 $ 27,815 
30,760 45,433 

39 1 
5,120 6,494 

227 294 
6,155 5,937 
1,399 735 

111,702 86,709 

60,088 49,170 
174,613 167,967 

535 615 

235,236 217,752 

1,497,948 1,494,359 
(1,055,705) (1,026,445) 

442,243 467,914 

202,098 225,867 
53 2 

265 265 

991,597 998,509 

9,061 19,782 
18,099 16,936 
61,853 61,966 

89,013 98,684 

1,080,610 $ 1,097,193 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Member advances 
Operating reserves 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accrued interest payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Interest rate swap liability 
Asset retirement obligations 
Long-term debt, net 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

$ 

$ 

September 30, 
2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

85,216 $ 17,607 
993 993 

24,062 20,677 
44,860 43,745 

7,125 7,601 
162,256 90,623 

62,959 63,003 
143,282 131,414 

14,575 20,799 
68,521 67,005 

521,652 569,251 
810,989 851,472 

973,245 942,095 

87,329 88,060 
2,187 4,737 

89,516 92,797 

(10,017) (8,116) 
23,648 18,373 

4,218 52,044 

17,849 62,301 

1,080,610 $ 1,097,193 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants 

Other Third-Party 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 
Operations 
Transmission 
Depreciation 
Maintenance 
Administrative and general 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

NET OPERATING REVENUES 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other 

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 

NET POSITION, Period ended 

$ 

$ 

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 
2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

132,144 $ 97,035 

114,139 96,083 

246,283 193,118 

107,070 89,883 
44,552 19,198 
74,340 32,246 

7,629 7,576 
6,524 5,496 
4,689 4,087 

244,804 158,486 

1,479 34,632 

(5,918) (10,056) 
(385) {3,064) 

3,358 (384) 
(2,945) (13,504) 

{7,895) (19) 

{418) 800 

(9,779) 21,909 

27,628 40,392 

17,849 $ 62,301 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Invent01y and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 
Due from Agency and other programs* 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS ' 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Preliminary survey and investigation costs 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB defen-als 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

* Eliminated in Combination 

Geothemtal 

1,514 
265 

11,659 
13,439 

2,694 
27,657 

84 
30,435 

575,507 
(547,028) 

28,479 

(309) 

72,044 

758 

61,498 
62,256 

134,300 $ 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

H_rdroelectric 

- $ 

1,572 
369 
604 

2,545 

9,930 
35,755 

73 
45,758 

395,330 
{293,025) 
102,305 

120,663 

271,271 

7,471 

7,471 
278,742 $ 

Multiple 
Capital 
Facilities 

332 
29 

4,413 
4,775 

871 

872 

64,865 
(55,535) 

9,330 

4,094 

19,071 

(270) 

166 
(104) 

18,967 $ 

CT 
No. One 

284 
42 

7,583 
7,910 

37,224 
(35,142) 

2,082 

9,992 

9,992 

Sep_tember 30, 2021 

Lodi 
Ene!l!r Center 

85 $ 

2,453 
255 

43,507 
46,300 

8,717 
29,288 

68 
38,073 

410,208 
(112,556) 
297,652 

26,349 

408,374 

1,102 

189 
1,291 

409,665 

Transmission 
No. One 

-

7,736 
(7,736) 

$ 

Purchased 
Power& 

Transmission 

-

2,469 
78 

18,982 
21,529 

19,028 
19,386 

38,414 

59,943 

$ 

59,943 $ 

Associated 
Member 
Services 

81 

24 
7,727 
7,832 

905 

~ 
259 

53 

8,144 

8,144 $ 

Other 

A~ Combined 

67,833 $ 68,002 
30,760 30,760 

39 39 
2,651 5,120 

149 227 
6,155 

415 1,399 
(94,475) 

7,372 l ll,702 

19,718 60,088 
61,656 174,613 

310 535 
81,684 235,236 

6,173 1,497,948 
(4,o37l [1 ,055,705) 
2,136 442,243 

51,301 202,098 
53 

265 265 

142,758 991,597 

9,061 
18,099 18,099 

61,853 
18,099 89,013 

160,857 $ 1,080,610 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 
Se tember 30, 2021 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothennal H:z:droelectric Facilities No. One Ene~ Center Transmission Transmission Services A~en~ Combined 
LIABILITIES 

I 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 336 $ 246 $ $ 1 $ 9,481 $ - s 69,012 $ $ 6,140 $ 85,216 
Member advances 791 202 993 
Operating reserves 2,261 250 617 4,471 16,463 24,062 
Current portion oflong-tenn debt 4,760 22,855 4,365 12,880 44,860 
Accrued interest payable 48 2,632 69 4,376 7,125 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,196 25,983 5,051 4,472 43,200 69,012 202 6,140 162,256 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liability 62,959 62,959 
Operating reserves and other deposits 1,500 19,574 99 38,392 2,037 81,680 143,282 
Interest rate swap liability 14,575 14,575 
Asset retirement obligations 68,167 166 188 68,521 
Long-term debt, net 6,785 210,47S 10,737 293,655 521,652 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 76,452 244,624 10,903 293,942 38,392 2,037 144,639 810,989 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 84,648 270,607 15,954 4,472 337,142 107,404 2,239 150,779 973,24S 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 38,351 3,284 798 2,250 39,88S 281 2,480 87,329 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 2,187 2,187 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 38,351 3,284 798 2,250 39,885 281 4,667 89,516 

NETPOSmON 
Net investment in capital assets 5,357 (9,180) (2,357) (3,837) (10,017) 
Restricted for debt service 1,199 12,419 775 9,255 23,648 
Unrestricted 4,745 1,612 3,797 3,270 27,220 {47,461} 5,624 5,411 4,218 

TOTAL NET POSmON 11,301 4,851 2,215 3,270 32,638 (47,461) 5,624 5,411 17,849 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSffiOJ:,l' $ 134,300 $ 278,742 $ 18,967 $ 9,992 $ 409,665 $ - $ 59,943 $ 8144 $ 160,857 $ 1,080,610 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA rowER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORA TIO NS 

(000's omitted) 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2021 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 

Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothennal Hxdroelectric Facilities No. One Ener~ Center Transmission Transmission Services A~en~ Combined 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants $ 777 s 7,709 s 2,347 $ 1,974 s 18,596 $ $ 95,877 $ 4,720 $ 144 $ 132,144 

Other Third-Party 13,613 7,671 1,155 1,933 42,499 46,301 367 114,139 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 14,390 15,380 4102 3,907 61,095 142,178 5,087 144 246,283 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 237 1,866 96 424 1,164 103,283 107,070 

Operations 4,454 948 1,203 676 32,575 1,634 3,062 44,552 

Transmission 129 98 7 5 262 73,838 I 74,340 

Depreciation 940 2,467 555 75 3,538 11 43 7,629 

Maintenance 2,829 1,631 132 760 1,152 20 6,524 

Administrative and general 1,639 1,157 161 306 1,493 1,785 (1,852) 4,689 

Intercompany (sales) purchases, net• (207) 83 15 20 90 I 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 10,021 8,250 2,169 2,266 40,274 178,755 4,878 i l,809~ 244,804 

NET OPERATING REVENUES 4,369 7,130 1,933 1,641 20,821 i36,577) 209 1,953 1,479 

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 

Interest expense (114) (2,430) (17) (3,357) (5,918) 

Interest income IO 13 6 11 79 137 15 (656) (385) 

Other 799 526 2,092 po1~ 25 223 3,358 

TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 695 i2,417) 515 11 (1,186) p 70) 40 (433) ~2,945~ 

FUTIJRE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (599) (3,129) (709) (3,458) (7,895) 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 378 (231) 13 (1411 (172~ (430) 165 (418) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET pOSlON 4,843 1,353 1,752 1,511 16,177 (36,919) (181) 1,685 (9,779) 

NET POSmON, Beginning of year 6,458 3,498 463 1,759 16,461 (to,s42l 5,805 3,726 27,628 

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 11,301 $ 4,851 $ 2,215 $ 3,270 $ 32,638 $ - $ (47,461) $ 5,624 $ 5,411 $ 17,849 

* Eliminated in Combination 



Status 

CURRENT 

PAST DUE: 

1 -30 

31 -60 

61 -90 

91 -120 

Over 120 Days 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

September 30, 2021 

Participant / Customer Description 

$ 

Calpine Geysers Plant Service Effluent Adj (Mar'18 - Dec'19) 

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 

AR FY 2022Sep Rpt 2021 

Amount 

4,866,342 

292,665 

5,159,007 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of Disbursements 
{Unaudited) 

For the Month of September 2021 

Operations: 

Geothermal $ 
Hydroelectric 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 

CT#2 STIG 

Lodi Energy Center 

NCPA Operating 

Total $ 

1,191,861 

3,017,851 

174,283 

688,127 

9,621,519 

63,829,938 

78,523,579 



Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended September 30, 2021 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth ~THOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 235:21 

11 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended September 30, 2021 
October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Treasurer's Report for September 30, 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 
In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California 
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for 
your information and acceptance. 

Cash - At month end cash totaled $16,114,165 of which approximately $1,694 was applicable to 
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $3,641 to Debt Service and $16,108,830 to Operations and 
other. 

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This 
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase 
agreement. 

Investments -The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $317,280,745 at month 
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $317,861,089. 

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 0.873% with a bond 
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 0.886%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year 
totaled $143,958,000. September maturities totaled $51 million and monthly receipts totaled 
$45 million. During the month $16 million was invested. 

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they 
occur. 

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 2 basis points from 0.05% 
to 0.03% and rates on one-year T-Bills increased 1 basis point from 0.07% to 0.08%. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of September 30, 2021 
are in compliance with NCPA's investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment 
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

!~:WAR~~ 
General Manager 

Attachment: Treasurer's Report September 30, 2021 

SR: 235:21 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

TREASURERtS REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 

CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INTEREST RATENIELD ANALYSIS 

INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS 

PAGE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

APPENDIX 



NCPA FUNDS 
Operating $ 

Special Deposits 
Construction 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 
Cash & Investment Balance 

September 30, 2021 

CASH INVESTMENTS 

6,472,339 $ 126,211,610 
4,488,111 
5,148,380 

3,641 30,662,757 

1,694 160,406,378 
16,114,165 $ 317,280,745 

$ 

$ 

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 

NOTE A - Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

1 

TOTAL PERCENT 

132,683,949 39.80% 
4,488,111 1.35% 
5,148,380 1.54% 

30,666,398 9.20% 
160,408,072 48.11% 
333,394,910 100.00% 

317,861,089 



Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

RECEIPTS 

Cash Activity Summary 
September 30, 2021 

EXPENDITURES CASH 
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/ 

0PS/CONSTR (NOTE B) (NOTE A) O:PS/C0NSTR (NOTE B) :FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE) 
NCPA FUNDS 
Operating $ 41,998,287 $ 121,639 $ 41,549,097 $ (42,557,808) $ (4,897,393) $ (31,966,293) $ 4,247,529 
Special Deposits 3,327,515 (30,390,086) 27,060,821 (1,750) 
Construction 5,147,000 5,147,000 
Debt Service 1 328 (5,574,991) 5,574,418 (244) 
Special & Reserve 125,506 4,326,278 (5,404,781 ~ (668,946) (1,621,943) 

$ 45,325,802 $ 247,146 $ 51,022,703 $ (72,947,894) $ (15,877,165) $ $ 7,770,592 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments. 

2 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating 
Special Deposits 
Construction 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

Less Non- Cash Activity 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Investment Activity Summary 
September 30, 2021 

(NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS -------------GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE/ 
PURCHASED 

SOLD OR 
MATURED 

(NON-CASH) 
DISC/(PREM) 

AMORT ON SALE TRANS:F'ERS (DECREASE) 

$ 4,897,393 $ (41,549,097) $ 

(5,147,000) 
5,574,991 (328) 
5,404,781 (4,326,278) 

$ 15,877,165 $ (51,022,703) $ 

4,974 $ 

124 
652 

(22,917) 
(17,167) $ 

21,412 $ $ 

21,412 $ $ 

(36,625,318) 

(5,146,876) 
5,575,315 
1,055,586 

(35,141,293) 

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (4,245) 

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (35,145,538) 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

3 



OVERALL COMBINED 

OPERATING FUNDS: 

PROJECTS: 
Geothermal 
Capital Facilities 
Hydroelectric 

Lodi Energy Center 

KEY INTEREST RA TES 

:Fed Fds (Overnight) 
T -Bills (90da.) 
Agency Disc (90da.) 
T-Bills (lyr.) 
Agency Disc (lyr.) 
T-Notes (3yr.) 

Northern California Power Agency 
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis 

September 30, 2021 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

INTEREST 
RATE 

0.873% 

0.979% 

1.358% 

0.042% 

0.804% 

0.691% 

BOND 
EQUIVALENT 

YIELD 

0.886% 

0.908% 

1.268% 

0.043% 

0.811% 

0.563% 

INTEREST RATES 

0.75 

PRIOR 

CURRENT YEAR 

0.50 · 

0.25 
~ 

0.08% 0.09% 
0.03% 0.10% 
0.07% 0.09% 
0.08% 0.12% 
0.11% 0.15% 
0.49% 0.15% --T-Bills (90 days) - FED FUNDS 

-T-Bills(1yr) -o-T-Notes (3 yr) 

4 



Northern California Power Agency 
Total Portfolio 

Investment Maturities Analysis 
September 30, 2021 

0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10 

Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total 

US Government Agencies $ $ $ 6,914 $ 7,675 $ $ 53,100 $ 4,572 $ 72,261 
Corporate Bonds (MTN) 495 750 4,450 9,105 1,500 54,388 70,688 
Municipal Bonds 2,055 1,000 29,678 1,720 34,453 
US Bank Trust Money Market 22 22 
Commercial Paper 
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 74,999 74,999 
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 24,454 24,454 
U.S.Treasury Market Acct.* 10,174 10,174 
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 31,966 1,435 509 844 34,754 
Certificates of Deposit 10 750 500 1,260 
Total Dollars $ 110,154 $34,771 $12,799 $18,289 $ 3,094 $137,666 $6,292 $ 323,065 
Total Percents 34.09% 10.76% 3.96% 5.66% 0.96% 42.61% 1.95% 100.00% 

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands. 

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully 
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by lJS Bank is invested nightly in fully collateralized U.S. Treasury 
Securities. 

5 

Percent 

22.37% 
21.88% 
10.66% 

0.01% 
0.01% 

23.20% 
7.57% 
.3.15% 

10.76% 
0.39% 

100.00% 



Note: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Detail Report Of Investments 

APPENDIX 

This appendix has been prepared to com ply with 

Government Code section 53646. 



NCPA ,..r.,• .. rr-. ·l::!l•·~J 2";,':'i•u.:i:f"c~ 

Operating 

Issuer 

US Bank, N.A. 

Local Agency lnvestm 

First American Govt. 

US Bank 

US Bank 

California Asset Mgm 

US Bank 

Procter & Gamble 

Johnson & Johnson 

TD Ameritrade 

PepsiCo Inc. 

Apple Inc. 

American Honda Finan 

Chevron Corp. 

Visa Inc. 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Exxon Mobil Corporat 

John Deere Capital C 

Berkshire Hathaway I 

United Parcel Servic 

United Parcel Servic 

Walmart, Inc. 

Bank of NY Mellon Co 

Hershey Company 

Commonwealth of Mass 

us Bank 

Microsoft Corp. 

JP Morgan 

East Side Union High 

CA St Dept of wtr Re 

US Bank, N.A. 

Federal National Mtg 

Federal National Mtg 

State of Louisiana 

Federal Home Loan Mt 

Nashville Met Gov 

City of Phoenix AZ 

Wisconsin Dept Trans 

East Side Union High 

Federal Farm Credit 

10/06/2021 11:35 am 

Trustee / Custodian 

USB 

LAIF 

USBGC 

USB 

USB 

CMP 

USB 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

0 

33,238,107 

3,656,400 

6,472,339 

0 

24,453,216 

10,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,123,337 

500,000 

500,000 

400,000 

1.000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

600,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

0.050 

0.322 

0.002 

0.001 

0.010 

0.050 

0.050 

2.300 

2.250 

2.950 

2.250 

2.300 

2.600 

2.355 

2.800 

2.700 

2.726 

2.800 

2.750 

2.500 

2.500 

2.550 

3.500 

3.375 

0.508 

3.400 

2.000 

3.875 

0.820 

0.560 

2.800 

0.570 

0.710 

0.697 

0.700 

0.610 

0.959 

0.774 

0.940 

0.680 

09/30/2021 

Purchase 
Date 

07/01/2021 

08/24/2017 

10/19/2018 

07/07/2021 

09/20/2018 

09/20/2018 

05/15/2018 

03/21/2018 

02/01/20.18 

06/12/2018 

03121/2018 

08/03/2018 

08/03/2018 

08/03/2018 

06/12/2018 

03/21/2018 

05/15/2018 

09/21/2018 

07/31/2019 

05/15/2018 

06/12/2018 

07/09/2020 

08/03/2018 

09/20/2018 

02/15/2019 

10/29/2020 

08/06/2020 

02/07/2020 

07/30/2020 

06/04/2020 

02/25/2021 

06/25/2020 

02/18/2021 

08125/2020 

07/30/2020 

10129/2020 

08/04/2020 

Purchased 

Price 

0 

33,238,107 

3,656,400 

6,472,339 

0 

24,453,216 

Maturity 
Date 

10,000 10/07/2021 

975,770 02/06/2022 

976,140 03/03/2022 

493,385 04/01/2022 

487,005 05/02/2022 

1.121,966 05/11/2022 

488,550 11/16/2022 

485,760 12/05/2022 

394,552 12/14/2022 

974,760 01/11/2023 

985,450 03/01/2023 

489,875 03/06/2023 

492,280 03/15/2023 

483,225 04/01/2023 

483,120 04/01/2023 

507,870 04/11/2023 

501,265 04/28/2023 

503,125 05/15/2023 

500,000 07/01/2023 

1,000,000 07/24/2023 

947,350 08/08/2023 

514,550 02/01/2024 

500,000 08/01/2024 

600,000 12/01/2024 

522,560 01/27/2025 

1,000,000 01/29/2025 

1,000,000 06/04/2025 

260,000 06/15/2025 

500,000 06/25/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

1,000,000 08/01/2025 

500,000 08/04/2025 

Days to 

Maturity_ 

6 

128 

153 

182 

213 

222 

411 

430 

439 

467 

516 

521 

530 

547 

547 

557 

574 

591 

638 

661 

676 

853 

1,035 

1,157 

1,214 

1,216 

1,342 

1,353 

1,363 

1,369 

1,369 

1,369 

1,400 

1,403 

Bond* 
Equiv 
Yield 

0.050 

0.322 

0.002 

0.001 

0.010 

0.050 

0.050 

3.060 

2.982 

3.315 

2.924 

2.329 

3.157 

3.008 

3.135 

3.315 

3.068 

3.264 

3.086 

3.248 

3.308 

2.104 

3,443 

3.236 

0.507 

3.399 

3.172 

3.561 

0.878 

0.584 

1.846 

0.570 

0.710 

0,730 

0.700 

0.629 

0.990 

0.787 

0.992 

0.680 

Market Value CUSIP 

0 SYS70101 

33,238,107 SYS70000 

3,656,400 SYS70014 

6,472,339 SYS70050 

0 SYS70056 

24,453,216 SYS70070 

10,000 SYS3026 

1,007,260 742718DY2 

1,007,670 478160CD4 

504,460 87236YAE8 

504,995 713448DT2 

1,135,503 037833CQ1 

512,390 02665WCA7 

509,545 166764AB6 

410.504 92826CAC6 

1,030,300 89236TEL5 

1,030,250 30231GAR3 

517,660 24422ETG4 

515,585 084670BR8 

515,730 911312BK1 

515,730 911312BK1 

514,500 931142DH3 

524,725 06406RAG2 

523,335 427866AZ1 

501.765 57582RF84 

1,053,440 90331 HNV1 

1,029,550 594918BQ6 

537,645 46625HJT8 

500,540 275282PR6 

598,434 13067WRBO 

530.500 90331HMS9 

998.150 3136G4E74 

998.280 3136G4WA7 

258,328 546486BV2 

497,915 3134GVR26 

496.070 592112UBO 

500,645 71884AF20 

497.800 977123X78 

996,110 275282PS4 

498.225 3133EL2U7 

Investment# 

70101 

70000 

70014 

70050 

70056 

70070 

30326 

26673 

26671 

26601 

26557 

26525 

26614 

26555 

26647 

26645 

26648 

26613 

26554 

26600 

26677 

26848 

26602 

26615 

27029 

26646 

26672 

26760 

27105 

27055 

26947 

27043 

27009 

27178 

27015 

27173 

27058 

27041 

27106 

27052 

Page 1 

Ca.!!.l!!!9. Value 

0 

33,238,107 

3,656.400 

6,472,339 

0 

24,453,216 

10,000 

997,509 

997,082 

499,147 

498,149 

1,123,141 

497,091 

496,436 

398.498 

992,734 

995.497 

496,940 

497,745 

494,841 

494.408 

503,255 

500,402 

501,029 

500,000 

1,000,000 

980,024 

506,843 

500,000 

600,000 

515,074 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 



Page 2 
Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
•4; w •:°I\ · ~- ;._ .:11<>-asJ •t • J )~.•.v 

09/30/2021 

Operating 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee I Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturit~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.650 12/21/2020 1,005,200 11/1812025 1,509 0.542 995,580 3135GA4P3 27137 1,004,376 

JP Morgan USBGC 250,000 0.825 12/22/2020 250,000 12/2212025 1,543 0.825 238,208 48128GY53 27138 250,000 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 500,000 0.700 01/21/2021 500,000 01/2012026 1,572 0.699 484,775 89236THY4 27149 500,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 375,000 0.500 02/25/2021 375,000 02/2512026 1,608 0.500 371,141 3130AKXX9 27179 375,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 500,000 0.840 03/02/2021 500,000 03/02/2026 1,613 0.840 497,905 3133EMSK9 27196 500,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,100,000 0.800 03/09/2021 1,100,000 03109/2026 1,620 0.800 1,094,885 3133EMSU7 27200 1,100,000 

United Health Group USBGC 500,000 1.150 06/28/2021 501,660 05/15/2026 1,687 1.079 500,360 91324PEC2 27230 501,572 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 1,700,000 1.250 05/28/2021 1,700,000 05/28/2026 1,700 1.250 1,660,407 06048WM31 27225 1,700,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/1612026 1,749 1.050 495,455 57629WDE7 27247 503,491 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 100,000 1.272 09/23/2021 100,000 08/15/2026 1,779 1.272 99,096 088518NV3 27273 100,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.875 08/17/2021 500,000 08/17/2026 1,781 0.875 496,420 3130ANGX2 27252 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 1.150 08/17/2021 1,000,000 08/17/2026 1,781 1.150 986,650 48128G4R8 27251 1,000,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.250 08/26/2021 750,000 08/26/2026 1,790 1.250 734,745 06048WN22 27255 750,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 630,000 0.900 09/28/2021 630,000 09/28/2026 1,823 0.900 624,280 3130ANXS4 27276 630,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 98,618,399 0.648 $ 98,434,090 322 0.698 s 98,883,508 $ 98,590,346 

MPP GHG Auction Acct 

Local Agency lnvestm 81,483 0.322 81,483 1 0.322 81,483 SYS70045 70045 81,483 

Fund Total and Average $ 81,483 0.322 $ 81,483 1 0.322 $ 81,483 $ 81,483 

SCPA Balancing Account 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 14,530,348 0.322 14,530,348 1 0.322 14,530,348 SYS70022 70022 14,530,348 

First American Govt. USBGC 10,852 0.002 10,852 1 0.002 10,852 SYS70023 70023 10,852 

Microsoft Corp. USBGC 500,000 2.375 04/04/2018 492.295 02/12/2022 134 2.798 503,160 594918BA1 26574 499,273 

TD Ameritrade USBGC 500,000 2.950 04/03/2018 497,200 04/01/2022 182 3.100 504.460 87236YAE8 26571 499,650 

Home Depot Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.625 04/04/2018 494,290 06/01/2022 243 2.918 506,985 437076BG6 26572 499,085 

Public Storage USBGC 500,000 2.370 04/04/2018 483,705 09/15/2022 349 3.161 509,330 744600AB5 26573 496,499 

Visa Inc. USBGC 250,000 2.800 07/24/2018 246,975 12/14/2022 439 3.096 256,565 92826CAC6 26632 249,171 

Intel Corp USBGC 500,000 2.700 06122/2018 492,300 12/15/2022 440 3.070 514,490 458140AM2 26625 497,928 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 550,000 2.625 05/09/2018 536,294 01/10/2023 466 3.203 566,110 89233P7F7 26598 546,258 

Cisco Systems Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.600 06/22/2018 487,655 02/28/2023 515 3.170 516,670 17275RBE1 26624 496,288 

Berkshire Hathaway I USBGC 500,000 2.750 05/09/2018 490,280 03/15/2023 530 3.185 515,585 084670BR8 26596 497,083 

United Parcel Servic USBGC 500.000 2.500 06/22/2018 484,780 04/01/2023 547 3.191 515,730 911312BK1 26627 495,219 

Nike Inc USBGC 500,000 2.250 05/09/2018 480,350 05101/2023 577 3.108 513,180 654106AC7 26597 493,750 

Simon Property Group USBGC 500.000 2.750 07/24/2018 484,725 06101/2023 608 3.438 516,195 828807006 26631 494,754 

Pfizer Inc USBGC 500.000 3.000 06/22/2018 496,550 0611512023 622 3.150 522,265 7170810H3 26626 498,819 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04101/2025 1,278 0.600 536,650 586145F74 27113 540,496 

State of Wisconsin USBGC 400,000 0.650 03/1712021 400,000 0510112025 1,308 0.649 398,392 97705MUK9 27202 400,000 

Arizona Public Servi USBGC 239,000 3.150 09/25/2020 263,631 05/1512025 1,322 0.877 255,472 040555CS1 27073 258,233 

10/05/2021 11:35 am 



Page 3 
Northern California Power Agency 

, ,NCPA 
~l(:11',.. .. J' \ -4: . • .e_f•, Pt ','{" .ViJllL· 

Treasurer's Report 

09/30/2021 

SCPA Balancing Account 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturit}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
California St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 1,339 0.952 500,495 13032UXM5 27110 500,000 

City of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 1,369 0.932 497,090 059231X39 27125 500,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02118/2021 500,000 07/01/2025 1,369 0.610 496,070 592112UB0 27174 500,000 

Federal Fann Credit USBGC 2,045,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,045,000 09129/2025 1,459 0.530 2,028,579 3133EMBJ0 27077 2,045,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,050,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,050,000 09129/2025 1,459 0.530 2,019,906 3133EMBH4 27078 2,050,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500.000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/0812026 1,591 0.699 494,835 037833EB2 27168 500,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02112/2026 1,595 0.530 494,020 3130AKWA0 27164 499,782 

JP Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 0.500 02/1712021 1,000,000 02117/2026 1,600 0.500 950,180 46632FRV9 27171 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 125,000 0.500 02/25/2021 125,000 02125/2026 1,608 0.500 123,714 3130AKXX9 27180 125,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.630 02/26/2021 1,000,000 02/26/2026 1,609 0.630 991, 140 3130ALB94 27195 1,000,000 

Federal Fann Credit USBGC 500,000 0.840 03/02/2021 500,000 03/02/2026 1,613 0.840 497,905 3133EMSK9 27197 500,000 

Federal Fann Credit USBGC 1,650,000 0.800 03/09/2021 1,650,000 03109/2026 1,620 0.800 1,642,328 3133EMSU7 27201 1,650,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 500,000 1.200 06/28/2021 500,000 06/25/2026 1,728 1.199 497,140 06048WM64 27227 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/16/2026 1,749 1.050 495,455 57629\NDE7 27248 503,491 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 1,790 1.250 48,983 06048WN22 27256 50,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 33,900,200 0.944 $ 33,845,985 667 0.979 s 33,970,279 $ 33,926,979 

General Operating Reserve 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 19,699,297 0.322 19,699,297 1 0.322 19,699,297 SYS70000 70002 19,699,297 

First American Govt. USBGC 17,508 0.002 17,508 1 0.002 17,508 SYS70019 70019 17,508 

US Bank USB 0 0.000 07/0112021 0 1 0.000 0 SYS70051 70051 0 

California Asset Mgm CMP 512 0,050 12/1412018 512 1 0.050 512 SYS70071 70071 512 

NYC Transititional F USBGC 1,555,000 2.900 04/15/2020 1,593,269 1110112021 31 1.285 1,558,250 64971O7F4 26982 1,557,065 

Microsoft Corp. USBGC 400,000 2.375 04/26/2018 391,480 02112/2022 134 2.972 402,528 594918BA1 26578 399,183 

TD Ameritrade USBGC 500,000 2.950 04/26/2018 492,950 04101/2022 182 3.335 504,460 87236Y AES 26582 499,103 

Apple Inc. USBGC 4,025,452 2.300 02/01/2018 4,020,538 05/11/2022 222 2.329 4,069,048 037833CQ1 26524 4,024,750 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 3,575,000 2.125 08/28/2017 3,634,560 06/10/2022 252 1.760 3,625,837 313379069 26467 3,583,612 

PepsiCo Inc. USBGC 500,000 3.100 04/26/2018 500,310 07/17/2022 289 3.083 509,025 713448CX4 26580 500,058 

Visa Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.800 04/26/2018 492,600 12/14/2022 439 3.145 513,130 92826CAC6 26584 498,079 

US Bank, N.A. USBGC 750,000 2.850 01/30/2019 741,900 01/23/2023 479 3,140 774,285 90331HNL3 26737 747,332 

Bank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 500,000 2.950 04/26/2018 491,790 01/29/2023 485 3.325 516,480 06406RAE7 26575 497,709 

Praxair Inc USBGC 500,000 2.700 04/26/2018 488,350 02/21/2023 508 3.225 513,745 74005PBF0 26581 496,643 

Berkshire Hathaway I USBGC 500,000 2.750 04/26/2018 488,920 03/15/2023 530 3.243 515,585 084670BR8 26576 496,699 

United Parcel Servic USBGC 500,000 2.500 04/26/2018 483,135 04/01/2023 547 3.245 515,730 911312BK1 26583 494,869 

Chevron Corp. USBGC 750,000 2.566 01/30/2019 738,750 05/16/2023 592 2.939 773.633 166764BK5 26740 745,743 

Arizona Board of Reg USBGC 1,785,000 2.011 04/17/2020 1,818,897 06/01/2023 608 1.387 1,834,409 040484VN4 26984 1,803,095 

Chevron Corp. USBGC 500,000 3.191 02/07/2019 507,025 06/24/2023 631 2.847 521,190 166764AH3 26755 502,775 

Walmart, Inc. USBGC 500,000 3.400 02/07/2019 510,960 06/26/2023 633 2.864 525,665 931142EK5 26758 504,338 

Montgomery Water Wor USBGC 2,145,000 1.799 04/17/2020 2,200,234 09/01/2023 700 1,020 2,200,127 613105KV6 26985 2,176,393 

Pfizer Inc USBGC 500,000 3.200 01/30/2019 506,250 09/15/2023 714 2.908 525,880 717081EN9 26738 502,643 

Honolulu City and Co USBGC 1,770,000 2.141 04/17/2020 1,837,189 10/01/2023 730 1.020 1,829,472 4386705V9 26983 1,808,888 

10/05/2021 11:35 am 



NCPA 
• •. 1<.-:.-c,~ .. ;n" -' lfJ.J.Ptt."IJ\~ 

General Operating Reserve 

Issuer 
Citibank NA 

JP Morgan 

US Bank, N.A. 

JP Morgan 

East Side Union High 

Honolulu City and Co 

California State Uni 

JP Morgan 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

US Bank, N.A. 

WW Grainger Inc. 

WW Grainger Inc. 

Memphis Center City 

Tulsa County OK Ind. 

City of Huntsville A 

Arizona Public Servi 

Honeywell lnternatio 

County of Jasper IA 

Precision Castparts 

JP Morgan 

Federal Home Loan Mt 

City of Baltimore 

Wisconsin Dept Trans 

East Side Union High 

Federal Farm Credit 

Federal National Mtg 

Federal National Mtg 

Federal Agricultural 

Federal Farm Credit 

Federal Farm Credit 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Mt 

Bank of America Corp 

Federal Farm Credit 

Guardian Life 

JP Morgan 

Federal National Mtg 

Apple Inc. 

JP Morgan 

Charles Schwab Corp 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

10/05/2021 11:35 am 

Trustee/ Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
500,000 

500,000 

440,000 

1,000,000 

565,000 

1,500,000 

250,000 

1,500,000 

1,820,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

515,000 

264,000 

1,000,000 

420,000 

1,500,000 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

815,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,720,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,520,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

630,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

3.650 

3.875 

3.375 

1.514 

0.820 

1.832 

0.685 

2.300 

2.750 

2.800 

1.850 

1.850 

2.948 

1.500 

2.750 

3.150 

1.350 

2.350 

3.250 

1.050 

0.700 

0.845 

0.774 

0.940 

0.680 

0.600 

0.600 

0.570 

0.530 

0.530 

0.520 

0.540 

0.650 

0.560 

0.875 

0.825 

0.640 

0.700 

0.500 

0.900 

0.790 

1.010 

09/30/2021 

Purchase 
Date 

02/07/2019 

02/07/2019 

10/31/2019 

05/27/2020 

10/29/2020 

04/13/2020 

09/17/2020 

11/27/2019 

03/25/2020 

02/07/2020 

04/30/2020 

05/21/2020 

11/23/2020 

05/26/2020 

11/06/2020 

09/25/2020 

06/03/2020 

06/11/2020 

06/25/2020 

06/23/2020 

06/25/2020 

12/02/2020 

07/30/2020 

10/29/2020 

08/04/2020 

08/18/2020 

08/26/2020 

09/17/2020 

09/29/2020 

09/29/2020 

09/29/2020 

10/27/2020 

11/25/2020 

12/01/2020 

05/05/2021 

12/22/2020 

12/30/2020 

02/17/2021 

02/17/2021 

04/30/2021 

03/25/2021 

03/30/2021 

Purchased Maturity Days to 

Price Date Maturity 
507,490 01/23/2024 844 

515,120 02/01/2024 853 

462,862 02/05/2024 857 

1,006,120 06/01/2024 974 

565,000 08/01/2024 1,035 

1,522,710 08/01/2024 1,035 

250,000 11/01/2024 1,127 

1,500,000 11/27/2024 1,153 

1,981,288 12/13/2024 1,169 

522,560 01/27/2025 1,214 

516,000 02/15/2025 1,233 

514,500 02/15/2025 1,233 

550,395 04/01/2025 1,278 

1,016,450 04/01/2025 1,278 

560,351 05/01/2025 1,308 

291,208 05/15/2025 1,322 

1,023,560 06/01/2025 1,339 

443,558 06/01/2025 1,339 

1,667,985 06/15/2025 1,353 

750,000 06/23/2025 1,361 

500,000 06/25/2025 1,363 

500,000 07/01/2025 1,369 

500,000 07/01/2025 1,369 

815,000 08/01/2025 1,400 

500,000 08/04/2025 1,403 

1,000,000 08/18/2025 1,417 

1,000,000 08/26/2025 1,425 

1,000,000 09/17/2025 1,447 

2,000,000 09/29/2025 1,459 

1,720,000 09/29/2025 1,459 

1,000,000 09/29/2025 1,459 

500,000 10/27/2025 1,487 

1,000,000 11/25/2025 1.516 

500,000 12/01/2025 1.522 

1,507,384 12/10/2025 1,531 

250,000 12/22/2025 1,543 

501,000 12/30/2025 1,551 

500,000 02/08/2026 1,591 

1,000,000 02/17/2026 1,600 

625,407 03/11/2026 1,622 

997,500 03/16/2026 1,627 

1,000,000 03/30/2026 1,641 

Bond* 
Equiv 
Yield 
3.319 

3.535 

2.093 

1.356 

0.820 

1.058 

0.665 

2.386 

0.830 

1.846 

1.161 

1.217 

0.600 

1.038 

0.750 

0.877 

0.866 

1.299 

1.033 

1050 

0.700 

0.845 

0.774 

0.940 

0.680 

0.600 

0.600 

0.570 

0.530 

0.530 

0.520 

0.540 

0.798 

0.560 

1.060 

0.825 

0.599 

0.699 

0.500 

1.054 

0.841 

1.010 

Market Value CUSIP 
533,965 17325FAS7 

537,645 46625HJT8 

467,702 91159HHV5 

1,016,650 46647PBQ8 

565,610 275282PR6 

1,547,790 438687KT1 

249,860 130770MK5 

1,500,645 48128GM49 

1,945,598 3130A3GE8 

530,500 90331 HMS9 

515,345 384802AE4 

515,345 384802AE4 

536,650 586145F74 

1,023,910 899559QD3 

553,270 447025A56 

282,195 040555CS1 

1,016,370 438516CB0 

434.675 471376FJ7 

1,613,580 740189AM7 

732,045 48128GU40 

497,915 3134GVR26 

497.090 059231X39 

497,800 977123X78 

811,830 275282PS4 

498,225 3133EL2U7 

995,700 3136G4G72 

994,760 3136G4X32 

989,570 31422BV23 

1,970,640 3133EMBH4 

1,706,188 3133EMBJ0 

991.710 3130AKAZ9 

493.755 3134GW4Z6 

980.680 06048WK41 

496,055 3133EMJC7 

1,502,444 40139LBC6 

238.208 48128GY53 

496,830 3135G06Q1 

494,835 037833EB2 

950,180 46632FRV9 

624,437 808513BF1 

994,930 3130ALEL4 

998,890 3130ALTT1 

Investment# 
26756 

26757 

26906 

27007 

27107 

26980 

27072 

26912 

26962 

26951 

27000 

27005 

27114 

27006 

27112 

27074 

27008 

27011 

27017 

27024 

27016 

27126 

27042 

27108 

27053 

27056 

27060 

27071 

27079 

27080 

27081 

27104 

27122 

27124 

27223 

27139 

27141 

27169 

27172 

27220 

27203 

27213 

Page4 

Carrying Value 
503,489 

507,080 

452,579 

1,004,069 

565,000 

1,514,964 

250,000 

1,500,000 

1,929,425 

515,074 

511,260 

510,330 

540,496 

1,011,878 

551,225 

285,245 

1,017,297 

437,372 

1,625,191 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

815,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,720,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,508,497 

250,000 

500,849 

500,000 

1,000,000 

625,803 

997,760 

1,000,000 



f 'NCPA 
,,.'\11•.;1-..; ~ --i( ,.., • •.::-'~ =- 1-1i-.;c 

General Operating Reserve 

Issuer 
Oregon State Dept o 

Federal Home Loan Ba 

United Health Group 

Bank of America Corp 

Bank of America Corp 

MassMutual Global Fu 

Trustee I Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Fund Total and Average 

GRAND TOTALS: 

Stated Value 
500,000 

500,000 

550,000 

1,108,000 

1,250,000 

1,000,000 

$ 80,839,769 

$ 213,439,851 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

09/30/2021 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Rate Date Price 
1.119 04/27/2021 500,000 

0.625 04/21/2021 500,000 

1.150 06/28/2021 551 ,826 

1.250 05/28/2021 1,108,000 

1.200 06/28/2021 1,250,000 

1.200 08/02/2021 1,007,220 

1.396 $ 81,656,918 

0.979 $ 214,018,476 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 09/30/2021 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# Inv# 
26646 USS 6/23/2023 27060 FNMA Quarterly 
26848 WMT 1/11/2023 27071 FAMC Semi-annually 
26906 USBANK 1/5/2024 27072 CASHGR Anytime 
26912 JPM Quarterly starting 11/27/2021 27077 FFCB Anytime 
26947 USBANK Anytime starting 12/27/2024 27078 FFCB Anytime 
26951 USBANK Anytime starting 12/27/2024 27079 FFCB Anytime 
26960 FFCB Anytime 27080 FFCB Anytime 
26980 HON Anytime 27081 FHLB Anytime 
26982 NYCGEN Anytime 27104 FHLMC Annually starting 10/27/2022 
26983 HON Anytime 27110 CASMED Anytime 
26984 AZSHGR Anytime 27113 MEMGEN Anytime 
27007 JPM 6/1/2023 and then starting on 5/1/2024 27114 MEMGEN Anytime 
27009 FNMA Quarterly 27122 SAC 11/25/2021 
27011 JAS 6/1/2024 27124 FFCB Anytime starting 12/1/2022 
27015 FHLMC Annually 27125 BALGEN Anytime 
27016 FHLMC Annually 27126 BALGEN Anytime 
27024 JPM Quarterly starting 6/23/2024 27137 FNMA Annually starting 11/18/2022 
27029 MAS Anytime 27138 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 
27041 'MSTRN Anytime 27139 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 
27042 'MSTRN Anytime 27141 FNMA Quarterly starting 12/30/2021 
27043 FNMA Quarterly 27149 TOY 1/20/2025 and 7/20/2025 
27052 FFCB Anytime 27164 FHLB Anytime 
27053 FFCB Anytime 27168 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 
27055 CASWTR Anytime 27169 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 
27056 FNMA Quarterly starting 8/18/2022 27171 JPM Quarterly starting 2/17/2023 
27058 PHOGEN Anytime 

10/05/2021 11:35 am 

Page 5 

Bond• 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Maturit}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
04/01/2026 1,643 1.119 500,305 68607V2Q7 27216 500,000 

04/21/2026 1,663 1.084 501,565 3130AL.XR0 27215 500,000 

05/15/2026 1,687 1.079 550,396 91324PEC2 27232 551,729 

05/28/2026 1,700 1.250 1,082,195 06048WM31 27226 1,108,000 

06/25/2026 1,728 1.199 1,242,850 06048WM64 27228 1,250,000 

07/16/2026 1,749 1.050 990,910 57629WDE7 27249 1,006,981 

793 1.133 $ 81,656,039 $ 81,372,887 

556 0.908 $ 214,591,309. $ 213,971,695 

Inv# 
27172 JPM Quarterly starting 2/17/2023 
27178 LOUIS Anytime 
27179 FHLB 2/25/2022 
27180 FHLB 2/25/2022 
27180 FFCB Anytime 
27195 FHLB Quarterly 
27196 FFCB Anytime 
27197 FFCB Anytime 
27200 FFCB Anytime starting 3/9/2023 
27201 FFCB Anytime starting 3/9/2023 
27202 WIS Anytime 
27203 FHLB Quarterly 
27213 FHLB Quarterly 
27215 FHLB 4/21/2023 only 
27216 ORSGEN Anytime 
27220 SCHW 2/11/2026 
27225 BAC Semi-annually starting 05/28/2022 
27226 BAC Semi-annually starting 05/28/2022 
27227 BAC Semi-annually starting 06/25/2022 
27228 BAC Semi-annually starting 06/25/2022 
27251 JPM Annually starting 8/17/2023 
27252 FHLB Quarterly starting 8/17/2022 
27255 BAC Semi-annually starting 08/26/2022 
27256 SAC Semi-annually starting 08/26/2022 
27276 FHLB Callable quarterly starting 9/28/2022 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

N .CPA Treasurer's Report 
"'P~il\.;... ; .... ._.( ~• ;:1:a .#-,#!' () 

09/30/2021 

Geo 2012A Debt Service 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Ca~ing Value 

U.S. Treasury USBT 126,000 0.030 07/23/2021 125,983 12/30/2021 90 0.030 125,987 912796A90 27235 125,991 

U.S. Treasury USBT 124.000 0.030 08/27/2021 123,987 12/30/2021 90 0.030 123,988 912796A90 27260 123,991 

U.S. Treasury USBT 124,000 0.019 09/28/2021 123,993 01/04/2022 95 0.020 123,990 912796Q51 27277 123,993 

Fund Total and Average $ 374,000 0.027 $ 373,963 92 0.027 $ 373,965 $ 373,975 

Geo 201 GA Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 290,000 0.030 07/23/2021 289,961 12/30/2021 90 0.030 289,971 912796A90 27236 289.978 

U.S. Treasury USBT 290,000 0.030 08/27/2021 289,970 12/30/2021 90 0.030 289,971 912796A90 27261 289,978 

U.S. Treasury USBT 289,000 0,019 09/28/2021 288,984 01/04/2022 95 0.020 288.977 912796Q51 27278 288,985 

Fund Total and Average $ 869,000 0.027 $ 868,915 92 0.027 $ 868,919 $ 868,941 

Geothermal Special Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 0.002 5.000 1 0.002 5,000 SYS70015 70015 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 1,498 0.460 1,475,640 3135G06G3 27167 1,497,426 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.498 $ 1,502,796 1493 0.458 $ 1,480,640 $ 1,502,426 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 150,641 0.322 150,641 1 0.322 150,641 SYS70027 70027 150,641 

First American Govt. USBGC 2,846 0.002 2,846 1 0.002 2,846 SYS70034 70034 2,846 

PNC Bank NA USBGC 750,000 2.550 03/15/2018 735,450 12/09/2021 69 3.103 751,763 69353REY0 26553 749,264 

Apple Inc. USBGC 861,211 2.300 11/29/2017 860,117 05/11/2022 222 2.329 870,538 037833CQ1 26499 861,061 

University of Califo USBGC 1,000,000 2.312 04/30/2020 1,024,800 05/15/2022 226 1.080 1,012,630 91412G2T1 27001 1,007,558 

Wells Fargo Bank USBGC 250,000 3.150 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2022 333 3.154 257,020 949763TL0A 30311 250,000 

Great North Bank USBGC 250,000 3.050 08/31/2018 250,000 08/31/2022 334 3.051 256,788 39103QAF3A 30310 250,000 

Discover Bank USBGC 250,000 3.150 09/06/2018 250,000 09/06/2022 340 3.152 257,138 254673TM8A 30313 250,000 

John Deere Capital C USBGC 750,000 2.800 03/15/2018 739,748 01/27/2023 483 3.104 774,960 24422ERT8 26550 747,215 

Bank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 750,000 2.950 03/15/2018 740,610 01/29/2023 485 3.229 774,720 06406RAE7 26549 747,441 

Crook County School USBGC 355,000 1.563 05/07/2020 356,211 06/15/2023 622 1.450 360,552 227183DH0 27003 355,665 

Solano County CCD USBGC 385,000 5.500 04/09/2020 434,938 08/01/2023 669 1.471 420,262 83412PCN0 26978 412,650 

Enerbank USA USBGC 250,000 3.200 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2023 698 3.203 263,668 29278TCP3A 30309 250,000 

Citibank NA USBGC 250,000 3.300 09/07/2018 250,000 09/07/2023 706 3.301 264,250 17312QS34A 30314 250,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 1,590,000 0.875 04/08/2020 1,590,000 04/08/2024 920 0.875 1,594,516 3133ELVX9 26976 1,590,000 

Sacramento Suburban USBGC 330,000 3.480 04/09/2020 349,473 11/01/2024 1,127 1.846 345,230 78607QAY1 26977 343,164 

WW Grainger Inc. USBGC 425,000 1.850 04/30/2020 438,600 02/15/2025 1,233 1.161 438,043 384802AE4 27002 434,571 

California St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 1,339 0.952 500,495 13032UXM5 27111 500,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.710 06/04/2020 1,000,000 06/04/2025 1,342 0.710 998,280 3136G4WA7 27010 1,000,000 

10/06/2021 11:35 am 



Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
•t1• '~ u•~ · ·s , ... ,. •.. · , -;~\'''" ,• i l•· , 

09/30/2021 

Geo Decommissioning Reserve 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price 
Houston Airport Sys USBGC 750,000 1.372 10/20/2020 750,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02/18/2021 500,000 

East Side Union High USBGC 1,000,000 0.940 10/29/2020 1,000,000 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBGC 1,000,000 0.540 09/15/2020 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 565,000 0.530 09/29/2020 565,000 

Federal Home Loan Mt USBGC 1,500,000 0.530 10/15/2020 1,500,000 

Guardian Life USBGC 505,000 0.875 05/05/2021 500,809 

Apple Inc. USBGC 1,000,000 0.700 02/08/2021 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 500,000 0.840 03/02/2021 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.200 06/28/2021 750,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 

New York City Genera USBGC 585,000 2.040 04/30/2021 583,204 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 02/10/2021 1,000,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 972,000 1.460 02/18/2021 972,000 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 600,000 1.460 07/30/2021 598,800 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 2,000,000 1.740 07129/2021 2,006,440 

Marin Community Coll USBGC 500,000 1.710 09/1412021 506,610 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 385,000 2.134 0912312021 385,000 

County of Bexar TX USBGC 250,000 2.134 09/23/2021 250,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 25,011,698 1.562 $ 25,091,297 

Geo 2012A.DSR Account 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,622,000 0.020 09/28/2021 1,621,943 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,622,000 0.020 $ 1,621,943 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 29,376,698 1.358 $ 29,458,914 

*Bond Equivalent Yleld to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 09/30/2021 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# Inv# 
26976 FFCB Anytime starting 4/8/2022 27163 FHLB Quarterly 
26977 SCRWTR Anytime 27177 FAMC Semi-annually starting 2/18/2022 
27001 UNVHGR Anytime 27198 FFCB Anytime 
27010 FNMA Quarterly 27218 JPM Annually starting 4/30/2023 
27070 FHLMC Quarterly starting 9/15/2022 27219 NYC Anytime 
27082 FFCB Anytime 27229 BAC Semi-annually starting 6/25/2022 
27101 FHLMC Annually starting 10/15/2021 27245 FHLB Anytime starting 7/9/2022 
27111 CASMED Anytime 27246 FAMC Semi-annually starting 2/18/2022 
27162 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27258 BAC Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 

10/05/2021 11:35 am 

Page 2 

Bond* 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Maturit~ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
07/01/2025 1,369 1.372 761 ,220 442349EM4 27102 750,000 

07/01/2025 1,369 0.610 496,070 592112UBO 27175 500,000 

08/01/2025 1,400 0.940 996,110 275282PS4 27109 1,000,000 

09/15/2025 1,445 0.540 988,720 3134GWL38 27070 1,000,000 

09/29/2025 1,459 0.530 556,706 3133EMBH4 27082 565,000 

10/15/2025 1,475 0.530 1,480,695 3134GWY34 27101 1,500,000 

12/10/2025 1,531 1.060 499,167 40139LBC6 27224 501,178 

02/0812026 1,591 0.700 989,670 037833EB2 27162 1,000,000 

03/02/2026 1,613 0.840 497,905 3133EMSK9 27198 500,000 

04/30/2026 1,672 1.200 491 ,215 48128G3G3 27218 500,000 

06/25/2026 1,728 1.199 745,710 06048WM64 27229 750,000 

08/26/2026 1,790 1.250 48,983 06048WN22 27258 50,000 

03/01/2030 3,073 2.078 586,468 64966QUX6 27219 583,289 

02/10/2031 3,419 1.360 967,670 3130AKX76 27163 1,000,000 

02/18/2031 3,427 1.460 956,895 31422XAU6 27177 972,000 

02/18/2031 3,427 1.482 590,676 31422XAU6 27246 598,821 

07/29/2031 3,588 1.704 1,966,060 3130AN7G9 27245 2,006,329 

08!01/2031 3,591 1.565 490.940 56781RKZ9 27272 506,578 

08/15/2031 3,605 2.134 382,247 088518PA7 27274 385,000 

08/15/2031 3,605 2.134 248,213 088518NH4 27275 250,000 

1658 1.459 $ 25,035,680 $ 25,070,271 

11/3012021 60 0.020 1,621 ,886 912796N88 27286 1,621,946 

60 0.020 $ 1,621,886 $ 1,621,946 

1496 1.268 $ 29,381,090. $ 29,437,559 



.. NCPA 
4' . i~-•i'-{ ' t. r,r, · ;~ ':'.:\T • 

Cap Facilities 2019A Debt Svc 

Issuer 

US Bank Trust 

U.S. Treasury 

U.S. Treasury 

Trustee / Custodian 

USBT 

USBT 

USBT 

Fund Total and Average 

GRAND TOTALS: 

Stated Value 

1,086 

423.000 

421 .000 

$ 845,086 

$ 845,086 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

09/30/2021 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Rate Date Price 

0.010 1,086 

0.045 08/27/2021 422,830 

0.040 09/28/2021 420,865 

0.042 $ 844,781 

0.042 $ 844,781 

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 09/30/2021 

10/05/2021 11:36 am 

Page 1 

Bond* 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Ca~ing Value 

1 0.010 1,086 SYS79017 79017 1,086 

07/14/2022 286 0.045 422,763 912796K57 27265 422,849 

07/14/2022 286 0.040 420,764 912796K57 27282 420,866 

286 0.043 $ 844,613 $ 844,801 

286 0.043 $ 844,613. $ 844,801 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Jr 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
'."ti:P_,.,_.~ :t~ ~('11-.,.... •c·•.•r i.·a-.r 

09/30/2021 

Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 

Local Agency lnvestm LAIF 5,656,228 0.322 5,656,228 1 0.322 5,656,228 SYS70028 70028 5,656,228 

First American Govt. USBGC 0 0.002 0 1 0.002 0 SYS70031 70031 0 

Branch Banking & Tru USBGC 500,000 2.625 0611312018 488,420 0111512022 106 3.314 502,445 07330NAQ8 26618 499,068 

Exxon Mobil Corporal USBGC 500,000 2.397 06/13/2018 490,350 03/06/2022 156 2.946 502,830 30231GAJ1 26621 498,886 

US Bank USBGC 550.000 3,000 08/10/2018 546,607 03/15/2022 165 3.182 555,682 91159HHC7 26651 549,570 

Public Storage USBGC 500,000 2.370 03/14/2018 485,770 09/15/2022 349 3.051 509,330 74460DAB5 26546 496,980 

Visa Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.800 03/14/2018 494,470 12/14/2022 439 3.051 513,130 92826CAC6 26547 498,600 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 500,000 2.700 06/13/2018 489,100 01/11/2023 467 3.215 515,150 89236TEL5 26619 496,958 

United Parcel Servic USBGC 500,000 2.500 06/13/2018 484,900 04/01/2023 547 3.182 515,730 911312BK1 26620 495,281 

Colgate-Palmolive Co USBGC 550,000 2.100 08/09/2018 528,660 05/01/2023 577 2.985 564,977 19416QECO 26652 542,853 

J Paul Getty Trust USBGC 1,000,000 0.391 01/28/2021 1,000,000 01/01/2024 822 0.401 995,840 374288AB4 27161 1,000,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 250,000 1.030 12/17/2020 250,000 08/01/2024 1,035 1.029 251,385 592090GB4 27134 250,000 

Califorina Infra & E USBGC 100,000 0.645 12/17/2020 100,000 10/01/2024 1,096 0.683 99,919 13034AL57 27135 100,000 

Walmart, Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.650 02/07/2020 520,975 12/15/2024 1,171 1.744 530,530 931142DV2 26950 513,847 

Bank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 545,000 1.600 04/30/2021 561,197 04/24/2025 1,301 0.839 557,094 06406RAN7 27221 559,492 

Federal Agricultural USBGC 500,000 0.675 05/19/2020 500,000 05/19/2025 1,326 0.675 499,510 31422BA26 27004 500,000 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 250,000 1.230 12/17/2020 250,000 08/01/2025 1,400 1.229 251,365 592090GC2 27133 250,000 

City of El Paso TX USBGC 500,000 4,346 12/07/2020 553,420 08/15/2025 1,414 1.950 534,145 283734TC5 27131 544.116 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 440,000 0.600 08/26/2020 440,000 08/26/2025 1,425 0.600 437,694 3136G4X32 27059 440,000 

Califorina Infra & E USBGC 130,000 0.765 12/17/2020 130,000 10/01/2025 1,461 0.765 129,198 13034AL65 27132 130,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 1,000,000 0.650 1112512020 1,000,000 11/25/2025 1,516 0.798 980,680 06048WK41 27121 1,000,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.650 12/1712020 500,850 12/10/2025 1,531 0.615 496,025 3135G06J7 27136 500,715 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 0.825 12/22/2020 500,000 12/22/2025 1,543 0.825 476,415 48128GY53 27140 500,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.640 01/06/2021 501,550 12/30/2025 1.551 0.576 496,830 3135G06Q1 27148 501,321 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02/12/2026 1,595 0.530 494,020 3130AKWAO 27165 499,782 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.500 02/25/2021 500,000 02/25/2026 1,608 0.500 494,855 3130AKXX9 27181 500,000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.625 04/2112021 500,000 04/21/2026 1.663 1.084 501 ,565 3130ALXRO 27214 500,000 

United Health Group USBGC 500,000 1.150 06/28/2021 501,660 05/15/2026 1,687 1.082 500,360 91324PEC2 27231 501.572 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.875 08/17/2021 500,000 08/17/2026 1.781 0.875 496,420 3130ANGX2 27253 500.000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 1.050 08/24/2021 500,000 08/24/2026 1.788 0.967 499,385 3130ANFT2 27254 500,000 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 1,790 1.250 48,983 06048WN22 27257 50,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 19,521,228 1.162 $ 19,523,907 794 1.179 $ 19,607,720 $ 19,575,269 

Hydro Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 7,871,000 0.030 07/23/2021 7,869,951 12/30/2021 90 0.030 7,870,213 912796A90 27237 7,870,410 

U.S. Treasury USBT 614,000 0.030 08/27/2021 613,936 12/30/2021 90 0.030 613,939 912796A90 27262 613,954 

U.S. Treasury USBT 613,000 0.019 09/28/2021 612,967 01/04/2022 95 0.020 612,951 912795Q51 27279 612,968 

Fund Total and Average $ 9,098,000 0.029 $ 9,096,854 90 0.030 $ 9,097,103 $ 9,097,332 

10/05/2021 11:36 am 



Page 2 
Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
_, '."'~r.fP1¥' •":f• .1 =>:,~; • ~<;f'1C:; 

09/30/2021 

Hydro 2018A Debt Service 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturit}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Ca!'.!Xin9 Value 

Hydro 201 SA Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,147,000 0.029 07/23/2021 1,146,847 12/30/2021 90 0.030 1,146,885 912796A90 27238 1,146,914 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1, 145,000 0.030 08/27/2021 1,144,881 12/30/2021 90 0.030 1,144,886 912796A90 27263 1,144,914 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,146,000 0.019 09/28/2021 1,145,938 01/04/2022 95 0.020 1,1 45,908 912796Q51 27280 1,145,940 

Fund Total and Average $ 3,438,000 0.027 $ 3,437,666 92 0.027 $ 3,437,679 $ 3,437,768 

Hydro 2019A Debt Service 

U.S. Treasury USBT 814,000 0.029 07/23/2021 813,891 12/30/2021 90 0.030 813,919 91 2796A90 27239 813.939 

U.S. Treasury USBT 813,000 0.030 08/27/2021 812,915 12/30/2021 90 0.030 812,919 91 2796A90 27264 812.939 

U.S. Treasury USBT 814,000 0.020 09/28/2021 813,956 01/04/2022 95 0.020 813,935 912796Q51 27281 813.957 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,441,000 0.027 $ 2,440,762 92 0.027 $ 2,440,773 $ 2,440,835 

Hydro 2012A Rebate Account 

U.S. Treasury USBT 747,000 0.035 08/27/2021 746,874 02/17/2022 139 0.035 746,866 912796L80 27269 746,899 

Fund Total and Average $ 747,000 0.035 $ 746,874 139 0.035 $ 746,866 $ 746,899 

Hydro Special Reserve 

First American Govt. USBGC 5,000 0.002 5,000 1 0.002 5,000 SYS70016 70016 5,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 1,498 0.460 1,475,640 3135G06G3 27166 1,497,426 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.498 $ 1,502,796 1493 0.458 $ 1,480,640 $ 1,502,426 

Hydro 2012 OSRA 

Federal Home Loan Mt USB 3,928,000 2.375 02/09/2012 3,926,232 01/13/2022 104 2.380 3,953,689 3137EADB2 25852 3,927,950 

U.S. Treasury USBT 387,000 0.030 04/28/2021 386,892 03/24/2022 174 0.030 386,911 912796F38 27217 386,943 

U.S. Treasury USBT 301,000 0.020 07/23/2021 300,959 03/24/2022 174 0.020 300,931 912796F38 27243 300,971 

Fund Total and Average $ 4,616,000 2.025 $ 4,614,083 114 2.029 $ 4,641,531 $ 4,615,864 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 41,361,228 0.804 $ 41,362,942 477 0.811 $ 41,452,312. s 41,416,393 

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 
Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 09/30/2021 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# 27132 FFCB Anytime 27181 FHLB 2/25/2022 only 
26950 WMT Anytime starting 10/15/2024 27135 CASDEV Anytime 27214 FHLB 4/21/2023 only 
27004 FAMCA Semi-annually starting 5/19/2022 27136 FNMA Quarterly 27221 BK 3/24/2025 
27059 FNMA Quarterly 27140 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 27253 FHLB Quarterly starting 8/17/2022 
27121 BAG 11/25/2021 only 27161 JPGETY Anytime starting 10/1/2023 27254 FHLB Monthly 
27131 ELPASO Callable annually starting 8/15/2023 27165 FHLB Anytime 27257 BAC Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 

10/05/2021 11:36 am 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
,r..-.. ttt,_!t~:!"t' ·• ;>i;_,~1.Jflo:, 

09/30/2021 

LEC GHG Auction Acct 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Ca~in2 Value 

Local Agency lnvestm 85.145 0.322 85,145 1 0.322 85,145 SYS70046 70046 85,145 

Fund Total and Average $ 85,145 0.322 $ 85,145 1 0.322 $ 85,145 $ 85,145 

LEC Issue #1 201 OB DS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 119 0.010 119 1 0.010 119 SYS79004 79004 119 

U.S. Treasury USBT 4,988,000 0.030 07/23/2021 4,987,476 11/26/2021 56 0.030 4,987,701 912796H77 27240 4,987,767 

U.S. Treasury USBT 722,000 0.035 08/27/2021 721,936 11/26/2021 56 0.035 721 .957 912796H77 27266 721.961 

U.S. Treasury USBT 721 ,000 0.019 09/28/2021 720,975 11/30/2021 60 0.020 720,950 912796N88 27283 720.976 

Fund Total and Average $ 6,431,119 0.029 $ 6,430,506 56 0.030 $ 6,430,727 $ 6,430,823 

LEC Issue #2 2010B DS Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 610 0.010 610 1 0.010 610 SYS79012 79012 610 

U.S. Treasury USBT 2,940,000 0.030 07/23/2021 2,939,691 11/26/2021 56 0.030 2,939,824 912796H77 27241 2,939,863 

U.S. Treasury USBT 780,000 0.035 08/27/2021 779,931 11/26/2021 56 0.035 779,953 912796H77 27267 779,958 

U.S. Treasury USBT 780,000 0.020 09/28/2021 779,973 11/30/2021 60 0.020 779,945 912796N88 27284 779,974 

Fund Total and Average $ 4,500,610 0.029 $ 4,500,205 57 0.030 $ 4,500,332 $ 4,500,405 

LEC lssue#1 2017 A DS Fund 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,334,000 0.030 07/23/2021 1,333,860 11/26/2021 56 0.030 1,333,920 912796H77 27242 1,333,938 

U.S. Treasury USBT 667,000 0.034 08/27/2021 666,941 11/26/2021 56 0.035 666,960 912796H77 27268 666,964 

U.S. Treasury USBT 667,000 0.019 09/28/2021 666,977 11/30/2021 60 0.020 666,953 912796N88 27285 666,978 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,668,000 0.029 $ 2,667,778 57 0.029 $ 2,667,833 $ 2,667,880 

LEC Issue #1 2010 DSR Fund 

US Bank Trust USB 18,873 0.010 18,873 1 0.010 18,873 SYS79005 79005 18,873 

Federal Home Loan Ba USB 4,100,000 2.125 08/28/2017 4,168,306 06/10/2022 252 1.760 4,158,302 313379069 26463 4,109,877 

U.S. Treasury USBT 509,000 0.035 07/23/2021 508,835 06/16/2022 258 0.036 508,771 912796J42 27244 508,870 

Federal Farm Credit USBT 4,430,000 0.840 03/02/2021 4,430,000 03/02/2026- 1,613 0.840 4,411,438 3133EMSK9 27199 4,430.000 

Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 150,000 0.875 08/27/2021 150,528 06/12/2026 1,715 0.799 149,517 3130AN4T4 27270 150,518 

Fund Total and Average $ 9,207,873 1.367 $ 9,276,542 930 1.203 $ 9,246,901 $ 9,218,138 

LEC lss#1 201 OB BABS Subs Resv 

US Bank Trust USB 902 0.010 07/01/2021 902 1 0.010 902 SYS79006 79006 902 

10/05/2021 11:37 am 



Page 2 
Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA Treasurer's Report 
~"••".. fr\ ; ~- icr. • :.Ci,.-,n>1-u'i'r 

09/30/2021 

LEC lss#1 20108 BABS Subs Resv 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
Issuer Trustee/ Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturit)'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment# Carrying Value 
U.S. Treasury USBT 2,369,000 0.019 09(28/2021 2,368,917 11/30/2021 60 0.020 2,368,834 912796N88 27287 2,368,921 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,369,902 0.020 $ 2,369,819 60 0.020 $ 2,369,736 $ 2,369,823 

LEC Issue #2 201 OB DSR BABS 

US Bank Trust USB 845 0.010 845 1 0.010 845 SYS79013 79013 845 

U.S. Treasury USBT 1,142,000 0.035 08/27/2021 1,141,899 11/26/2021 56 0.035 1,141,931 912796H77 27271 1,141,938 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,142,845 0.035 $ 1,142,744 56 0.035 $ 1,142,776 $ 1,142,783 

LEC O & M Reserve 

Local Agency lnvestm 1,557,826 0.322 1,557,826 1 0.322 1,557,826 SYS70047 70047 1,557,826 

First American Govt. USBGC 3,763 0.002 3,763 1 0.002 3,763 SYS70041 70041 3,763 

Toyota Motor Credit USBGC 495,000 1.800 02/03/2020 496,995 10/07/2021 6 1.555 495.054 89236TGJ8 26953 495,020 

Memphis Center City USBGC 500,000 5.530 04/27/2020 533,880 11/01/2021 31 1.000 502,015 58607ECD4 26986 501,868 

US Bank, N.A. USBGC 595,000 2.650 05/31/2019 598,290 05/23/2022 234 2.456 603,169 90331HPC1 26822 595,712 

Caterpillar Financia USBGC 465,000 3.250 02/03/2020 496,569 12/01/2024 1,157 1.776 502.930 14912L6G1 26952 485,707 

Nashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02/18/2021 500,000 07/01/2025 1,369 0.610 496,070 592112UB0 27176 500,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 07/30/2020 1,001,000 07/29/2025 1,397 0.579 992,260 3136G4O75 27047 1,000,766 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 2,000,000 0.670 08/04/2020 2,000,000 08/04/2025 1,403 0.670 1,993,340 3133EL2S2 27054 2,000,000 

Federal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 1,417 0.600 995,700 3136G4G72 27057 1,000,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 750,000 0.530 09/29/2020 750,000 09/29/2025 1,459 0.530 738,990 3133EMBH4 27083 750,000 

Federal Farm Credit USBGC 670,000 0.530 09/29/2020 670,000 09/29/2025 1,459 0.530 664,620 3133EMBJ0 27084 670,000 

Apple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 1.591 0.699 494,835 037833EB2 27170 500,000 

JP Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 1,672 1.200 491,215 48128G3G3 27222 500,000 

MassMutual Global Fu USBGC 1,000,000 1.200 · 08/02/2021 1,007,220 07/16/2026 1.749 1.050 990.910 57629WDE7 27250 1,006,981 

Bank of America Corp USBGC 100,000 1.250 08/26/2021 100,000 08/26/2026 1,790 1.250 97,966 06048WN22 27259 100,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 11,636,589 1.132 $ 11,715,543 1086 0.841 $ 11,620,663 $ 11,667,643 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 38,042,083 0.691 $ 38,188,282 583 0.563 $ 38,064,113. $ 38,082,640 

•Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity Is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

Current Market Value Is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 09/30/2021 

Callable Dates: 
Inv# 
26822 USB Anytime starting 4/22/2022 
27047 FHLMC Quarterly starting 7/29/2022 
27054 FFCB Anytime 
27057 FNMA Quarterly starting 8/18/2022 
27083 FFCB Anytime 
27084 FFCB Anytime 
27170 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 
27199 FFCB Anytime 
27222 JPM Annually starting 4/30/2023 
27259 BAC Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 

10/05/2021 11:37 am 



PUBLIC AGE~CY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks ~~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General Manager N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 241:21 



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property 
October 28, 2021 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission note and file the 
report by all members for the disposal of the following: 

• 2002 Ford pick-up truck from the Hydro Plant 

BACKGROUND: 

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment 
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days 
of such action. 

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being 
obsolete and having no value to the Agency. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

l~!wl~ 
General Manager 

Attachments: Declarations of Surplus 
Receipts of disposal 

SR: 241:21 



'CPA 
~AUFORNIA-POWER .AGENCY 

3/11121 ·Date: ____ _ 
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS 

~·-· . -- - - :-- -· AT -

DESCRIPTION ESTl:MATED VALUE NCPA Property 
QTY U/M* (Including All App.licable COND** or Project# SITE 

Model#~s, LCNs & VINs} UNIT TOTAL LOCATION 
I. 

1 2002 Ford Pickup Truck p 1 1,000 Murphys 

2. 

3. 

4. 
I 

5. I 

6. 

7. 

8. 

JLJSTI FJCA TION FOR SURPLUS/DISPOSAL: 

The vehicle is 19 years old, the bed of the truck is rusting out, and there have·been chronic mechanical problems over many years despite multiple trips to the 
mechanic to correct a variety of issues. Staff have expressed that they do not feel safe driving the vehicle due to its mechanical issues. Further, the vehicle is 
undersized for any real utility such as hauling any load or towing a snowcat and is not useful for anything other than casual trips. 
NCPA Asset ID: #594 VIN: 1 FTRF18LX2NA28453 License Plate: 1107855 DI 

RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION: 
PREPARED BY: ~~ 3,15-2.l @AJtv¼l ]~/ NEGOTIATED (Private) SALE __ 

PUBLIC SALE: SEALED BIDS AUCTION 
ORG 

APPROVEDBY: '-[" ~ CODE: 650 DISPOSAi,: _{_ SCRAP/RECYCLE VALUE NO VALUE-TRASH/JUNK 
DISPOSITION JUSTIFICATION: 

AUTHORIZATIO 
TO PROCEED: ~ ~':1 L I ~ - \ DATE: ~ ti 

This vehicle will be used for trade-in value during the next vehicle procurement. 

I 

-

-

** CQNDITIO~ EXCELLENT {E}, GOOD (G), AVERAGE {A), PQ;OR {Pl, SCRAP {S} 

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROLLER 

ATTACHMENT l 





{fiUPoVP/2rl£{1 
650 Automall Drive • Roseville, CA 95661 

916 .. 786--3673 

Deal# 240747 

Stock# CV093420AZ 

NOTICE OF RELEASE OF LIABILITY 

1FTRF18LX2NA28453 
VEfUCLE ur IH!LL IDENTIFlf'A TION NUMBER 

2002 
YEAR 

Mail 
Completed 
Form To: 

F150 
MODEL 

Dept. or Motor Vehicles 
P.O. Box 942859 
Sacramento., CA 94259-0001 

VEHICLE LICENSE NO. or vr:.SSHL CF NO. 

FORD 
MA.KL 

BODY TYPE 

ENTER Oll<l:\IBTER 

READING JI f:RR 

IN MILES 

YOUR LIABILITY FOR THlS VEHICLE .MAY NOT BE RELEASED IF YOU 
SUBMIT ILLEGIBLE OR INCOMPLETE INFORMATION. 

FUTURE FORD LINCOLN 
BUYERS PULL NAME (LAST) 

650 AUTO MALL DA. 
ADDRESS 

ROSEVILLE 
CITY 

N CALIF POWER AGENCY 
SELLERS FULL NAME (LAST1 

477 BRETT HARTE DR 
SELLERS ADDRESS 

MURPHYS 

(MIDDLEl 

DATE 

CA OF 
__ 95_6_6_1 ___ SALE 09/10/2021 

STATE ZIP CODE MONTH l DAY I YnAR 

tPlRSTl !MIDDLE) 

CA 95247 s 3500.00 --------SELLING PRICE 



CPA 
ALIFORN IA POWER AG ENCY 

2022 Committee Meeting Calendar 

Facilities/ LEC PPC Finance Utility Legal L&R Affairs Executive 
Pooling Committee Committee Directors Committee Committee Committee 

Committees 10:00 am 10:30 am 9:00am 8:30am 12:00 pm 8:00am 
9:00am 

January 20 

January 5 January 10 January 13 January 6 Sacramento 
7:30 am 

February 2 February 7 February 8 February 10 February 3 February 23 February 24 

March 2 March 7 March 10/11 March 3 March 23 March 24 

April 6 April 11 April 14 April 7 April 28 

May4 May9 MaylO May 12 Mays 
May26 

Healdsburg 

June 1 June 6 June 9 June 2 June 23 

July 6 July 11 July 14 July 7 
July 23 

Murphys 

August 3 August 8 August 9 August 11 August 4 August 24 August 25 

September 21 September 21 September 23 
September 7 September 12 September 8 Olympic Valley Olympic Valley Olympic Valley 

2:00 pm 3:00 pm 7:30 am 

October 5 October 10 October 11 October 13 October 27 

November 2 November 7 November 15 November 10 November 3 November 30 

December 7 
December December 8 

December 8 December 1 
12 9:30 am 

*Commission Packet mailed the Thursday or Friday prior to the meeting date. 

NCPA CONFERENCES/ EVENTS in 2022: 

NCPA 101 Presentation in Sacramento: January 18 
NCPA Strategic Issues Conference in Sacramento: January 19 

Capitol Day in Sacramento: February 7 
NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference in Washington, DC: April 3-6 

Item 13 

*Commission 
9:30am 

January 20 
Sacramento 

9:00 am 

February 24 

March 24 

April 28 

May26 
Healdsburg 

June 23 

July 23 
Murphys 

August 25 

September 23 
Olympic Valley 

10:00 am 

October 27 

December 1 

NCPA Annual Conference at the Resort at Squaw Creek in Olympic Valley: September 21-23 

SR: 225:21 



PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and 
Letters for the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General N/A 
Manager/CFO 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville . □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 236:21 



Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters 
October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Northern California Power Agency staff and the Finance Committee recommend that the 
Commission accept and file the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report 
and Letters for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

BACKGROUND: 

On October 12, 2021, the Finance Committee held a meeting to review the Northern California 
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations (collectively "NCPA") Financial Statements 
and Associated Audit Report and Letters for fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020. The 
audit partner from NCPA's audit firm, Baker Tilly, reviewed the highlights of the financial 
statements and answered questions from the Committee. The financial report was given an 
unmodified or "clean" opinion by the auditors. No evidence of fraud or illegal acts were noted in 
the course of the audit. In addition, the auditors presented a Power Point (copy is attached) 
which includes required communications by the auditor. Additional auditor reports include an 
internal control letter, negative assurance letters for bond indentures, NCPA's investment policy, 
and State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements. Copies of these letters are attached to 
this report. Nothing of significance was noted in any of the letters. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This financial report for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 has no direct budget impact to 
NCPA; it reports on the fiscal impacts for the last fiscal year. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 12 and was 
recommended for Commission approval by a unanimous vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

3=:1w~Dlh 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
Baker Tilly correspondence dated October 7, 2021 
o Required communicationsfiy the Auditor to those charged with governance 
o Compliance with Bond Indentures Letter 
o Compliance with Investment Policy Letter 
o Compliance with State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements Letter 

- PowerPoint presented to Finance Committee by auditors on October 12, 2021 

SR: 236:21 



To the Commissioners of 
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations 
Roseville, California 

@ bakertilly 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power 
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2021. 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to 
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the Indentures of Trust for the bonds described 
in Attachment A between U.S. Bank and the Agency, insofar as they relate to financial and accounting 
matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention 
regarding the Agency's noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions 
of the Indenture, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners of the Agency and 
U.S. Bank, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Madison, Wisconsin 
October 7, 2021 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. 



CG bakertilly 
Attachment A 

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, dated September 2012 

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series A, dated September 2016 

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series A, dated April 2008 

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2012 Refunding Series A & B, dated February 2012 

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A, dated March 2018 

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A, dated April 2019 

> Capital Facilities Project Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A, dated December 2019 

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 201 O Series B, dated June 2010 

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two, 2010 Series B, dated June 2010 

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2017 Series A, dated December 2017 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. 



To the Commissioners of 
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations 
Roseville, California 

CG bakertilly 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power 
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2021. 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to 
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions or conditions of the Agency's Investment Policy insofar as they 
relate to financial and accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may 
have come to our attention regarding the Authority's noncompliance with the Investment Policy insofar as they 
relate to accounting matters. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of 
the Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Madison, Wisconsin 
October 7, 2021 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd ., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. 



To the Commissioners of 
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations 
Roseville, California 

@ bakertilly 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power 
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 7, 2021. 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to 
comply with the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State Controller's Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts insofar as they relate to financial and accounting matters. 
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. 
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention 
regarding the Authority's noncompliance with the above referenced State Controller's Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of 
the Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Madison, Wisconsin 
October 7, 2021 

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities. 



Reporting and insights from 
2021 audit: 
Northern California Power 
Agency 

October 12, 2021 

~mmunication is intended solely for the information and use of those charged with governance, and, if appropriate. VoaKe;rtitl'y'd should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

now, for tomorrow 

6ak""TilyUS,UP. lra,.:tiw,Jas8akel'Tily,is a:n~me111l1€fl.fBak~Tillytot.:.>mal~)(lal Ba~T..,,.lnt~liorulllirnitedis anEn~shc~any Bat.et"TiNylr.tjl,fnatkonal_prowidesoopmfessir,nals~~l•'.>ciio:fl!s. Eachn'lo?fnt~flfmlsa separa~eand 
~•<>?rll legaleoltly, andeact1 descnhes1tself as such. 8akei" Tiiv US, LLP ismt Sal::>';'rlilly 1ntema11onars a~I and ~soot hav.;, tho? autho11tv10 t,ind Bak~ TIiiy lnl1~ma111)naloc act on Bake, TIiiy 1n1ema1iooarsbehalf. Nooe of Sak~ TIily lnl~nat,om1I, 
BakP.ITiftyUS,LLPriOfan_yollheolhermembeffimlSofBaMt"T,&lylnlP.11aa!i,,;,,naltlasany~aLilltyfo.eacholhef'sa..;1sorom1ssKIOS.Thenan~BakefTilly·anJilsassocia1edlogoisusedundefliceoseflomBakerTiltylfllema1iooallilni1ed. 

© 2020 Baker Tilly US. LLP 

A P'JBLIC A'iifr-.ZY 

CPA 
NORTHERN, CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 



Audit Discussion 

Agenda 
-----------------!llilillic-----------------~-----------------

Required communication to Governing Body 

CG bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

r, 
L 



<G bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Our responsibilities 

As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include: 
- Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 

- Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. Included in that assessment 
is a consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting. 

- Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment. 

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management. 

- Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements prepared by management, with the 
oversight of those charged with governance: 

- Are free from material misstatement 
- Present fairly, in all material respects, and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

-< 
,.) 



(G bakerti Uy 
now, for tomorrow 

AUDIT OBJECTIVES 

Our responsibilities 

We are also required to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to 
the responsibilities of those charged with governance, including: 
- Qualitative aspects of the Agency's accounting practice including policies, accounting estimates and financial statement 

disclosures 

- Significant difficulties encountered 

- Disagreements with management 

- Corrected and uncorrected misstatements 

- Internal control matters 

- Significant estimates 

- Other findings or issues arising from the audit 

.:+ 



AUDIT OBJECTIVES 

Management's responsibilities 

Management 

~ 

~) 
~ 

lfi 

Prepare and fairly present the financial statements 

Establish and maintain effective internal control over 
financial reporting 

Provide us with written representations at the 
conclusion of the audit 

@ bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

Auditor 

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged 
with governance of their responsibilities 

An audit includes consideration of internal control over 
financial reporting, but not an expression of an opinion on 
those controls 

See Appendix in the Audit Results report for a copy of 
management's representations 

~) 



fG bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

AUDIT APPROACH AND RESULTS 

Planned scope and timing 

Audit focus 

Based on our understanding of the Agency and environment in which you operate, we focused our 
audit on the following key areas: 

- Key transaction cycles 

- Areas with significant estimates 

- Implementation of new accounting standards, if any 

- Areas of complexity including regulatory assets under GASB Statement No. 62 and interest rate swaps 

Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality in 
the context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined with 
our expectations about the Agency's current year results. 

6 



(G bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

AUDIT APPROACH AND RES UL TS 

Key areas of focus and significant findings 

Other key areas of emphasis 

We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk, but were 
determined to require specific awareness and a unique audit response. 

Other key areas of emphasis Testing approach 

Cash and investments Revenues and receivables 

Payroll Pension and OPEB liabilities 

Capital assets including infrastructure Net position calculations 

Regulatory assets and credits Derivative instruments 

Conclusion 

General disbursements 

Long-term debt 

Financial reporting and required 
disclosures 

·7 



CG bakertilly 

Audit Approach and Results 

Audit performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
.............,..,.,:;.,,....., 

Audit objective - reasonable assurance that financial statements are free 
from material misstatement 

Financial statements of the Agency received an Unmodified Opinion 

1--
1 

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in controls 

- - - - ------ --- -- -- ·- - - -- - - -- -- -- ------------~-----~ - - - - -- - -- ... - - -------- - -

now, for tomorrow 

0 
l.) 



@ bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

Auditor communication to those charged with governance 

Auditor 
responsibility & 
independence 

Board responsibility 

Baker Tilly agrees with the Agency's 
accounting policies· and disclosures 

:W:1--t.i~Is•- -------~~---~---

Accounting policies 
and estimates 

No material 
aoj:ustm.eots· to. the 

financial statements 
--------·..::·~~.4;.,._ .... .i, ,· ~ ......... 

\ I dl!I - f' .■. d I I\J;o·i--~., ;~·- u-• '.~-: i·1·1·t· ::I :. ~-11n"•; -- .. -. . 1:n-~:-·: g·--·-1·~ ·:· a ... :- -r ~tr-0 1n·:-· 1 c·--~-¼\e·.-_~_--. r·-·. n·,,¢'. li" I_·'-• 0 1,'"_i' '.L, ' 1
:

1 
I •• _; _ 1 .;." V,1 ---~-· -~ 1W · -.· ~-···,. ' " 

l .___ ----'----____:___~----------~-~--~ 9 



ACCOUNTING CHANGES RELEVANT TO THE AGENCY 

Future accounting standards update 

GASS 
Statement 
Number 
87 

89 

91 

92 

93 

94 

96 

97 

Leases 

Accounting for Interest Incurred before the End of a Construction Period 

Conduit Debt 

Omnibus 2020 

Replacement of lnterfund Bank Offered Rates 

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements 

Subscription-Based Information T echnoiogy Arrangements 

Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans 

Potentially 
Impacts 
You 

(if; 
~ 
~ 
(if; 

~ 
(if; 
(if; 

CG bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

Effective Date 

6/30/22* 

6/30/22* 

6/30/23* 

6/30/22* 

6/30/22* 

6/30/23 

6/30/23 

6/30/22 

*The statements listed above through Statement No. 93 had their required effective dates postponed by one year with the issuance of Statement No. 95, 
Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, with the exception of Statement No. 87 which was postponed by one and a half 
years. The effective date reflected above is the required revised implementation date. Further information on upcoming GASB pronouncements . 10 





CLIENT SERVICE TEAM 

Client service team 

Bethany Ryers, CPA 
Director 
Bethany.Fiyers(c.'.:)bakertiliy corn 

• Gwen Zech, CPA 
Senior Manager 
gwen.zech@bakertil ly.cori1 

@ bakertilly 
now, for tomorrow 

; , _:_ 



A PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

AND 

ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Combined Financial Statements Including Independent Auditors' Report 

As of and For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Combined Financial Statements 

Table of Contents 

As of and For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Page 

Independent Auditors' Report ....... ......................... ................... ... ........ ..... ... ... ...... ............ ... . ....... 1 

Management's Discussion and Analysis - Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited). 3 

Combined Financial Statements: 

Combined Statements of Net Position................................................................................... 13 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ........................ 15 

Combined Statements of Cash Flow....................................................................................... 16 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements.............................................................................. 18 

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios Last 10 62 
Measurement Years ............................................................................................................. . 

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions Last 10 Fiscal Years................................................. 64 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios Last 10 
Measurement Years.............................................................................................................. 65 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions Last 10 Fiscal Years..................................................... 66 

Supplemental Information - For Purposes of Additional Analysis (Unaudited): 

Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2021 ...................................................................... 67 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position FY 2021............ 69 

Combining Statement of Cash Flow FY 2021.......................................................................... 70 

Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2020 ...................................................................... 72 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position FY 2020............ 74 

Combining Statement of Cash Flow FY 2020 .......................................................................... 75 

Other Information (Unaudited): 

Generation Entitlement Shares.............................................................................................. 77 



Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations 

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency 
and Associated Power Corporations (the Agency), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial 
statements of the Agency as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the combined financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency's 
preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
combined financial position of the Agency as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in 
combined financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 

. ____ p.r:inciples generally accepted in the United States of America. __ 

1 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented 
to supplement the combined basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the combined 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of firJancial reporting for placing the combined basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the combined basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the combined basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Agency's combined basic financial statements as a whole. The combining statements of net 
position, combining statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, combining statements of 
cash flows (combining financial statements) as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the combined basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the combined basic financial statements or to the combined basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements are fairly stated in 
all material respects, in relation to the combining basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Agency's combined basic financial statements. The schedule of generation entitlement 
shares as identified in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the combined basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined basic financial statements, and accordingly, we 
express no opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Madison, Wisconsin 
October 7, 2021 

2 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

The management of Northern California Power Agency (the Agency or NCPA} offers the following narrative discussion 
and analysis of its financial performance for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. This discussion should be read in 
conjunction with the Agency's combined financial statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section. 

BACKGROUND 

The Northern California Power Agency is a joint powers agency formed by member public entities under the laws of the 
State of California to provide cost effective wholesale power, energy-related services, and advocacy on behalf of public 
power consumers. The Agency's purposes are for purchasing, generating, transmitting, and selling electrical energy and 
for providing other related services to its members and customers as each may require. The Agency provides a portion 
of certain of its members' power needs and certain of its members also self-provide and/or purchase power and 
transmission from other public and private sources. 

NCPA is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission is responsible 
for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the direction of the General 
Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative, operating and planning services 
for the Agency. 

The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by project revenue bonds 
that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds associated with its interest 
in each project. Each of the Agency's members may choose which projects it wishes to participate in, and is known as 
a "project participant" for each such project. Each project participant has agreed to pay its proportionate share of debt 
service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension, interruption, interference, or reduction 
or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that is, the take-or-pay member agreements}. 

Power sales by the Agency to its members for their resale include both sales of power to project participants generated 
by operating plants and power purchased from outside sources. Collections for power sales are designed to recover 
costs that include budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or cost 
stabilization may be included in collections under the terms of bond indentures. The Agency's collections for electric 
service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC} or the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC}. Rather, the Agency's collections are established annually in connection with its 
budget, which is approved by its governing Commission. 

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate not-for-profit corporations should be 
delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the Agency ("the 
Associated Power Corporations"). The Associated Power Corporations, consisting of Northern California Municipal 
Power Corporation Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to construct, operate, and manage 
their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for financing the costs of acquisition and 
construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants. 

Because the Agency is a separate, special-purpose governmental entity that serves its participating members, who are 
also the Agency's principal customers, the net results of operations flow through to its participating members as either 
net revenues or net expenses. 

During the year, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to pose challenges to the Agency's operations and more 
importantly, to our members. On April 17, 2020, the California Public Utilities Commission placed a moratorium on 
electric utility disconnections for arrearages for residential and small business customers until April 21, 2021 which has 
been extended through September 30, 2021. The State of California created the California Arrearage Payment Program 

3 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

that will offer financial assistance for California energy utility customers to help reduce past due energy bill balances 
accrued during the COVID-19 pandemic. This program will extend the period of time it will take for members to collect 
the arrearages, but over time, it should aid in reducing the potential bad debt expense write off related to COVID. 

The Agency has followed California's COVID-19 regulations to ensure a safe workplace environment for employees, 
contractors and guests. This includes maintaining a clean workspace and appropriate physical distancing, wearing facial 
coverings and monitoring individuals' temperatures. The Agency continues to monitor the situation and make 
adjustments, as needed, to comply with California Occupational Safety and Health Administration. 

Another challenge the Agency faced is the continued drought in the western region of the country. The Agency's 
hydroelectric operation saw its generation drop by 54.0% year over year and participants' Western allocation drop by 
37.9% year over year. The Agency has assisted its participants in meeting these generation shortfalls by procuring 
alternative resources to ensure their loads are met. 

4 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

FINANCIAL REPORTING 

For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-purpose governmental entity that is engaged in a business-type 
activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale electricity and transmission to its member participants. As such, the 
Agency's financial statements are presented as an enterprise type fund. 

The records of the Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance with the 
FERC Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are applied 
by the Agency in conformance with pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The 
combined financial statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power Corporations on an accrual accounting 
basis. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the combined amounts 
reported. 

In accordance with GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting (GASB 
No. 62}, the Agency has recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities certain items of expense and revenue that otherwise 
would have been charged to operations as such items will be recovered in future years' operations. The Agency expects 
to recover these items in collections over the term of the related debt obligations it has issued or when the obligation 
is paid. 

Implemented in FY 2020, GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 95, Postponement of the Effective 
Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, provided temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. It postponed Statements and Implementation Guides that first became effective or are 
scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018 and later. 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION, COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 
NET POSITION, AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

The combined statements of net position includes the Agency's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net position using the accrual method of accounting, as well as information about 
which assets can be used for general purposes and which assets are restricted as a result of bond covenants and other 
commitments. The combined statement of net position provides information about the nature and amount of 
resources and obligations at a specific point in time. The combined statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position report all the revenues and expenses during the time periods indicated. The combined statements of cash 
flows report the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other cash sources such as investment income 
and debt financing, and other cash uses, such as payments for debt service and capital additions. 

5 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The following is a summary of the Agency's combined financial position and results of operations for the years ended 

June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019. 

June 30, 

Condensed Statement of Net Position (in thousands) 
2021 2020 2019 (Restated) 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 
Current assets $ 206,369 $ 184,673 $ 143,548 
Non-current assets 146,024 148,482 169,127 

Electric plant, net 449,256 474,821 502,479 

Other assets 210,264 226,154 224,403 

Tota I Assets 1,011,913 1,034,130 1,039,557 

Deferred outflows of resources 91,950 101,256 112,427 

$ 1,103,863 $ 1,135,386 $ 1,151,984 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources 
and Net Position 
Long-term debt, net $ 553,778 $ 600,636 $ 647,273 

Current liabilities 136,520 118,860 103,344 
Non-current liabilities 291,632 282,347 272,445 

Total Liabilities 981,930 1,001,843 1,023,062 

Deferred inflows of resources 94,305 93,152 90,546 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets (25,088) (25,158) (21,468) 

Restricted 42,444 30,407 22,983 

Unrestricted 10,272 35,142 36,861 

$ 1,103,863 $ 1,135,386 $ 1,151,984 

Year ended June 30, 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, (in thousands) 

Expenses and Changes in Net Position 2021 2020 2019 (Restated) 

Operating revenues $ 807,535 $ 604,894 $ 699,166 

Operating expenses {768,694) (565,454) {656,115) 

Net operating revenues 38,841 39,440 43,051 

Other expenses (21,501) (27,329) (20,774) 

Future refundable costs (15,622) 2,201 (7,791) 

Refunds to participants _{14,.481) (12,297) (14,178) 

Change in net position {12,763) 2,015 308 
Net position, beginning of year 40,391 38,376 38,068 

Net position, end of year $ 27,628 $ 40,391 $ 38,376 

6 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Current Assets 
2021 Compared to 2020- Current assets increased $21.7 million or 11.7% from the prior year, primarily due to increase 
in cash and cash equivalents resulting from timing of collections and payments of debt service and increase in 
receivables from energy sales in June. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Current assets increased $41.1 million or 28.6% from the prior year, primarily due to accrual 
of final insurance reimbursement for LEC turbine replacement, increase in cash and cash equivalents due to timing of 
collections and payments of debt service and increase in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments due to 
anticipated payment for operations. 

Non-current Assets 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Non-current assets, consisting mainly of long-term investments, decreased $2.5 million or 
1.7% from the prior year. This is primarily due to temporary decreases in mark to market valuation of investments. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Non-current assets decreased $20.6 million or 12.2% from the prior year. This is primarily 
due to timing of collections, payment of funds for debt service and anticipated payments for operations. 

Electric Plant. net 
2021 Compared to 2020 - The Agency has invested approximately $449.2 million in plant assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, at June 30, 2021. Net utility plant comprises approximately 40.7% of the Agency's assets. The 
$25.6 million or 5.4% decrease from the prior year consists of an increase of $29.2 million in accumulated depreciation, 
offset by net capital expenditures of $3.6 million. For additional detail, refer to ~ote B - Significant Accounting Policies. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - The Agency has invested approximately $474.8 million in plant assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, at June 30, 2020. Net utility plant comprises approximately 41.8% of the Agency's assets. The 
$27.7 million or 5.5% decrease from the prior year consists of an increase of $30.9 million in accumulated depreciation, 
offset by net capital expenditures of $3.4 million. 

Deferred Outflows 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $9.3 million or 9.2% due to the scheduled 
amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt of $10.4 million, increase of deferred pension and OPEB 
contributions of $1.2 million and decrease of deferred ARO of $0.1 million. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $11.2 million or 9.9% due to the 2019A 
Refunding Capital Facilities debt refunding and due to the scheduled amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt 
of $10.9 million, decrease of deferred pension and OPEB contributions of $0.1 million and decrease of deferred ARO of 
$0.1 million. 

7 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Long-Term Debt. net 
2021 Compared to 2020- Long-term debt, net decreased $46.9 million or 7.8% in 2021 as a result of scheduled principal 
payments of $40.4 million, and net premium amortization of $3.5 million. The net decrease also includes a decrease 
for the net transfer of the current portion of long-term debt of $3.0 million. For additional detail, refer to Note E -
Projects and Related Financing. 

2020 Compared to 2019- Long-term debt, net decreased $46.6 million or 7.2% in 2020 as a result of scheduled principal 
payments of $33.3 million, net premium amortization of $3.5 million, and a net decrease of $2. 7 million related to the 
following refunding: Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds 2019 Refunding Series A that refunded the Capital Facilities 
Revenue Bonds 2010 Refunding Series A. The net decrease also includes a decrease for the net transfer of the current 
portion of long-term debt of $7.1 million. 

The following table shows the Agency's scheduled annual debt service principal payments through FY 2040 as of 
June 30, 2021: 

$50,000 
,, 

$45,000 
,, ,- - -

$40,000 / - - ,- -

$35,000 
en 

"'0 
$30,000 C 

n, 
en 
:::, $25,000 0 

/ - ,_ - - - ,_ 
I 

,,. 
- t" 

l/ - ·- ,_ - - - ,_ - ,_ 
I 

I 

. / - - - - ,_ ,- - ::: - - ,_ - -
j I! 

.c 
I-

$20,000 .v - - f-. - - I- I - ~ - ,, ,_ - ,_ - \ ...... 
~ 

' 
$15,000 V - - ,_ ,_ - ,_ . - ·· ..-. 11 - - - - ., _ ,_ -

I ~i 
,. ., -

$10,000 V 
,,_ - e- ·- -~ ,_ 

- t - ,_ -- - - - - - - - - - ,_ 
,,_ 

I 

$5,000 l/ - - - - ,_ ,_ - I- - ~ - - - - - - - - '- -
~ 

$- ~ - - - - ,_ ..._ ..... - ~- I- - - - - - - - - - '?' . . . . 

■ Geothermal ■ Hydroelectric Capital Facilities Lodi Energy Center 

8 



MAN-AGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Current Liabilities 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Current liabilities increased by $17.7 million or 14.9% in 2021. This is primarily due to 
increases in accounts payable of $12.7 million for accrued purchased energy, transmission costs and natural gas. The 
current liabilities increase also includes increases in the current portion of long-term debt of $3.0 million and increases 
in project operating reserves of $3.8 million and decreases in accrued interest payable of $1.8 million. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Current liabilities increased by $15.5 million or 15.0% in 2020. This is primarily due to 
increases in accounts payable of $11.3 million for accrued capital payable for turbine replacement, purchased energy 
and transmission costs and increases in the current portion of long-term debt of $7.1 million offset by decreases in 
operating reserves of $2.6 million for projects and decreases in other liabilities of $0.3 million. 

Other Non-Current Liabilities 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net amount of $9.3 million or 3.3% in 2021. This was 
primarily due to increased operating reserves of $10.7 million for deposits and interest earnings, and increased asset 
retirement obligations of $1.5 million offset by decreased interest rate swap liability of $2.9 million. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net amount of $9.9 million or 3.6% in 2020. This was 
primarily due to increased operating reserves of $7.2 million for deposits and interest earnings, increased interest rate 
swap liability of $4.3 million and increased asset retirement obligations of $1.5 million offset by decreased net pension 
and OPEB liability of $3.1 million. 

Deferred Inflows 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Total deferred inflows of resources increased $1.2 million or 1.2% due to deferral of certain 
revenues related to the amortization of construction advances and operating fixed assets totaling $3.7 million offset by 
reduction in net pension and OPEB expense liability of $2.5 million. 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Total deferred inflows of resources increased $2.6 million or 2.9% due to deferral of certain 
revenues related to the amortization of construction advances and operating fixed assets totaling $3.7 million offset by 
reduction in net pension-and OPEB expense liability of $1.1 million. 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
The Agency is intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis. Therefore, net position primarily represents differences 
between total revenues collected, based on estimated operating expenses and debt service, and the total actual 
expenses incurred. In subsequent periods of operation, excess collections (net of encumbrances) may be refunded to 
participants or appropriated for other uses at the discretion of the Agency's governing Board of Commissioners. In the 
event the Agency incurs a net expense at year-end, the balance would be subject to recovery from participants under 
the terms of the related participating member agreements. See Notes A, Band E to the Combined Financial Statements. 

Operating Revenues 
Operating revenues consist of Participants Revenue, California Independent System Operator (CAISO) Energy Sales and 
Ancillary Services {A/S) Revenues and Other Revenues~ 

2021 Compared to 2020 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2021 were approximately $202.6 million or 33.5% more 
than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) increased revenue from non-members of $117.8 
million for their share of energy contracts and transmission costs, and (2) higher overall plants' generation of-2,250,590 
MWh versus 1,979,967 MWh in the prior year. 

9 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

2020 Compared to 2019 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2020 were approximately $94.3 million or 13.5% less than 
in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) decreased revenue from non-members of $5.8 million 
for their share of energy contracts and transmission costs, and (2) lower overall plants' generation of 1,979,967 MWh 
versus 3,016,295 MWh in the prior year. 

OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCES 

Operating Expenses 
2021 Compared to 2020 - Operating expenses were $768.7 million in FY 2021, an increase of $203.2 million from FY 
2020. Purchased power expense was $190.7 million higher in 2021 primarily due to increased energy purchased to 
fulfill energy requirements for member and non-member participants. Operations expense increased $17.6 million 
primarily due to increased fuel usage for the natural gas combustion turbine plants. Maintenance expenses were $6.7 
million lower in FY 2021 primarily due to a lower inventory adjustment and reduced maintenance projects at the plants 
resulting in lower maintenance costs. 

2020 Compared to 2019- Operating expenses were $565.5 million in FY 2020, a decrease of $90.7 million from FY 2019. 
Purchased power expense was $74.5 million lower in 2020 primarily due to decreased energy purchased to fulfill energy 
requirements for member and non-member participants. Operations expense decreased $28.2 million primarily due 
to decreased fuel usage for the LEC and water costs for Hydro (see Operating Revenues). Maintenance expenses were 
$5.4 million higher than in FY 2020 primarily due to forced outages at LEC, CTl, Hydro and GEO resulting in higher plant 
maintenance costs. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $4.1 million was due to increases in wheeling 
access charges. 

10 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

The following charts compare the components of Operating Expenses in fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 
2019: 

FY2021 FV2020 FV2019 

3% 4% 3% 

73% 

■ Power Supply & Transmisson ■ O&M and Depr A&G 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

During FY 2021 and 2020, the Agency did not have any refunding activities but continues to monitor financial market 
environment for refunding opportunities. 

In December 2019, the Agency issued Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A ($20,450,000) to refund 
Capital Facilities Revenue Bond, 2010 Refunding Series A. The refunding was completed through the issuance of 
$20,450,000 fixed rate debt (2019 Series A) with a yield of 1.00% with varying principal maturities ranging from 
$2,575,000 to $4,815,000 through August 1, 2024. The refunding is estimated to have decreased project debt service 
by an estimated $2.7 million over the next 5 years, which results in an estimated economic gain to the Agency of 
approximately $2.4 million. 

In April 2019, the Agency issued Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A 
($39,250,000) to refund Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bond, 2010 Refunding Series A. The refunding was 
completed through the issuance of $39,250,000 fixed rate debt (2019 Series A) with a yield of 1.40% with varying 
principal maturities ranging from $940,000 to $13,650,000 through July 1, 2023. The refunding is estimated to have 
decreased project debt service by an estimated $8.09 million over the next 5 years, which results in an estimated 
economic gain to the Agency of approximately $3.62 million. 

The Agency on a periodic basis has informal discussions and formal presentations with each of the credit rating agencies 
in order to maintain ongoing communications. On May 20, 2021, Fitch performed a surveillance review for the Lodi 
Energy Center project. Fitch took no rating action. During 2019 and 2020, Standard and Poor's, Moody's, and Fitch 
affirmed their ratings on all projects. On February 20, 2020, Fitch affirmed NCPA's Hydroelectric Project Bonds AA
rating with an oatloulcof stable. On June 12, 2020, Fitch affirmed NCPA's LodlEnergy Center Revenue Bonds A rating 
with an outlook of stable. 

11 



MAN-AGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Ratings assigned to the Agency's outstanding project bonds as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Debt Credit Ratings: 

Geothermal 
Hydroelectric 
Capital Facilities 
Lodi Energy Center (Issue One) 
Lodi Energy Center (Issue Two) 

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 

Standard & Poor's 

A-, stable 
A+, stable 
A-, stable 
A-, stable 

AAA, stable 

Fitch 

A+, stable 
AA-, stable 

Not rated 
A, stable 

Not rated 

Moody's 

Al, stable 
Aa3, stable 
Al, stable 
Al, stable 

Aa2, stable 

Effective June 2018, the Agency invested a 16.67% interest in the not-for-profit corporation Hometown Connections, 
Inc. (HCI) for $265,000. HCI is a national service corporation that provides consulting, management and metering 
services to public power utilities on a national level. HCI has contracted with the Agency to provide monthly accounting 
services. This investment is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. 

SUMMARY 

The management of the Agency is responsible for preparing the information in this management's discussion and 
analysis, combined financial statements and notes to the combined financial statements. Financial statements were 
prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and they fairly portray 
the Agency's financial position and operating results. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the 
basic financial statements and provide additional financial information. 

CONTACTING AGENCY MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our members, investors, and creditors with a general overview of Northern 
California Power Agency's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests 
for additional information should be addressed to Northern California Power Agency, 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, 
CA 95678. 

12 



Agency 

Financia ls 

13 



COMBI-NED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

June 30, 

2021 2020 

ASSETS (in thousands) 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Investments 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Accounts receivable 
Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Investments 

Restricted 
Un restricted 

Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

OTHER ASSETS 

Regulatory assets 

Investment in associated company 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

See notes to combined financial statements 14 

$ 56,133 
81,103 

17,301 
25,614 

174 
16,132 

775 
5,888 
3,249 

206,369 

4,401 
141,623 

1,497,332 
(1,048,076) 

595,280 

209,999 

265 

210,264 

1,011,913 

11,969 
18,099 
61,882 

91,950 

$ 1,103,863 

$ 27,103 

85,585 

26,035 
23,512 

311 
13,212 

1,037 

5,924 
1,954 

184,673 

9,680 
138,802 

1,493,690 
(1,018,869) 

623,303 

225,889 

265 

226,154 

1,034,130 

22,326 
16,936 
61,994 

101,256 

$ 1,135,386 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

June 30, 

2021 2020 

LIABILITIES (in thousands) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 62,820 $ 50,153 

Member advances 993 993 
Operating reserves 23,160 19,381 

Current portion of long-term debt 43,400 40,410 

Accrued interest payable 6,147 7,923 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 136,520 118,860 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 62,959 63,003 
Operating reserves and other deposits 144,492 133,747 
Interest rate swap liability 16,045 18,968 
Asset retirement obligations 68,136 66,629 

Long-term debt, net 553,778 600,636 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 845,410 882,983 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 981,930 1,001,843 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 92,118 88,415 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 2,187 4,737 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 94,305 93,152 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets (25,088) {25,158) 

Restricted for debt service 42,444 30,407 

Unrestricted 10,272 35,142 

TOTAL NET POSITION 27,628 40,391 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,103,863 $ 1,135,386 

See notes to combined financial statements 15 



COMBIN.ED--STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants 
Other Third-Party 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Purchased power 

Operations 

Transmission 

Depreciation 
Maintenance 
Administrative and general 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

NET OPERATING INCOME 

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 

Interest expense 

Interest income 

Other 

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 

NET POSITION, End of year 

See notes to combined financial statements 16 

Years Ended June 30, 

2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

$ 398,399 

$ 

409,136 

807,535 

414,705 

89,397 
185,713 

30,032 
25,461 
23,386 

768,694 

38,841 

(30,158) 

848 

7,809 

(21,501) 

(15,622) 

(14,481) 

(12,763) 

40,391 

27,628 

$ 408,120 

$ 

196,774 

604,894 

224,052 
71,747 

184,747 

30,958 
32,203 
21,747 

565,454 

39,440 

(39,385) 

8,668 
3,388 

(27,329) 

2,201 

(12,297) 

2,015 

38,376 

40,391 



COMBINED-STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Years Ended June 30, 

2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Received from participants $ 402,244 $ 411,329 

Received from others 412,380 198,415 

Payments for employee services (44,501) (42,686) 

Payments to suppliers for goods and services (684,699) (478,945) 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 85,424 88,113 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 184,269 156,405 

Interest received on cash and investments 3,805 5,646 

Purchase of investments (176,310) (156,735} 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 11,764 5,316 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition and construction of electric plant (4,472} (46,241) 

Insurance receipts on asset disposals 6,549 36,400 

Interest paid on long-term debt (28,045} (27,436} 

Principal repayment on long-term debt (40,409) (33,340) 

Proceeds from bond issues 22,738 

Payments to refund debt (25,450) 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (66,377} (73,329} 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Other proceeds 7,894 3,823 

Refunds to participants (14,157) (12,297) 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (6,263) (8,474) 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24,548 11,626 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Begin n i ng_of_y_e_aL 112,688 101,062 

End of year $ 137,236 $ 112,688 

See notes to combined financial statements 17 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW-Continued 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Years Ended June 30, 

2021 2020 

(in thousands) 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING INCOME TO 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income $ 38,841 $ 39,440 
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues 
to net cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation 30,032 30,958 

68,873 70,398 

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN 
Accounts receivable {9,332) (4,109} 
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits {1,259) 2,692 
Operating reserves and other deposits 14,524 4,582 
Member advances (387) 
Regulatory assets (3,752) 
Regulatory credits 3,703 3,671 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 12,667 11,266 

NET CASH FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 85,424 $ 88,113 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF 
NET POSITION 

Cash and cash equivalents - current assets $ 56,133 $ 27,103 
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets 81,103 85,585 

End of year $ 137,236 $ 112,688 

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 
Future recoverable/(refundable) costs $ (15,622) $ 2,201 
Amortization {6,812) (7,767) 
Interest rate swap change in fair value {2,923) 4,355 
Gain/loss on investments 257 45 

See notes to combined financial statements 18 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE A -- ORGANIZATION 

The Agency Northern California Power Agency (Agency) was formed in 1968 as a joint powers agency of the State of 
California. The membership consists of twelve cities with publicly-owned electric utility distribution systems, one port 
authority, a transit authority, one public utility district, and one associate member. The Agency is generally empowered 
to purchase, generate, transmit, distribute, and sell electrical energy. Members participate in the projects ofthe Agency 
on an elective basis. 

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate Special District Entities should be 
delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the Agency ("the 
Associated Power Corporations"). The Associated Power Corporations, Northern California Municipal Power 
Corporations Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to construct, operate and manage their 
respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for financing the costs of acquisition and 
construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants. See Note E - Projects and Related Financing. 

The Agency is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission is 
responsible for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the direction of the 
General Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative, operating, and planning 
services for the Agency. 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Combination For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-purpose 
governmental entity that is engaged in a business-type activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale electricity and 
transmission to its member participants. As such, the Agency's financial statements are presented as an enterprise type 
fund. 

The records of the Agency and its Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance with the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America are applied by the Agency in conformance with pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Agency's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. The combined financial 
statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power Corporations on an accrual accounting basis. All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the combined amounts reported. 

Cash and Cash Eguivalents Cash and cash equivalents include all debt instruments purchased with an original maturity 
of 90 days or less, all investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and in the California Asset Management 
Program (CAMP), and cash maintained in interest-bearing depository accounts, which are fully insured or collateralized 
in accordance with state law. Cash balances may be invested in either overnight repurchase agreements, which are fully 
collateralized by U.S. Government Securities, or in money market funds invested in short-term U.S. Treasury Securities. 
The Agency commingles operating cash for investment purposes only. Separate detailed accounting records are 
maintained for each account's related investments. All cash of the Agency is held by either the Agency's custodian or its 
primary bank and revenue bond trustee. -- ----- -

19 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Custodial credit risk for cash deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the 
Agency will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession 
of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible securities, 
a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the 
Agency's cash on deposit. All of the Agency's deposits are either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation {FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held in the trust department of the financial institutions. 

Investments The Agency's investments are reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included 
in interest income in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

Accounts Receivable Accounts Receivable consists primarily of amounts due from participants and other governmental 
entities related to sales of energy and transmission. Amounts are deemed to be collectible and as such, no allowance 
for uncollectible accounts has been recorded. 

Inventory and Supplies Inventory and supplies consist primarily of spare parts for the maintenance of plant assets and 
are stated at average cost. 

Prepaid Expenses Prepaid expenses mainly consist of unamortized property and liability insurance that is amortized 
monthly during their policy terms. 

Restricted Assets Cash and cash equivalents, investments and related accrued interest, which are restricted under terms 
of certain agreements, trust indentures or laws and regulations limiting the use of such funds, are included in restricted 
assets. When NCPA has restricted assets for specific purposes, and restricted and unrestricted resources are available 
for use, it is NCPA's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Electric Plant Electric plant in service is recorded at historical cost. The cost of additions, renewals and betterments are 
capitalized; repairs and minor replacements are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The original cost of property 
retired, net of removal and salvage costs, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. The provision for depreciation was 
approximately 2.0% of the average electric plant in service for the Agency during both 2021 and 2020. Depreciation is 
calculated using the following estimated lives: 

Generation and Transmission 
General Plant 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Transportation Equipment 
Computer and Electronic Equipment 

20 

25 to 42 years 
5 to 25 years 
10 years 
5 years 
5 years 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Balance 
June 30, 2020 Additions Deletions 

(in thousands) 
Structures and Leasehold 

Improvements $ 320,779 $ 1,594 $ {569) 
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,338 
Equipment 747,717 2,811 (202) 
Furniture and Fixtures 3,911 62 (54) 

1,321,745 4,467 (825) 
Accumulated Depreciation (1,018,869) (30,032) 825 

302,876 (25,565) 
Construction Work-In-Progress 
Land and Land Rights 171,945 
Electric Plant, Net $ 474,821 $ (25,565) $ 

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows: 

Balance 
June 30, 2019 Additions Deletions 

(in thousands) 
Structures and Leasehold 

Improvements $ 320,743 $ 36 $ 
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,338 
Equipment 760,624 49,307 (62,214) 
Furniture and Fixtures 3,716 195 

1,334,421 49,538 {62,214) 
Accumulated Depreciation (1,004,069) (30,958) 16,158 

330,352 18,580 {46,056) 
Construction Work-In-Progress 182 (182) 
Land and Land Rights 171,945 
Electric Plant, Net $ 502,479 $ 18,580 $ (46,238) 

Balance 
June 30, 2021 

$ 321,804 
249,338 
750,326 

3,919 

1,325,387 
(1,048,076) 

277,311 

171,945 
$ 449,256 

Balance 
June 30, 2020 

$ 320,779 
249,338 
747,717 

3,911 

1,321,745 
(1,018,869) 

302,876 

171,945 
$ 474,821 

In January 2020, the turbine at LEC failed resulting in an unplanned outage of the unit. The turbine was repairable but 
due to economic reasons, the Agency made the decision to purchase a new turbine that was comparable in cost to the 
failed turbine repair costs. The Agency realized a loss of $44.4 million upon disposal of the failed turbine. The Agency 
purchased and con~J_ructefl_c:1 neyv turbine for $44.2 million and placed the unit back into sen,Ice in June 2020. The 
Agency filed a claim with the insurers and recovered $42.9 million of the turbine replacement costs. 

21 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Construction Work-In-Progress Construction work-in-progress (CWIP) includes the capitalized cost of land, material, 
equipment, labor, interest (net of interest income}, certain other financing costs incurred to facilitate the projects and 
an allocated portion of general and administrative expenses related to the development of electric plant. In addition, 
CWIP ultimately includes costs incurred prior to commencement of commercial operations during the test and start-up 
phase of projects. 

Regulatory Assets/Credits In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, the Agency has deferred certain items of expense 
and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations because it is probable that such items will be 
recovered in future years' operations. For items related to Net Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB} 
Liabilities, the Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections using the actuarially calculated 
amounts due as represented in the respective annual and biennial actuarial valuation reports. For other regulatory 
items, the Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections over the term of the related debt 
obligations it has issued. On an ongoing basis, the Agency reviews its operations to determine the continued applicability 
of these deferrals under GASB Statement No. 62. 

The items of expense that have been deferred are net pension and OPEB liabilities, unfunded asset retirement 
obligations and assets originally paid from bond proceeds, including depreciation, certain bond amortizations, and 
interest paid from bond proceeds. These amounts are recorded to future recoverable amounts. Revenues used to 
acquire electric plant through debt issuance have also been deferred to future years. As of June 30, 2021, and 2020, the 
Agency had accumulated regulatory assets, net of regulatory credits, of approximately $117,881,000 and $137,474,000, 
respectively. 

Investment in Associated Company Effective June 2018, the Agency invested $265,000 {16.67% interest} into 
Hometown Connections Inc. (a not-for-profit corporation} (HCI}. HCI is a national service corporation that provides 
consulting, management and metering services to public power utilities on a national level. This investment is accounted 
for using the equity method of accounting. 

Debt Related Costs Debt issuance costs are expensed as incurred. Excess costs on refunding of bonds are considered 
deferred outflows of resources as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 65 and amortized over the life of the refunding 
bonds, or the life of the refunded bonds, whichever is shorter. Amortization is computed using the effective interest 
method and included in interest expense. 

Compensated Absences Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued as the obligation is incurred. 
Compensated absences are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses. 

Pensions For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency's CalPERS plan (Plan} and 
additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by Cal PERS.· For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions} are recognized 
when Q!,.l_e __ Jmd pay~ble in accordance with the benefit terms. trwestm_g__nts____a_re r~ported at fair value. 

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to OPEB and OPEB expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency's California 
Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT} Fund and additions to/deductions from Fund's fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS, the trust administrator. For this purpose, benefit 

22 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO) For purposes of measuring the ARO liability, and deferred outflows of resources 
related to ARO, information about the estimated costs have been determined by utilizing third party projections. Cost 
estimates are adjusted for inflation or deflation on an annual basis. Factors relating to estimated asset retirement outlays 
are evaluated annually to determine if one or more factors are expected to result in a significant change and if an ARO 
should be remeasured as a result. Deferred outflows of resources are reduced and recognized as an expense over the 
estimated life of the capital assets. 

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt is stated net of unamortized discounts and premiums. Discounts and premiums are 
amortized over the term of the related obligation using the effective interest method. Amortization of debt discounts 
and premiums is included in total interest expense for the period. See Note E - Projects and Related Financing. 

Operating Reserves The Agency has established various funded operating reserves, in accordance with various bond 
indentures, project agreements, and prudent utility practice, for anticipated periodic operating costs and related 
liabilities including, but not limited to, scheduled maintenance other than ordinary repairs and replacements. Certain 
amounts funded each year are charged to operating expense because the collections established by the Agency for 
power sales to its members include these costs on a prospective basis. Changes to operating reserve levels are 
periodically evaluated during the annual budgeting process. A non-project specific, individual participant controlled, 
general operating reserve is also maintained for participating Agency members. 

Changes in long-term operating reserves for the year ended June 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021 

(in thousands) 

General Operating Reserve $ 82,488 $ 6,343 $ 4,898 $ 83,933 
CRR Collateral & SC Balancing Account 30,633 8,253 413 38,473 

Capital Development Reserve 17,211 4,649 2,868 18,992 

Power Management Service 1,697 1,004 1,359 1,342 

Transmission Upgrade & GHG Allowances 218 1,555 1,521 252 

Special Fund Reserve 1,500 1,500 

$ 133,747 $ 21,804 $ 11,059 $ 144,492 

23 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Changes in long-term operating reserves for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases 

{in thousands) 

General Operating Reserve $ 75,233 $ 10,616 $ 3,361 

CRR Collateral & SC Balancing Account 29,584 1,646 597 

Capital Development Reserve 14,971 4,899 2,659 

Power Management Service 2,948 15 1,266 

Transmission Upgrade & GHG Allowances 2,315 2,072 4,169 

Special Fund Reserve 1,500 

$ 126,551 $ 19,248 $ 12,052 

Balance at 
June 30, 2020 

$ 82,488 
30,633 
17,211 

1,697 

218 
1,500 

$ 133,747 

Rates Power sales to participants for their resale include both power generated by operating plants and power 
purchased from outside sources. Collection rates for power sales are designed to recover costs that include budgeted 
annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or rate stabilization may be included 
in collection rates under the terms of bond indentures. During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, no amounts were specifically 
collected for rate stabilization. 

The Agency's collection rates for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC} or FERC. Rather, the Agency's rates are established annually in connection with its budget, 
which is approved by its governing Commission. 

Power, Transmission and Fuel Forward Transactions In the normal course of its business, the Agency is required to 
manage loads, resources, and energy price risk on behalf of its members. Consequently, the Agency buys and sells 
power, transmission, and fuel in wholesale markets as required. The Agency does not enter into such agreements solely 
for trading purposes. All such transactions are normal purchases and sales subject to settlement at the agreed to 
contract prices for quantities delivered. While authorized to transact forward purchase contracts for terms of up to five 
years, forward contract purchases at fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were for periods not greater than four years 
duration beyond the current fiscal year. In the event of default, undelivered transactions are required to be marked-to
market subject to the following limitations. If the Agency, as buyer, is the defaulting entity, the Agency's termination 
settlement amount is capped at the agreed to contract cost for all future undelivered commodities. If the selling 
counterparty is the defaulting entity, the seller's termination settlement is not capped for all future undelivered 
commodities. The defaulting entity is also subject to resultant transmission charges, brokerage fees, attorney fees, and 
all other reasonable expenses. See Note I - Commitments and Contingencies, Power Purchase Contracts. 

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the Agency in estimating its 
fair value disclosures for financial instruments~--

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The carrying amount reported in the statements of net position for cash and cash 
equivalents approximates its fair value. 

Investments- The fair values for investments are based on quoted market prices and significant other observable inputs. 
See Note D - Fair Value Measurement. 

24 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Swaps - The fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms and 
conditions of a given transaction, and any upfront payments that were received. All fair values were estimated using 
the zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap, assuming that 
the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market's best estimate of future spot interest rates. These 
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero-coupon 
rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps. While the current net mark-to-market values 
are negative, this valuation would be realized only if the swaps were terminated at the valuation date. 

Net Position The Agency classifies its net position into three components; invested in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced 
by outstanding debt balances, net of unspent bond proceeds. 

Restricted - This component consists of net position with constraints placed on their use. Constraints include those 
imposed by debt indentures and other agreements; grants, or laws and regulations of other governments. 

Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of "net investment in capital 
assets" or "restricted". 

The Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis. Therefore, any 
balance of net position represents differences between total revenues collected, using collection rates based on 
estimated operating expenses and debt service, and the total actual expenses incurred. In subsequent periods of 
operation, excess collections (net of encumbrances) that the participating members do not direct be held by or released 
to the Agency, are refunded to the participating members. Estimated encumbrances at June 30, 2021 and 2020 were 
$5,363,000 and $2,812,000, respectively. In the event the Agency incurs a negative net position balance, the balance 
would be subject to recovery in collection rates under the terms of the related take-or-pay member agreements. See 
Note E - Projects and Related Financing. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources The statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred Outflows of Resources consist of excess cost on refunding of debt, pension 
and OPEB deferrals and asset retirement obligations. Pension contributions made in the current year are reported as 
deferred outflows of resources as the CalPERS' valuation measurement date is June 30, 2020; those contributions were 
expensed in fiscal year 2021. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement offinancial position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as revenue at that time. The Agency's deferred inflows of resources 
are comprised of regulatory credits intended to offset the effects of the collection rate process, pension and OPEB 
deferrals projected in the pension-and OPEBactuarial reports and funds advanced for assetfet+rement obligations. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In May, 2020, GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 95, 
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, provided temporary relief to governments and 
other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. It postponed Statements and Implementation Guides that first 
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018 and later. 

25 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective for financial statements for years beginning 
after December 15, 2019. This statement improves guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. During FY 2021 and FY 2020, 
the Agency did not have any fiduciary activities. 

Accounting Pronouncements Effective in Future Fiscal Years 

• GASB Statement No. 87 - In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the Statement is to 
recognize in the Financial Statements certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions 
of the contract. The Statement originally ls effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or the fiscal 
year 2021. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after June 15, 2021 or fiscal year 2022. The 
Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 89 - In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before 
the End of a Construction Period. The objective of the Statement is (1) to ,enhance the relevance and comparability 
of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting 
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The Statement originally is effective for the 
periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or fiscal year 2021. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods 
beginning after December 15, 2020 or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 90- In August 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest. The objective of 
the Statement is to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest 
in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2018, or fiscal 
year 2020. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after December 15, 2020 or fiscal year 2022. 
The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 91- In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The objective of 
the Statement is to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity 
in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt 
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020, or fiscal year 2022. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after 
December 15, 2021 or fiscal year 2023. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

26 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

• GASB Statement No. 92 - In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objective of the 
Statement is to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of 
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB statements. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 
2020, or fiscal year 2021. GASB 95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after June 15, 2021 or fiscal year 
2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 93 - In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. 
Some governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an 
interbank offered rate {IBOR), most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate {LIBOR). As a result of global 
reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form on December 31, 2021, prompting 
governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference 
rates. The Statement originally is effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2020, or fiscal year 2021. GASB 
95 postponed implementation to periods beginning after June 15, 2021 or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not 
determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 94 - In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public 
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial 
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements {PPPs). As used 
in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government {the transferor) contracts with an operator {a 
governmental or non-governmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or 
use a non-financial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset for a period of time in an exchange or 
exchange-like transaction. The Statement is effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2022, or fiscal year 
2023. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

• GASB Statement No. 96 - In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements {SBITAs) for governments. This Statement: 

1. Defines a SBITA, 
2. Establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset and a corresponding subscription 

liability, 
3. Provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including 

implementation costs of a SBITA, and 
4. Requires note disclosure regarding a SBITA. 

The Statement is effect for the periods beginning after June 15, 2022, or fiscal year 2023. The Agency has not 
determined.the effect of the statement. 

27 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

• GASB Statement No. 97 - In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - An 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Suppression of GASB Statement No. 32. The objectives of 
this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component 
units, (2) -mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial 
statements, and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting 
for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans. The Statement is effective for the periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021, or fiscal year 2022. The Agency has not determined the effect of the statement. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the 
current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net position. 

NOTE C -- INVESTMENTS 

The Agency is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies and instrumentalities, in 
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, banker's acceptances, repurchase agreements, passbook savings account 
demand deposits, municipal bonds, the State Treasurer's LAIF pool, mid-term corporate notes, and in other instruments 
authorized by applicable sections of the Government Code of the State of California. The Agency's investments are 
stated at fair value. 

The Agency's investment policy requires investments that assure safety of the principal, liquidity to meet specific 
obligations of the Agency when due, and investment quality all in compliance with California State law and the Agency's 
revenue bond indentures. Generally, operating and reserve funds' investment maturities are limited to one and five 
years, except for Geothermal Decommissioning Reserve and debt service reserve funds, which are allowed maturities 
up to ten years and fifteen years, respectively. 

All securities owned by, or held on behalf of, the Agency are held by either the Agency's custodian, Union Bank of 
California, N.A., or its revenue bond trustee, U.S. Bank Trust, N.A. 

The Agency's investment policy includes restrictions for investments relating to maximum amounts invested as a 
percentage of the portfolio and with a single issuer, maximum maturities, and minimum credit ratings. 

Credit Risk To mitigate the risk that an issuer will noffITlffilTfs ooligation to the investment, the Agency limits invesfments-
in non-federally secured instruments to those rated, at a minimum, "A" rating category or equivalent for long/medium 
term notes by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in municipal bonds, corporate bonds, 
and certificates of deposit are limited to the top three ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations and all investments must be investment grade. Credit rating ranges and minimum rating requirements for 
the Agency's investments as of June 30, 2021 are listed below: 

28 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Credit Rating 

Description Min Rating Moody's S&P 

U.S. Agencies N/A Aaa/NR AA+/NR 

U.S. Treasury N/A NR NR 

Municipal Bonds A- Al/Aaa A/AAA 

Corporate Bonds A- A3/Aaa A-/AAA 

Certificates of Deposit* A- Aaa AA+ 

Local Agency Investment Fund N/A NR NR 

*All Certificate of Deposit investments are $250 000 or less and fully Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured. The FDIC is backed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States government and the credit ratings are reflective thereof. 

Custodial Credit Risk This is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the Agency's 
deposits may not be returned or the Agency will not be able to recover its deposits, investments, or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party. The Agency's policy mitigates this risk by requiring transactions with 
approved institutions and firms that have one or more of the following attributes: recognized as a primary government 
dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank; regional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; 
national or state chartered bank that must be a member of the FDIC; direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by 
the Agency; brokers and dealers qualified under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule), must be registered with 
the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) and must be licensed to do business in the State of California. 
Capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference checks and services offered criteria are evaluated when selecting 

a custodian. 

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of NCPA's investment in 
this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Agency's pro-rata share of 
the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 

amortized cost basis. 

Concentration of Credit Risk This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity's investment in a single 
issuer. The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the amount that may be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer (other than mutual 
funds and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total Agency investments include the following at 

June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020. 

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30,-2021~~ 

Issuer: 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 
Federal Home Loan Bank 

Investment Type 

Federal Agency 
Federal Agency 

29 

Reported 
Amount 

(in thousands) 
$ 30,336 

18,107 

Percentage 
of Portfolio 

10.9% 
6.5% 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2020 

Issuer: 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 
Federal Home Loan Bank 

Investment Type 

Federal Agency 
Federal Agency 
Federal Agency 

Reported 
Amount 

{in thousands) 
$ 15,083 

18,886 
55,021 

Percentage 
of Portfolio 

5.1% 
6.4% 

18.6% 

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. The Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk by following a hold-to-maturity investment 
approach for some investments, purchasing a combination of shorter and longer-term investments, and by timing cash 
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. In addition, the Agency periodically rebalances 
larger fund portfolios to maintain the appropriate rate of return through market cycles; such rebalances are performed 
only in instances when the result of the rebalance transaction is a net gain. 

The following tables reflect the carrying and fair values and the weighted average maturity in years for the Agency's 

investment portfolios for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Investments at June 30, 2021 Wtd. Avg 
Carrying Fair Maturity 

Description Value Value {In years) 

(in thousands) 

U.S. Agencies $ 74,705 $ 74,490 3.52 
U.S. Treasury 7,891 7,891 0.09 
Municipal Bonds 29,106 29,262 3.19 
Corporate Bonds 74,600 75,736 2.63 
Certificates of Deposit 1,500 1,560 1.36 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 187,802 $ 188,939 

Investments at June 30, 2020 Wtd. Avg 
Carrying Fair Maturity 

Description Value Value (In years) 

(in thousands) 

U.S. Agencies $ 97,420 $ 98,085 2.29 
U.S. Treasury 5,175 5,207 0..50 
Municipal Bonds 15,161 15,293 2.88 
Corporate Bonds 74,662 77,843 2.67 
Certificates of Deposit 1,500 1,601 2.37 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS- $ 193,918 $ 198,029 

30 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE D -- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

In accordance with GASB 72, Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price}. Fair value is a market
based measurement for a particular asset or liability based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing 
the asset or liability. 

Valuation inputs are assumptions that market participants use in pricing an asset or liability. The hierarchy of inputs 
used to generate the valuation is classified into three different Levels: 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the 
measurement date. 

• Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active; quoted prices for 
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other than quoted prices that 
are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs from the asset or liability where there is very little market activity and 
they should be used only when relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are unavailable. 

Fair Value of Investments under GASB 72 - Debt and other securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are 
valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Level 2 Securities are valued using a multi-dimensional 
relationship model or matrix pricing model utilizing market data including, but not limited to, benchmark yields, reported 
trades, and broker/dealer quotes. 

Fair Value of Swaps under GASB 72 - Fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment and 
the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction. The valuations of derivatives transactions provided are 
indicative values based on mid-market levels as of June 30, 2021. These valuations do not represent the actual terms at 
which new transactions could be entered into or the actual terms at which existing transactions could be liquidated. The 
valuations provided are derived from proprietary models based upon well-recognized financial principles and reasonable 
estimates about relevant future market conditions for interest rate swaps. The Agency's swap advisor categorized the 
swap's fair value as Level 2 based on its inputs used to perform the measurement. 

The Agency's fair value measurements are performed on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core part of the 
Agency's mission, the Agency determines that the disclosures related to these investments only need to be 
disaggregated by major type. The fair value of swaps reflectthe nonperformance risk of their client counterparty relating 
to that liability, and the nonperformance risk of the bank counterparty relating to that asset. 

31 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Agency has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 

Investments by fair value level 
Debt Securities 

U.S. Agencies 
U.S. Treasury 
Municipal Bonds 
Corporate Bonds 
Certificates of Deposit 

Total debt securities 

Total investments by fair 
value level 

Derivative Instruments by fair 
value level 
Swap liability instruments 

Total Derivative 
Instruments by fair value 
level 

June 30, 2021 

$ 74,490 
7,891 

29,262 
75,736 

1,560 

188,939 

$ 188,939 

$ (16,045) 

$ (16,045) 

Fair Value Using 

Quoted prices in 
active markets for 

identical assets 
(Level 1) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

32 

13,811 
7,891 

21,702 

21,702 

Significant other 
observable inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

60,679 $ 

29,262 
75,736 

1,560 

167,237 

167,237 $ 

(16,045) $ 

(16,045) $ 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Agency has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020: 

Investments by fair value level 
Debt Securities 

U.S. Agencies 
U.S. Treasury 
Municipal Bonds 
Corporate Bonds 
Certificates of Deposit 

Total debt securities 

Total investments by fair 
value level 

Derivative Instruments by fair 
value level 
Swap liability instruments 

Total Derivative 
Instruments by fair value 
level 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 2020 

98,085 
5,207 

15,293 
77,843 

1,601 

198,029 

198,029 

Fair Value Using 

Quoted prices in 
active markets for Significant other 

identical assets observable inputs 
(Level 1} (Level 2) 

(in thousands) 

$ 34,678 $ 63,407 
5,207 

15,293 
77,843 

1,601 

39,885 158,144 

$ 39,885 $ 158,144 

$ 

$ 

(18,968) $ $ (18,968) $ 

(18,968) $ $ (18,968) $ 

33 

Significant 
u nobse rva ble 

inputs 
(Level 3} 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

NOTE E -- PROJECTS AND REtATED FINANCING 

Financing Programs_The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by 
project revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds 
associated with its interest in each project. Each project participant is responsible to pay its proportionate share of 
debt service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension, interruption, interference, 
reduction or curtailment of output from the project for any reason {that is, the take-or-pay member agreements). The 
project sales agreements also require project participants to step up their respective obligations in the event of a 
default by another project participant. 

Balance Balance Current 
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements June 30, 2021 Portion 

Geothermal Project (in thousands) 

2012 Series A - Original Issue Amount $12,910 
Term, 2.289% due 2023 (direct placement) $ 3,570 $ $ 1,405 $ 2,165 $ 1,440 

2016 Series A - Original Issue Amount $17,530 
Term, 1.670% due 2024 (direct placement) 16,530 3,190 13,340 3,250 

Total Geothermal Project 20,100 4,595 15,505 4,690 

Hydroelectric Project 

2008 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $85,160 
Term, adjustable rate-weekly reset, due 2033 83,640 2,165 81,475 2,255 

2012 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $76,665 
Serial, 5.00% through 2033 76,665 76,665 

2012 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount $7,120 
Serial, 4.32% through 2025 7,120 7,120 

2018 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $68,875 
Serial, 5.00% through 2025 59,990 10,730 49,260 11,310 

2019 Refunding Series A- Original Issue Amount $39,250 38,310 7,830 30,480 8,185 
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2025 

Add: Unamortized Premium, net 13,713 2,891 10,822 

Total Hydroelectric Project 279,438 23,616 255,822 21,750 

34 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Balance 

Balance June 30, Current 
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements 2021 Portion 

(in thousands) 

Capital Facilities Project 

2019 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $39,250 
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2025 $ $20,450 $ - $ 2,575 $ 17,875 $ 4,080 

Add: Unamortized Premium 2,008 567 1,441 
Total Capital Facilities Project 22,458 3,142 19,316 4,080 

Lodi Energy Center, Issue One 

2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment 
Build America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $176,625 

Term, 7.311% due 2040 176,625 176,625 

Lodi Energy Center, Issue Two 
2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment 
Build America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $110,225 

Term, 5.679% due 2035 105,015 5,365 99,650 5,565 

Lodi Energy Center, Issue One 2017 Series A- Original 
Issue Amount $38,970 

Serial, 2.70% through 2025 (direct placement) 37,410 7,150 30,260 7,315 

Total Lodi Energy Center Project 319,050 12,515 306,535 12,880 

Total Long-Term Debt, Net $ 641,046 $ - $ 43,868 $ 597,178 $ 43,400 

35 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Debt service requirements for each of the next five years and in five-year cumulative increments thereafter as of June 30, 
2021: 

Notes from Direct 
Revenue Bonds Placements 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 
(in thousands) 

2022 $ 31,395 $ 31,002 $ 12,005 $ 967 $ 75,370 
2023 32,990 29,403 11,505 714 74,613 
2024 38,705 27,725 11,005 464 77,900 
2025 40,400 25,763 11,250 235 77,647 
2026 29,480 23,894 53,374 

2027-2031 168,700 92,655 261,355 
2032-2036 137,805 43,485 181,290 
2037-2040 59,675 11,161 70,836 

Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 12,263 12,263 

$ 551,413 $ 285,088 $ 45,765 $ 2,381 $ 884,647 

Interest includes interest requirements for fixed rate debt at their stated rate and variable rate debt covered by interest 
rate swaps at their fixed swap rate. 

Changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within 
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021 One Year 

(in thousands) 
Revenue bonds $ 567,815 $ - $ 28,665 $ 539,150 $ 31,395 
Notes from direct placements 57,510 11,745 45,765 12,005 
Add: Unamortized Premium, 
net 15,721 3,458 12,263 

Total $ 641,046 $ - $ 43,868 $ 597,178 $ 43,400 

The Agency's outstanding notes from direct placements of $45,765,000 contain provisions that in an event of default, 
outstanding amounts become immediately due if (1) the Agency is unable to pa·y the principal or interest when due, 
(2) files bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, or (3) S&P issues a downgrade below "BBB-." 

The Agency's outstanding revenue bonds of $539,150,000 contain provisions that in the event of a participant default, 
the project entitlement percentage of each non-defaulting project participant wili increase on a prorated basis up to a 
maxim-um-ofz-5% for Hydroelectric, Geothermal and Capital Facilities--projeets and 35% for Lodi Energy Center project. 

Redemption Provisions As set forth in the bond indentures, the term bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity 
in varying amounts at specific dates. At the option of the Agency, the bonds are also subject to early redemption at 
specific redemption prices and dates. 

36 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Defeased Debt Various bond refundings were undertaken to defease debt and realize future debt service savings. Debt 
was defeased by using the proceeds of the refunding issues and other available monies to irrevocably place in trust cash 

and U.S. Government Securities, which together with interest earned thereon, will be sufficient to pay both the interest 

and the appropriate maturity or redemption value of the refunded bonds as required. Detailed information about the 
refunding transactions follow. 

On December 20, 2019, the Agency issued Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A, in the amount of 

$20,450,000 with an average interest rate of 5.0000% to refund $25,450,000 of outstanding Capital Facilities Revenue 
Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A with an average interest rate of 5.2149%. The net proceeds were used to purchase U.S. 

government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all 

future debt service payments on the old bonds. As a result, the old bonds are considered defeased and the liability for 
that portion of the old bonds has been removed from the statement of net position. The outstanding 2010 Series A 

Bonds were called for redemption on February 1, 2020. 

The cash flow requirements on the old bonds prior to the refunding was $26,107,510 from August 1, 2019 through 

August 1, 2025. The cash flow requirements on the new bonds are $23,373,451 from August 1, 2019 through August 1, 
2024. The refunding resulted in an economic gain of $2,431,189. 

Accordingly, some of these defeased debt issues have been considered extinguished for financial reporting purposes. At 
year-end, the following defeased debt remained outstanding: 

Hydroelectric: Project No. One, 1985 Series A 

Project No. One, 1986 Series A 

Total Defeased Debt Outstanding 

2021 

$ 

$ 

(in thousands) 

12,150 $ 
31,360 

43,510 $ 

2020 

12,150 

31,360 

43,510 

Geothermal Project In addition to a federal geothermal leasehold, steam wells, gathering system and related facilities, 
the project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2) with combined 165 MW (nameplate rating) 

turbine generator units utilizing low temperature geothermal steam; associated electrical, mechanical and control 

facilities; a heat dissipation system; a steam gathering system, a transmission tap-line, and other related facilities. 

Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal property, which includes well pads, access roads, 
steam wells and re-injection wells. 

Hydroelectric Project The Agency contracted to finance, manage, construct, and operate Hydroelectric Project Number 

One for the licensed owner, Calaveras County Water District. In exchange, the Agency has the right to the electric output 
of the project for 50 years from February 1982. The Agency also has an option to purchase power from the project in 

____ excess-of-the District's requirements for the subsequent-Eede.r:al Energy Regulatory Commission project license term-of-- .-

30 to 50 years. 

As part of a refinancing plan in November 2004, the Agency entered into two forward starting interest rate swaps in an 

initial notional amount of $85,160,000 and $1,574,000. Payments under the swap agreements with Citigroup Financial 
Products, Inc. began on April 2, 2008. To complete the refinancing transaction and realize the debt service savings under 

the 2004 swap agreement, on April 2, 2008 the Agency completed a bond refunding of 2023 to 2032 maturities of the 

37 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

1998 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A bonds. These fixed rate bonds were refinanced through the issuance of tax
exempt 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds and taxable 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series B 
($3,165,000) bonds. Both issues were variable interest rate bonds bearing interest at weekly interest rates, payable 
semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 each year. 

To support this financing, the Agency entered into two irrevocable direct pay letter of credit agreements with Citibank 
that have since expired, being substituted with letters of credit with the Bank of Montreal in 2014. On April 30, 2019, 
the Agency terminated the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series B swap with Citigroup, and on May 14, the outstanding principal 
of $910,000 on the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series B bonds was called for redemption. On June 24, 2019 the agency 
completed a Letter of Credit substitution for the 2008 Hydroelectric, Series A bonds replacing the Bank of Montreal with 
Bank of America. The Letter of Credit expires on June 21, 2024. 

The payment of principal and interest on the outstanding 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds 
are not covered by any financial guaranty insurance policies. This 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding and the associated 
interest rate swaps are estimated to have reduced project debt service by $11.8 million over the life of the debt providing 
the Agency with an estimated economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service 
payments) of approximately $5.9 million. 

The remaining swap for the 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) is a separate pay-fixed, receive-variable 
interest rate swap to produce savings or to result in lower costs over the life of the transaction than what the Agency 
would have paid using fixed-rate debt. While the swap is a derivative instrument and carries additional risks, the 
Agency's swap policy and favorable negotiations have helped to reduce such risks. 

38 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds 
Forward Starting Swap 

Associated Interest Rate Swaps starting April 2. 2008 

Counterparty to Interest Rate Swap 

Notional Value of Interest Rate Swap 
Fair Value--Due from (to) Counterparty 
Credit Downgrade Required Collateral Posting: 

For Counterparty, Fair Value Above 
If S&P or Moody's Credit Rating falls to 
For Agency {Credit of Agency's Insurer 

National Public Finance Guarantee formerly MBIA and 
NCPA credit), Fair Value Above 

If S&P or Moody's Credit Rating falls to 
Termination Date 

Payments to (from) Counterparty 
Variable Payments (from) to Counterparty 
Net Interest Rate Swap Payments 
Variable-Rate Bond Payments 

Effective Interest Rate on Bonds 

Average to Date: *1-Month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate 

Series A 

Citigroup Financial 
Products Inc. 

$81,475,000 
$(16,044,959} 

$10 million 
A-/A3 and BBB-/Baa3 

$10 million 
A+/Al 

July 1, 2032 

Terms 

Fixed 
54% LIBOR+.54%* 

SIFMA** 

Rates 

3.819 % 
{0.620:)% 
3.197 % 
0.072% 

3.268% 

**Securities Industry and Financial Market Association Municipal Swap Index {formerly the 
Bond Market Association Municipal Swap Index) 

Changes in interest rate swap liability for the year ended June 30, 2021, are as follows: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases 

(in thousands) 

Balance at 
June 30, 2021 

Interest rate swap hab1lity$ -- 18,968 $ $ 2,923 $ -----ro,011-s 
---------"-----'------------'------------=---

39 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Changes in interest rate swap liability for the year ended June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases 

Balance at 
June 30, 2020 

(in thousands} 

Interest rate swap liability $ 14,613 $ 4,355 $ - $ 18,968 ____ ;;..__ _________________ ..;___ 

The total fair value of outstanding swap instruments was a net liability of $16,045,000 and $18,968,000 at June 30, 2021 
and June 30, 2020, respectively. These amounts are reported as a non-current liability. The interest rate swaps 
beginning in FY 2013 are both ineffective hedges and considered investment derivative instruments. The change in fair 
value was $2.9 million and $4.4 million for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively and are recorded net of 
interest expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The net settlement payments 
of interest on these investment derivative instruments total $2.6 million and $2.0 million, which is recorded as interest 
expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for FY 2021 and FY 2020, respectively. 
The value of the swaps noted above reflects the estimated fair value of the swaps at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as 
determined by the Agency's financial advisor. The fair value of the swaps will change due to notional amount, 
amortizations, and interest rate changes. 

The interest rate swap exposes the Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA converge, 
changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the 
expected cost savings of the swap may not be realized. The Agency is exposed to interest rate risk on its pay-fixed, 
receive variable interest rate swaps. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 
fair values of the Agency's financial instruments or cash flows. As the LIBOR or SIFMA swap index decreases, the Agency's 
net payment on swaps increases. In addition, the Agency is exposed to interest rate risk if the counterparty to the swap 
defaults or if the swap is terminated. The Agency is also exposed to market access risk, the risk that it will not be able 
to enter credit markets or that credit will become more costly. The Agency's financial rating is tied to the credit strength 
of the major participants of the specific project for which each financial instrument is issued. The Agency is also exposed 
to market access risks caused by disruptions in the municipal bond market. 

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the swap counterparties are required by the agreement to post collateral should 
the fair value exceed certain thresholds as shown above. At June 30, 2021, credit ratings of the counterparties to the 
swaps were as follows: 

Swap Counterparty & Agency's Insurer 
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. 

National Public Finance Guarantee formerly MBIA 
(the Agency's insurer} 

40 

Standard & Poor's 
A+ 

NR 

Moody's 
Aa3 

Baa2 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The swaps utilized the International Swap Dealers Association {ISDA) Master Agreement, which includes standard 
termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. However, an additional provision under the Schedule to the 
ISDA Master Agreement allows the swap to be terminated by the Agency if the counterparty's credit rating falls below 
A- by Standard & Poor's or A3 by Moody's. If a swap is terminated, the applicable bonds would no longer carry a synthetic 
fixed interest rate. In addition, if a swap has a negative fair value at the time of an early termination, the Agency would 
be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap's fair value. 

Combustion Turbine Project The original project consisted of five combustion turbine units, each nominally rated at 
approximately 25 megawatts. Concurrent with the final project bond maturity, two units located in Roseville were 
acquired by an Agency member. The remaining project consists of two units in Alameda and one in Lodi. The project 
provides capacity during peak load periods and emergency capacity reserves. Excess capacity and energy from the 
project are also sold to other entities from time to time. 

Capital Facilities Proiect The project consists of one 49.9 megawatt natural gas-fired steam injected combustion turbine 
generator unit located in Lodi, California. Wastewater is reclaimed from the City of Lodi's White Slough water pollution 
control facility, processed to eliminate contaminants, and heated to steam and used in the turbine to produce 
augmented power and emissions control. 

Lodi Energy Center (LEC) The project is a 296 MW base load, combined cycle, natural gas-fired, combustion turbine 
generating station (one gas turbine and one steam turbine) located in Lodi, California, next to the Capital Facilities Project 
discussed above. Pursuant to the Lodi Energy Center Power Sales Agreement, the Agency agreed to operate the LEC and 
has sold all of the capacity and energy of the LEC to thirteen participants (including four non-members) in accordance 
with their respective Generation Entitlement Shares (GES). Each participant has agreed to unconditionally provide for 
its share of the operation and maintenance expenses and all capital improvements based on its GES. The LEC will be 
operated and maintained by the Agency under the direction of the LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement 
among the Agency and the LEC Project Participants. 

Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One provided financing for 11 project participants with 55.7857% GES. Lodi 
Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two provided financing for the California Department of Water Resources 33.5% 
G ES. The Modesto Irrigation District elected to provide its own financing for its 10. 7143% G ES of the costs of construction 
of the project. Modesto Irrigation District is not liable for any Agency debt service obligations for the project. 

The Issue One Series Band the Issue Two Series B bonds were issued as Taxable Subsidy Bonds constituting Build America 
Bonds (BABs) for the purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The Act provides for a direct 
payment to the Agency from the federal government equal to 35% of the interest costs. The direct payment was reduced 
by 5.7% and 5.9% in 2021 and 2020, respectively due to federal government budget sequestration. Such payments may 
continue to be affected by sequestrations. 

NOTE F -ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 

NCPA constructed and operates generating plants, transmission, and other tangible assets that are used to provide its 
members with a portion of their power needs. For some of those assets, there are legally enforceable liabilities that 
require removal, disposal, remediation and other activities associated with their future retirement or with the 
termination of leases and licenses. The Agency has recognized Asset Retirement Obligations for those future asset 
retirement activities. 

41 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Geothermal Plant Decommissioning 

The Agency developed the geothermal project (the "Geothermal Project") located on federal land in certain areas of 
Sonoma and Lake Counties, California (the "Geysers Area"}. In addition to the geothermal leasehold, wells, gathering 
system and related facilities, the Geothermal Project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2), 
with combined 165 MW (nameplate rating} turbine generator units utilizing low pressure, low temperature geothermal 
steam, associated electrical, mechanical and control facilities, a heat dissipation system, a steam gathering system, a 
transmission tapline and other related facilities. Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal 
property, which includes wellpads, access roads, steam wells and reinjection wells. 

Steam for NCPA's geothermal plants comes from lands in the Geysers Area, which are leased by NCPA from the federal 
government. NCPA operates these steam-supply areas. Operation of the geothermal plants at high generation levels, 
together with high steam usage by others in the same area, resulted in a decline in the steam production from the steam 
wells at a rate greater than expected. As a result, NCPA partnered with other geothermal operators in the Geysers Area 
to finance and construct the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project, which was completed in September 1997 and 
began operating soon thereafter. With the reduced rate of steam production decline, the useful life of the plant and 
associated tangible assets is projected through fiscal year 2059. 

Under terms of the federal geothermal leasehold agreements, which became effective August 1, 1974, the leasehold 
had a 10-year primary term with provision for renewal as long thereafter as geothermal steam is produced or utilized, 
but not longer than 40 years. At the expiration of that period, if geothermal steam was still being produced, NCPA had a 
preferential right to renew the leasehold for a second term. In 2013, NCPA renewed the leasehold. The leasehold also 
requires NCPA to remove its leasehold improvements including the geothermal plants and steam gathering system when 
and if NCPA abandons the leasehold. Additionally, the United States Department of the Interior and Bureau of Land 
Management issued the License for Electric Power Plant Site Utilizing Geothermal Resources. The license requires that 
NCPA remove all structures, machinery, and other equipment and restore the land within one year following the 
termination of the license. 

The Agency authorized a decommissioning study for the Geothermal Project, and Black and Veatch provided that study 
to NCPA in December 2016. The study included detailed cost estimates totaling approximately $59.3 million (figures 
compiled prior to fiscal year 2016) for all retirement obligation activities. The study also projected the costs through 
2020 using an Extrapolation Escalation Methodology for the following categories: 1) direct labor and subcontract costs 
less salvage value; 2} indirect costs; 3) construction equipment; 4} engineering and construction management; 5} and 
contingency. NCPA personnel then calculated the effective change between the escalated 2016 base and 2020 escalated 
costs to develop a composite escalation rate and assumed that the escalation rate was applicable evenly for each of the 
five years beginning in 2016; the resulting calculated annual escalation factor was 2.26%. The estimated retirement 
obligation costs for years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 are $67,784,000 and $66,285,000, respectively. The annual 
retirement expense for years ended June 30, 2020 and 2020 are $1,619,214 and $1,580,795, respectively. 

NCPA-has been collecting monies to pay the expe-ctecfclecommissioning costs since 2007 and holds $24.6 milHonin a-· 
designated reserve for such purpose as of June 30, 2021. The initial ARO recognition included a reclassification of that 
reserve from a liability to the members to a deferred inflow that will be reduced as the decommissioning costs are funded 
in the future. 

42 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Lodi Energy Center and Capital Facilities Proiect Well Plugging 

The agency owns and operates the Lodi Energy Center (LEC) and Capital Facilities projects located in Lodi, California. 

The Lodi Energy Center is a 296 megawatt base load, combined cycle, natural gas-fired, combustion turbine generating 
station (one gas turbine and one steam turbine). The electric generation components (the "Power Island") of the Lodi 
Energy Center consists of the following components: (1) one natural gas-fired Siemens STGS-S000F combustion turbine
generator (CTG), with an evaporative cooling system and dry low-NOx combustors to control air emissions; (2) one 3-
pressure heat recovery steam generator (HRSG), (3) a selective catalytic reduction (SCR) and carbon monoxide ("CO") 
catalyst to further control NOx and CO emissions, respectively; (4) one Siemens SST-900RH condensing steam turbine 
generator ("STG"); (5) one natural gas-fired auxiliary boiler; (6) one 7-cell draft evaporative cooling tower; and 
(7) associated support equipment. The Lodi Energy Center was placed into commercial operation on November 27, 2012. 
There is also a Class I Underground Injection Control Well, located at the West side of White Slough Water Treatment 
Plant at LEC. The useful life of the plant and associated tangible assets including the injection well is projected through 
fiscal year 2040. 

The Capital Facilities Project consists of a natural gas-fired combustion turbine power generating station, Unit One, with 
a design rating of 49.9 MW located in the City of Lodi. Construction of the Project began in September 1993, with 
commercial operation commencing in 1996. The power generating station consists of a single natural gas-fired steam 
injected gas turbine, generator, and required auxiliary and electrical interconnection systems. Additionally, the STIG 
project includes a Class I Underground Injection Control Well, located at the West side of White Slough Water Treatment 
Plant. The useful life of the plant and associated tangible assets including the injection well is projected through fiscal 
year 2040. 

The LEC and Capital Facilities projects are located on property owned by the City of Lodi (City). The Agency entered into 
the Second Amended and Restated Ground Lease by and between the City of Lodi (Landlord) and the Northern California 
Power Agency (Tenant), dated April 29, 2013. The agreement requires that upon termination of the lease, NCPA must 
abandon and close any and all injection wells utilized on the premises with the exception of the Southeast Corner Test 
Well, which is the responsibility of the City. Additionally, Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations set 
forth requirements in subpart F of 40 CFR part 144 for the Federal Underground Injection Control (UIC) program and the 
plugging of injection wells. 

The Agency commissioned engineering firm AECOM to develop construction cost estimates for closing the wells. The 
firm's estimates were included in Exhibit Q-1, Plugging and Abandonment Plan, Stig-1 & LEC-1 in a 2019 EPA permit filing. 
The estimated cost of plugging the Lodi Energy Center injection well totaled $0.169 million, and the estimated cost of 
plugging the Capital Facilities injection well totaled $0.149 million. The estimated costs are based on 
mobilization/demobilization, construction costs, contingency, and engineering and field oversight costs. The assumed 
escalation factor for these projects is 2.58% based on the 2018 Handy Handy-Whitman Index of Public Utility 
Construction Costs (Bulletin No. 187). 

43 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The estimated retirement obligation costs for the LEC well plugging is $187,491 with an annual retirement obligation 
expense of $8,210 for year ended June 30, 2021. The estimated retirement obligation costs for the LEC well plugging is 
$182,773 with an annual retirement obligation expense of $7,975 for year ended June 30, 2020. The estimated 
retirement obligation costs for the Capital Facilities Project well plugging is $164,724 with an annual retirement 
obligation expense of $7,213 for year ended June 30, 2021. The estimated retirement obligation costs for the Capital 
Facilities Project well plugging is $160,579 with an annual retirement obligation expense of $7,006 for year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

Currently there are no assets restricted for payment of the injection well closures. To meet the legally required funding 
and assurance provisions of the injection well closures, NCPA files with the EPA annually. This filing includes a financial 
test to demonstrate financial assurance, as specified in subpart F of 40 CFR part 144. 

NOTE G -- RETIREMENT PLAN 

General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan Descriptions The Agency provides a defined benefit retirement plan to all eligible employees under the Public 
Employees' Retirement System (PERS). The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (Cal PERS). Cal PERS issues publicly available reports 
that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

Benefits Provided CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and 
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of 
credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. In 2012, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEP RA) 
become law that implemented new benefit formulas and final compensation period, as well as new contribution 
requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who meet the definition of new member under 
PEPRA. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, and those new employees not meeting the PEPRA definition of new 
member, are considered classic members. 

44 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021 and 2020, are summarized as follows: 

Hire date 

Benefit formula 

Benefit vesting schedule 

Benefit payments 

Retirement age 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 

Required employee contribution rates 

Required employer contribution rates 

Prior to 
January 1, 2013 

2.5%@55 

5 full-time years 

monthly for life 

50-55 

2.0% to 2.5% 

8.00% 

32.649% 

On or After 
January 1, 2013 

2.0%@62 

5 full-time years 

monthly for life 

60- 67 

2.0%to 2.5% 

6.50% 

32.649% 

Employees Covered - At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for each 
Plan: 

2021 2020 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 155 142 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 16 15 

Active employees 152 151 

Total 323 308 

Contributions Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on 
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS' annual 
actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The 
employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 (the measurement dates), the average active 
employee contribution rates were 9.434% and 8.961%, respectively, of annual pay and the Agency's contribution rates 
are 40.970% and 42.713%, respectively, of annual payroll. Employer contribu_tion rates may change if plan contracts are 
amended. 

45 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Net Pension Liability - The Agency's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability, less the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured at prior year end, using annual 
actuarial valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to the measurement date, using standard update 
procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is shown 
below. 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 were determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

2021 2020 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.150% 7.150% 

Inflation 2.625% 2.750% 

Payroll Growth 2.875% 3.000% 

Projected Salary Increase 2.75%-8.50% (1) 2.75%-8.50% (1) 

Investment Rate of Return 7.250% (2) 7.375% (2) 

Mortality {3) (3) 

(1) Depending on age and service. 

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation. 
{3) Derived using CalPERS' specific membership data with projected on-going mortality improvement using Scale 

BB published by the Society of Actuaries. 

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine 
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the plan, CalPERS stress tested 
plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. 
Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate is adequate 
and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.15% will 
be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund {PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed 
report called "GASB Crossover Testing Report" that can be obtained at CalPERS' website under the GASB 68 section. 

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction for 
pension plan administrative expense. The 7.00% investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation is net 
of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding 

--adm-i.n~strative-expenses would have been 7.15%. For the me.asur-ement year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, using-this 
lower discount rate resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. This difference was 
deemed immaterial to the agent multiple-employer plan. 

46 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

On December 21 2016, CalPERS announced to employers that the CalPERS Board of Administration voted to lower the 
discount rate assumption, net of administrative expenses, from 7.5% to 7.0% over a three-year period as follows: 

• FY 2017-2018: 7.375% 

• FY 2018-2019: 7 .25 % 

• FY 2019-2020: 7 .00 % 

There will be a one-year implementation delay for school districts and public agencies deferring the first rate discount 
decrease to FY 2018-2019. Lowering the discount rate, also known as the assumed rate of return, means employers that 
contract with CalPERS to administer their pension plans will see increases in their normal costs and unfunded actuarial 
liabilities. CalPERS has estimated that the three-year reduction of the discount rate will result in average employer rate 
increases of about 1 percent to 3 percent of normal cost as a percent of payroll in addition to increases to the current 
unfunded accrued liability payments. Although CalPERS implemented the discount rate reduction over a three-year 

. period to mitigate the impact to employer agencies, the GASB 68 Accounting Report assumed that the effective discount 
rate is 7.15% effective for fiscal year 2018 forward. 

To mitigate the growing unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan for NCPA's 
Employee Pension Program which includes accelerated funding of the unfunded liability over a 15-year period. The plan 
includes: 1) a goal for minimum funding level of 80% within 15 years and annual Commission confirmation of the 
continued funding of the annual required employer contribution at 100%; 2) shorten the amortization period of the 
liability to 15 years; 3) research other ways to limit the pension liability; and 4) annual Finance Committee review in 
conjunction with annual CalPERS actuarial valuations and recommendation to the Commission as needed. In addition, 
the Agency has a budget policy that mandates an annual reconciliation of budgeted versus actual pension costs. The 
policy requires that positive budget variances are contributed as payments against the unfunded liability at year end. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market 
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that 
both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using 
historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound {geometric) returns were calculated over the short
term {first 10 years) and the long-term {11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal 
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected 
rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of 
benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
·was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of 
one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated 
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return 
are net of administrative expenses. 

47 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

For measurement period ending June 30, 2020: 

Asset Class 

Global Equity 

Private Equity 

Fixed Income 

Liquidity 

Real Estate 

Inflation Assets 

Other 

Strategic Allocation 
50.00% 

8.00% 

28.00% 

1.00% 

13.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

1 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period 
2 An expected inflation of 2.9% used for this period 

For measurement period ending June 30, 2019: 

Asset Class Strategic Allocation 

Global Equity 50.00% 

Private Equity 8.00% 

Fixed Income 28.00% 

Liquidity 1.00% 

Real Estate 13.00% 

Inflation Assets 0.00% 

Other 0.00% 

3 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period 
4 An expected inflation of 2.9% used for this period 

48 

Real Return 
Years 1-10 1 

4.80% 

6.30% 

1.00% 

0.00% 

3.75% 

0.77% 

0.00% 

Real Return 
Years 1-10 1 

4.80% 

6.30% 

1.00% 

0.00% 

3.75% 

0.77% 

0.00% 

Real Return 
Years 11+ 2 

5.98% 

7.23% 

2.62% 

-0.92% 

4.93% 

1.81% 

0.00% 

Real Return 
Years 11+ 2 

5.98% 

7.23% 

2.62% 

-0.92% 

4.93% 

1.81% 

0.00% 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

The change in the Net Pension Liability for each Plan follows: 

lncrease/(Decrease) 

Description 

Balance at June 30, 2020 

Service cost incurred 

Interest on total pension liability 
Differences between actual and expected 
experience 

Change in assumption 

Change in benefits 

Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement 

Contributions - employer 

Contributions - employee 

Net investment income 
Differences between projected and actual earnings 
on plan investments 

Benefit payments 

Administrative expense 

Other Miscellaneous lncome/(Expense) 

Net changes 

Balance at June 30, 2021 

Total Pension 
Liability 

$ 169,590,988 

$ 

49 

3,605,566 

12,102,589 

2,181,919 

(8,617,434) 

9,272,640 

178,863,628 

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 

$ 108,609,501 

8,878,939 

2,044,537 

5,409,344 

(8,617,434) 

{153,113) 

7,562,273 

$ 116,171,774 

Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) 

$ 60,981,487 

$ 

3,605,566 

12,102,589 

2,181,919 

(8,878,939) 

(2,044,537) 

(5,409,344) 

153,113 

1,710,367 

62,691,854 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

lncrease/(Decrease) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 

Description Liability Net Position Liability /(Asset) 

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 160,611,316 $ 99,538,182 $ 61,073,134 

Service cost incurred 3,521,688 3,521,688 

Interest on total pension liability 11,463,532 11,463,532 
Differences between actual and expected 
experience 1,919,478 1,919,478 

Change in assumption 

Change in benefits 

Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement 

Contributions - employer 8,704,519 {8,704,519) 

Contributions - employee 1,826,209 {1,826,209) 

Net investment income 6,536,424 {6,536,424) 
Differences between projected and actual earnings 
on plan investments 

Benefit payments {7,925,026) (7,925,026) 

Administrative expense {71,033) 71,033 

Other Miscellaneous lncome/(Expense) 226 (226) 

Net changes 8,979,672 9,071,319 {91,647) 

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 169,590,988 $ 108,609,501 $ 60,981,487 

50 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.15% for 2021 
and 6.15% for 2020) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15% for 2020 and 8.15% for 2019) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1% 
2021 (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%) 

Plan's Net Pension Liability $ 85,549,969 $ 62,691,854 $ 43,654,455 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate+ 1% 
2020 (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%) 

Plan's Net Pension Liability $ 82,947,879 $ 60,981,487 $ 42,702,182 

51 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
For the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency incurred pension expense of $8,355,692 and $8,084,855, 
respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions as follows: 

2021 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 
Changes in assumptions 
Differences between actual and expected experience 

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 

Total 

2020 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 
Changes in assumptions 
Differences between actual and expected experience 

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 

Total 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 11,158,004 

2,542,860 

1,175,122 

$ 14,875,986 

of Resources 

$ 

$ 

{1,315,245) 
{86,936) 

{1,402,181) 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

$ 8,879,479 $ 
2,208,826 {2,510,923) 
1,441,487 {661,018) 

{396,185) 

$ 12,529,792 $ {3,568,126) 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date of $11,158,004 and $8,879,479 reported as deferred outflows 
of resources for years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

52 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

For reporting year ended June 30, 2021, amounts reported as deferred outflows {inflows) of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 

Measurement Period Ended June 30: 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 

Total 

Deferred Outflows/ 
(Inflows) of Resources 

$ {491,412i) 

$ 

1,262,118 
1,066,345 

478,750 

2,315,801 

Payable to the Pension Plan At June 30, 2021 and 2020 the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of contributions 
payable to the pension plan required for the years ended. 

NOTE H --OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

The Agency contracts with the CalPERS under the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) for 
employee medical insurance. In connection with this plan, the Agency provides medical insurance to all active 
employees and their families, as well as all qualified retirees {and spouses), subject to certain limitations. The Agency 
has maintained an actuarially based restricted fund for the sole purpose of paying medical insurance premiums for 
qualified retired employees {and spouses) participating in the CalPERS medical plan. In 2007, the Agency became a 
participant in the CalPERS California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), a pre-funding OPEB plan, which is an 
irrevocable multi-employer trust and plan consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled 
administrative and investment functions. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include the net changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position by Employer that can be found on the Cal PERS website. 

The Agency makes its Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) to this OPEB plan annually. The ADC represents the 
service cost plus an amortized amount of net OPEB liabilities (NOL). The amortization of NOL is based on a 30 year level 
dollar amount on a "closed" basis. There are 23 years remaining as of the measurement date of June 30, 2020. 

53 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Summary of certain plan provisions and benefits in effect during fiscal year ended June 30, 2020: 

Required service for eligibility 

Minimum retirement age 
Benefit payments 
Vesting for eligible employees 

Maximum monthly benefit 

Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 5 full-time years 
On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 5 full-time years and 
minimum 10 years CalPERS service 
so 
Monthly for life 
Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 100% at 5 years 
On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 50% at 10 years; 
5%/year up to 100% at 20 years 
Hired pre-1/1/2019, 90% of Kaiser Family rate for 
the Sacramento area (Region 1). For Hydroelectric 
and Geothermal based employees, their cap is 
increased by $75. Hired 1/1/2019 and later, 
capped at 100% of Kaiser Senior Advantage rate for 
Sacramento area (Region 1). For Geothermal based 
employees where the Kaiser plan is not available, 
their cap is increased by $75. 

Employees Covered -At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for each 
Plan: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 

Total 

2021 

148 

150 

298 

2020 

148 

150 

298 

Contributions The Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) and funded status of the OPEB plan were determined 
based on current cost trends of the CalPERS health plans in which the employees curre·ntly participate at the time of 
the actuarial valuation. The June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation (rollforward to June 30, 2020) was prepared on the basis 
of the OPEB assumption model, as prescribed by the CalPERS, in effect at the time of the valuation. At fiscal year-end 
June 30, 2021, the Agency had 150 active eligible employees and 148 retirees drawing benefits under this program. 

The ADC and funded status of the plan are subject to periodic revision based on actual results, changes in assumptions 
or plan provisions, and new estimates of expected future circumstances. Future actuarial valuations will be performed 
every two years, as prescribed by CalPERS. 

The Agency's ADC (based on actuarially established rates) was determined as part of a June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation 
using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The primary actuarial assumptions included: valuation using the Entry 
Age Normal Cost Method, 6.75% annual discount rate, payroll growth of 3.52% to 9.27%, 2.75% inflation, and maximum 
employer contribution increases derived from the Getzen Model for developing long-term health care cost trends. 

54 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

To mitigate the growing OPEB unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan for the 
NCPA Retiree Medical Plan which includes: 1} establish a goal to obtain a minimum funding level of 80% within 15 years 
and confirm the policy of funding 100% or more of the ARC each year; 2} reduce actuarial liability by developing a cap 
for health care premiums going forward; 3) shorten the amortization period used in the actuarial calculations from 28 
years to 15 years; 4) consider additional funding sources for increased funding of the ARC, including further budget 
reductions or new revenues (from members or new services/customers}; and 5} conduct new actuarial studies on a 
biennial basis as required and review the updated results with the Finance Committee, who will make recommendations 
for revision to the Commission as needed. 

The Agency has a budget policy that mandates an annual reconciliation of budgeted versus actual OPEB costs. The policy 
requires that positive budget variances are contributed as payments against the unfunded liability at fiscal year-end. 
Additionally, effective 1/1/2019, NCPA created a third-tier level for OPEB for employees hired after that date. Employees 
in tier three are eligible for Agency payment of 100% of the CalPERS Kaiser Senior Advantage rate for Sacramento area 
(Region 1}; Tier 1 and Tier 2 employees are eligible for Agency payment of 90% of the CalPERS Kaiser Family Rate for 
Sacramento area. The change was included in the fiscal year 2020 actuarial valuation rollforward and will reduce NCPA's 
OPEB liability on a going forward basis as the Agency hires future employees. 

Net OPEB Liability The Agency's net liability for the OPEB Plan is measured as the total OPEB liability, less the OPEB 
plan's fiduciary net position. The net OPEB liability of the Plan is measured at prior year end, using annual actuarial 
valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to the measurement date, using standard update procedures. 
A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net OPEB liability is shown below. 

55 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Actuarial Assumptions The total OPEB liabilities as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

2021 2020 

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 

Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 6.75% 6.75% 

Inflation 3.52% 2.75% 

Payroll Growth 3.52%-9.27% 3.52%-9.27% 

Projected Salary Increase Varies (1) Varies (1) 

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% (2) 6.75% (2) 

Mortality (3) {3) 

Healthcare cost trend rates (4) (4) 

(1) Depending on age and service. 
(2) Net of OPEB trust investment expenses, including inflation. 
(3) Mortality rates are based on the 2016 California PERS {CalPERS) Pension report and includes a projection to 2028 

using scale BB to account for anticipated future mortality improvement. 
(4) Medical inflation was based on the "Getzen" model published by the Society of Actuaries for purposes of 

evaluating long term medical trends. A margin to reflect the impact of the excise tax in future years is reflected 
in the assumed trend. The trend also reflects the removal of the Health Insurer Fee for calendar year 2019. This 
fee was assessed again in calendar year 2020. 

The Agency changed its OPEB trust funding strategy to a more conservative asset allocation in fiscal year 2022. This 
change is not expected to have a material impact on the net liability. 

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that the Agency's contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially 
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on OPEB trust investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total OPEB liability. To the extent that OPEB trust assets are insufficient to finance all OPEB benefits, 
the discount rate should be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or higher Municipal Bonds as of the measurement date. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plar-1-inves-t-m-ents was determined using a building-block method i-nwlltt-R-
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected 
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the followingtable {net of administrative expenses): 

56 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

For measurement period ending June 30, 2020: 

Asset Class 
Global Equity 
US Fixed Income 
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 
Real Estate Investment Trusts 
Commodities 

For measurement period ending June 30, 2019: 

Asset Class 
Global Equity 
US Fixed Income 
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 
Real Estate Investment Trusts 
Commodities 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

Description 

Target Allocation 
59.00% 
25.00% 
5.00% 
8.00% 
3.00% 

Target Allocation 
59.00% 
25.00% 
5.00% 
8.00% 
3.00% 

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return 
8.15% 
6.38% 
3.72% 
7.77% 
5.32% 

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

8.15% 
6.38% 
3.72% 
7.77% 
5.32% 

lncrease/(Decrease) 
Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

Balance at June 30, 2020 
Service cost incurred 

$ 37,441,896 $ 35,420,034 

Interest on total OPEB liability 
Differences between actual and expected experience 
Change in assumption 
Change in benefits 
Contributions - employer 
Contributions - employee 
Net investment income 
Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan 

investments 

Benefit payments 
Administrative expense 

Net changes 

931,808 
2,521,369 

(2,074,034) 

1,379,143 

3,913,580 

1,311,739 

(2,074,034) 
(17,734) 

3,133,551 

Net OPEB 
Liability /(Asset) 
$ 2,021,862 

931,808 
2,521,369 

(3,913,580) 

(1,311,739) 

17,734 
(1,754,408) 

Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 38,821,039 $ 38,553,SSS----$-- 267,454 

57 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Balance at June 30, 2019 

Service cost incurred 

Description 

Interest on total OPEB liability 
Differences between actual and expected experience 
Change in assumption 
Change in benefits 
Contributions - employer 
Contributions - employee 
Net investment income 
Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan 

investments 

Benefit payments 
Administrative expense 

Net changes 

$ 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

36,314,217 
1,036,513 
2,456,709 
(873,781} 
450,018 

(1,941,780) 

1,127,679 

lncrease/(Decrease) 

Plan Fiduciary 

$ 
Net ~osition 

31,261,362 

4,094,854 

2,012,435 

(1,941,780) 
(6,837) 

4,158,672 

Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) 

$ 5,052,855 
1,036,513 
2,456,709 
(873,781} 
450,018 

(4,094,854} 

(2,012,435) 

6,837 
(3,030,993) 

Balance at June 30, 2020 $ 37,441,896 $ 35,420,034 $ 2,021,862 

58 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage 
point higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

2021 
Plan's Net OPEB Liability 

2020 
Plan's Net OPEB Liability 

Discount Rate - 1% 
(5.75%) 

$ 4,826,347 

Discount Rate-1% 
(5.75%) 

$ 6,456,442 

59 

Current Discount 
Rate (6. 75%) 

$ 267,454 

Current Discount 
Rate (6.75%) 

$ 2,021,862 

Discount Rate + 1% 
(7.75%) 

$ (3,528,870} 

Discount Rate + 1% 
(7.75%) 

$ (1,669,333} 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan, as well as what the Plan's net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 

2021 
Plan's Net OPEB Liability 

2020 
Plan's Net OPEB Liability 

Healthcare Costs 
Trend Rate-1% 
$ (4,307,488} 

Healthcare Costs 
Trend Rate - 1% 
$ (2,089,383) 

Current Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate 
$ 267,454 

Current Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate 
$ 2,021,862 

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

Healthcare Costs 
Trend Rate + 1% 

$ 5,846,948 

Healthcare Costs 
Trend Rate + 1% 

$ 7,081,920 

For the year ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency incurred· OPEB expense of $986,621 and $1,057,789, 
respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPES as follows: 

2021 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date 

Differences between actual and expected experience 
Changes in consumption 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 

Total 

2020 

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date 

---Dif-fe-r-ences between actual and expected experience 
Changes in consumption 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 

Total 

60 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 1,939,713 

270,010 

1,013,052 

$ 3,222,775 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 3,911,488 

360,014 

135,168 

$ 4,406,670 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

{524,269} 

(260,155} 

$ (784,424) 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

(699,025) 

(470,075} 

$ (1,169,100} 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in future OPEB expense 
as follows: 

Measurement Period Ended June 30, 2021: 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows/(lnflows) of 

Resources 
$ (32,958) 

$ 

126,716 
176,956 
227,924 

498,638 

Payable to the OPEB Plan At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of contributions 
payable to the OPEB plan required for the year ended. 

The funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions are subject to periodic revision based on actual 
results, changes in assumptions or plan provisions, and new estimates of expected future circumstances. Future 
actuarial valuations will be performed every two years, as prescribed by CalPERS. 

NOTE I -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Power Purchase Contracts The Agency had commitments of approximately $39.2 million in connection with various 
power purchase contracts as of June 30, 2021. The contracts, extending through December 2040, are normal purchases 
at agreed to contract prices for fixed quantities of energy. Certain of the Agency's members have individually entered 
into certain other long-term contracts, which the Agency dispatches and schedules for them. See Note B - Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies. 

Some of these power purchase contracts include Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) which are qualified by Western 
Renewable Energy Generation Information Systems (WREGIS) and used to meet California's Renewable Energy Portfolio. 
Generation from solar, wind, geothermal and certain sized hydroelectric units receive RECs for each MWh of renewable 
generation. Excess RECs may be sold in the California compliance market. At June 30, 2021, negotiated REC prices range 
from $15 to $16 per REC. 

Resource Adequacy Contracts The Agency had commitments of approximately $2.6 million in connection with various 
resource adequacy capacity contracts as of June 30, 2021. The contracts, extending through December 2021, are normal 
purchases at agreed to contract prices for fixed quantities of capacity. Certain ofthe Agency's members have individually 
entered into other long-term capacity contracts. 

61 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Fuel Supply Agreements The Agency has entered into the following agreements to provide natural gas fuel supply for 
use in its generation resources: 

• A 30-year agreement terminating in October 2023 with various natural gas pipeline management companies under 
which the Agency has acquired firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity in four separate natural gas pipelines 
between Alberta, Canada and northern California. The estimated minimum annual natural gas transmission 
commitment is approximately $700,000. The Agency's firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity is scheduled 
by Mercuria Energy Gas Trading, LLC (Mercuria) pursuant to the term and conditions of an Asset Management 
Agreement for Pipeline Transportation Capacity that became effective on January 1, 2015. 

• On behalf of the participants in the Combustion Turbine Project Number One and the Capital Facilities project, the 
Agency entered into an agreement with EDF Trading North America, LLC (EDF) effective January 1, 2013 to provide 
natural gas supply and scheduling, nomination, balancing and settlement services. The contract automatically 
renews each year on January 1, unless terminated earlier by six-months written notice by either party. 

• The Agency had approximately $9.2 million of gas purchase commitments at June 30, 2021. The commitments, 
extending through December 2023, are normal purchases at agreed to prices for fixed quantities of gas. 

Western Area Power Administration Base Resource A number of the Agency's members, who had an aggregate 
18.87957% of the Base Resource Contract with the Western Area Power Administration to receive electric power from 
the Central Valley Project in California, have assigned their shares to the Agency in order to create a power resource 
portfolio for the mutual benefit of participating Agency members. The assignments terminate the earlier of 
December 31, 2024 or 60 days after Western approves a reassignment. 

Geothermal Royalties Under terms offederal geothermal leasehold agreements, the Agency is required to pay royalties 
to the United States (U.S.) on the value of geothermal steam produced. Currently, the effective rate of such royalties is 
4.05% of an amount based on the Agency's monthly weighted average cost of third-party wholesale electricity purchases 
made by Agency members participating in the Geothermal Project. The U.S. Department of the Interior, Office of Natural 
Resources Revenue maintains the rightto periodically review and withdraw their approval or to change this methodology 
should operations, market conditions, or Federal regulations change. 

CLAIMS AND LITIGATION 

California Energy Crisis During 2000 and 2001, California experienced extreme fluctuations in the prices and supplies of 
natural gas and electricity in much of the State. While there has been progress in addressing these issues, uncertainty 
remains. As a result, no assurance can be given that measures undertaken, together with measures to be taken in the 
future, will prevent the recurrence of shortages, price volatility or other energy problems that have adversely affected 
California electric utilities in the past. The Agency has settled with the plaintiffs in related litigation, and while the 
settlement has been approved by FERC, there are still some claims by others that remain ongoing. Although the Agency 
considers these claims to be laGking--in-me-r-it; -no assurance thereof can be given until all-p.roGoodings are finally 
concluded. 

The California Parties have complet_~d t_he process of reconciling the amounts recorded on the ISO and PX books with 
all the settlements entered into by the California Parties (including the settlement with NCPA). In their April 22, 2020 
filing, the California Parties asserted that no adjustments were needed for NCPA to account for the differences 
between the interest owed and interest actually collected on certain escrow accounts. FERC accepted the California 

62 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Parties' April 2020 filing. Those FERC orders are now final and unappealable. However, other issues related to the 
2000-2001 period remain pending on appeal, the outcomes of which could theoretically impact the settlement 
reconciliation that FERC accepted. 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (also known as California 
Assembly Bill 32 or AB 32} requires the gradual reduction of state-wide GHG emissions to the 1990 level by 2020. The 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the state agency charged with monitoring GHG levels and adopting regulations 
to implement and enforce AB 32. The CARB has approved various regulations, including regulations that established a 
state-wide, comprehensive "cap-and-trade" program that sets a gradually declining limit (or "cap") on the amount of 
GHGs that may be emitted by the major sources of GHG emissions each year. GHG emissions are measured in metric 
tons (MT) of carbon dioxide-equivalent greenhouse gases (C02e) per year. 

The cap and trade program's first two-year compliance period, which began January 1, 2013, applies to the electricity 
generation and large industrial sectors. The next compliance period, from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017, 
expanded to include the natural gas supply and transportation sectors, effectively covering all the capped sectors until 
2020. In July 2017, CARB adopted an updated set of cap-and-trade regulations that extends the cap-and-trade program 
to 2030. The updated regulations continue the direct allocation of allowances to distribution utilities which in turn can 
be transferred by members to the Agency. 

The Agency's Lodi Energy Center gas plant, Steam Injected Gas Turbine gas plant and electricity imports (purchased 
power) are subject to the compliance rules established by CARB for the cap-and-trade program. As such, the Agency 
acquires sufficient compliance instruments to cover its compliance obligations or receives transfers of required 
compliance instruments from its project participants. At June 30, 2021, the Agency had cumulative compliance 
obligations of 1,210,065 MT with 1,366,031 MT of acquired allowances to meet its compliance obligations. At June 30, 
2020, the Agency had cumulative compliance obligations of 945,062 MT with 1,355,782 MT of acquired allowances to 
meet its compliance obligations .. 

Other Factors Affecting the Electric Utility Industry Electric industry market participants, such as the Agency and its 
members, continue to face numerous potential risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, significant volatility 
in energy prices and increased transmission and ancillary services costs; new federal and state renewable energy 
requirements, operating efficiency, and environmental standards; and, global pressures on economic and financial 
market conditions. The Agency and its members continue to study and to take various actions in an effort to mitigate 
and manage these risk and uncertainties. However, the Agency cannot predict either the ultimate outcome of these 
ongoing changes or whether such outcome will have a material adverse effect on its financial position or results of 
operations. 

Other Legal Matters The Agency is engaged in various legal proceedings before federal and state courts and various 
administrative tribunals incidental to the Agency's operations. 

Based on its review of the aforementioned proceedings with outside legal counsel, the Agency believes that the ultimate 
aggregate liability, if any, resulting from these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the combined 
financial position or--result-s---0f operations of the Agency. 

Claims On September 9, 2015, a major wildfire (The Valley Fire) occurred in the California counties of Lake, Napa, and 
Sonoma. The fire burned approximately 74,000 acres and destroyed approximately 1,960 structures including homes, 
commercial properties, and other minor structures. The Agency's Geysers geothermal and effluent projects are located 
in Lake and Sonoma Counties, and some of those facilities were damaged in the fire. Damage and reparation costs 
totaled $1.74 million in 2015 and 2016. A Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued on September 22, 2015. Public 

63 



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Assistance was added to the Disaster Declaration on October 9, 2015. The Agency recovered $531,317 from the project 
insurance policy in fiscal year 2017. To date the Agency has collected $290,200 in public assistance grants and this 
project is in the project-close-out process. NCPA will record additional proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the 
fiscal year in which they are received. 

During the period of January 3-12, 2017, severe winter storms caused flooding and mudslides in many California 
Counties. As a result of those storms, the Beaver Creek Diversion Dam and McKays Point Reservoir filled with sediment 
and debris, and Beaver Creek required emergency dredging after the river flows receded during the summer. 
Additionally, much of the Project was inaccessible for weeks as a result of numerous road failures. Repair costs totaled 
approximately $2.2 million. Construction was completed in fall 2017. The Agency recovered $1,270,036 from the 
project insurance policy in fiscal year 2018. On February 14, 2017, a Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued 
including federal disaster assistance. To date the Agency has collected $109,500 in public assistance grants and this 
project is in the project-close-out process. NCPA will record additional proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the 
fiscal year in which they are received. 

In December 2019, a novel (new) coronavirus known as SARS.CoV-2 (COVID-19) was detected in Wuhan, China, causing 
outbreaks that have spread globally. The Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health 
emergency on January 31, 2020. The Federal Government, along with State and local governments, has taken preventive 
and proactive measures to slow the spread of COVID-19, treat those affected, and accelerate the acquisition of personal 
protective equipment. On March 13, 2020, a Presidential National Emergency Declaration was issued including Public 
Assistance. In accordance with Section 502 of the Stafford Act, eligible emergency protective measures taken to respond 
to the COVID-19 emergency at the direction or guidance of the public health officials' may be reimbursed under Category 
B of Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Public Assistance program. The Agency implemented certain 
procedures to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 in accordance with recommendations by the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (CDC) and the Placer County Health Department. The Agency has filed a claim to recover costs associated 
with these new procedures. As of June 30, 2021, the claim remained active with no disbursements received from FEMA. 

Risk Management The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to or destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, and on the job injuries of employees. These risks are covered through the purchase of, 
property, commercial, directors and officers, and workers compensation insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled 
claims with insurers have not exceeded the commercial liability limits in any of the past three years. During the Agency's 
insurance renewal period in FY 2020, multiple catastrophic California wildfires that occurred over the last few years as 
well as fires in 2019 had a significant impact on the liability insurance market in California. In addition, some insurers 
have left the market completely while others have reduced capacities and/or excluded wildfire coverage altogether. As 
a result, the Agency experienced upward price pressure for liability and property coverage during FY 2021. Wildfire 
liability insurance coverage limits decreased from $75.0 million to $35.0 million while premiums for the reduced limits 
increased by 24.2%. Property coverage remained comparable to prior year, while premiums increased by 50%. 

In compliance with Senate Bill 901, the Agency has developed and implemented a Wildfire Risk Mitigation Plan at the 
Geothermal and Hydroelectric Plants to utilize proactive measures to prevent or limit fires and resulting damages before 
they occur. 

64 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
and Related Ratios Last 10 Measurement Years * 

FY2020 FY2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY2016 FY 2015 FY2014 

Total Pension Liability 

Service cost $ 3,605,566 $ 3,521,688 $ 3,511,108 $ 3,548,776 $ 3,152,017 $ 3,256,167 $ 3,220,329 

Interest on total pension liability 12,102,589 11,463,532 10,837,217 10,678,090 10,328,232 9,734,270 9,285,364 
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 2,181,919 1,919,478 {324,038) (1,980,198) 581,539 (1,437,389) 

Changes in assumptions {4,902,279) 8,835,307 {2,354,661) 

Changes in benefits 
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions (8,617,434) (7,925,026} (7,101,870) (6,410,415) (5,988,393) (5,522,982} (5,059,144) 

Net change in total pension liability 9,272,640 8,979,672 2,020,138 14,671,560 8,073,395 3,675,405 7,446,549 

Total pension liability - beginning 169,590,988 160,611,316 158,591,178 143,919,618 135,846,223 132,170,818 124,724,269 

Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 178,863,628 $ 169,590,988 $ 160,611,316 $ 158,591,178 $ 143,919,618 $ 135,846,223 $ 132,170,818 

Plan fiduciary net posit on 

Contributions - emplqyer $ 8,878,939 $ 8,704,519 $ 7,769,425 $ 6,752,236 $ 5,406,928 $ 5,584,985 $ 5,507,642 

Contributions - emplqyee 2,044,537 1,826,209 1,532,206 1,556,483 1,453,722 1,433,343 1,410,488 

Net investment income 5,409,344 6,536,424 7,654,116 8,979,321 434,144 1,754,108 10,868,237 

Benefit payments (8,617,434) (7,925,026) (7,101,870) (6,410,415) (5,988,393} (5,522,982) (5,059,144) 

Administrative and other expense (153,113) (70,807) (407,211) (117,127) {47,581) (87,934) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 7,562,273 9,071,319 9,446,666 10,760,498 1,258,820 3,161,520 12,727,223 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 108,609,501 99,538,182 90,091,182 79,331,018 78,072,198 74,910,678 62,183,455 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 116,171,774 $ 108,609,501 $ 99,538,182 $ 90,091,516 $ 79,331,018 $ 78,072,198 $ 74,910,678 

Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b) $ 62,691,854 $ 60,981,487 $ 61,073,1_34 $ 68,499,662 $ 64,588,600 $ 57,774,025 $ 57,260,140 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 64.95% 64.04% 61.97% 56.81% 55.12% 57.47% 56.68% 

Covered - employee payroll $ 19,140,650 $ 20,379,246 $ 19,045,878 $ 18,573,174 $ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293 $ 17,596,462 

Net pension liability as percentage of covered-
employee payroll 313.32% 318.60% 320.66% 368.81% 356.42% 314.58% 325.41% 

65 



Notes to Schedule: 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Benefit changes The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes, which occurred 
after June 30, 2020. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers to Two Years Additional Service Credit (aka 
Golden Handshakes). 

Changes in assumptions In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS 
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. In 2017, CalPERS reduced the discount rate from 7.65% 
to 7.15%. In 201~, GASS 68 was modified to state that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension 
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. Accordingly, the discount rate was 
changed from 7.50 percent (net of administrative expense in 2014) to 7.65 percent as of June 30, 2015 measurement date to 
reflect this required methodology change. 

* Measurement fiscal year 2014 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 

66 



Schedule of Pension Plan 
Contributions 
Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

Actuarially Determined 
Contribution $ 

Contributions in Relation to 
the Actuarially Determined 
Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency 
(Excess) $ 

Covered-Employee Payroll1 $ 

Contributions as a 
Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll1 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued 
(UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

FY 2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 

7,437,021 $ 6,839,592 $ 6,837,159 $ 6,263,130 $ 5,715,970 

(8,878,939) (8,704,519) (8,703,934) (7,769,768) (6,752,236) 

(1,441,918) $ (1,864,927) $ (1,866,775) $ (1,506,638) $ (1,036,266) 

20,008,691 $ 19,140,650 $ 20,379,246 $ 19,045,878 $ 18,573,174 

44.38% 45.48% 42.71% 40.79% 36.35% 

FY2016 FY2015 

$ 5,406,928 $ 5,065.861 

(5,406,928) (5,584,985) 

$ $ (519.124) 

$ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293 

29.84% 30.41% 

1 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer. However, GASB 68 
defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan. 
Pensionable earnings are covered employee payroll reduced for earnings and other earnings adjustments not subject to pension 
contributions. 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown. 

67 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- Continued 
(UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB 
Liability and Related Ratios Last 10 
Measurement Years * 

FY2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost $ 931,808 $ 1,036,513 $ 970,972 $ 909,576 

Interest on total OPEB liability 2,521,369 2,456,709 2,354,734 2,256,395 
Differences between expected and actual 
experience (873,781) 

Changes in assumptions 450,018 

Changes in benefits 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions (2,074,034) (1,941,780) (1,821,195) (1,721,416) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,379,143 1,127,679 1,504,511 1,444,555 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 37,441,896 36,314,217 34,809,706 33,365,151 

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 38,821,039 $ 37,441,896 $ 36,314,217 $ 34,809,706 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Contributions - employer $ 3,913,580 $ 4,094,854 $ 3,642,455 $ 3,914,644 

Contributions - employee 

Net investment income 1,311,739 2,012,435 2,147,351 2,390,569 

Benefit payments (2,074,034) (1,941,780) (1,821,195) (1,721,416) 

Administrative expense (17,734) (6,837) (14,755) (11,683) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,133,551 4,158,672 3,953,856 4,572,114 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 35,420,034 31,261,362 27,307,506 22,735,392 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 38,553,585 $ 35,420,034 $ 31,261,362 $ 27,307,506 

Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) $ 267,454 $ 2,021,862 $ 5,052,855 $ 7,502,200 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total OPEB liability 99.31% 94.60% 86.09% 78.45% 

Covered - employee payroll $ 21,671,909 $ 20,379,246 $ 19,556,204 $ 18,573,174 

Net OPEB liability as percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 1.23% 9.92% 25.84% 40.39% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit changes The benefit payments for FY 2020, FY 2019, FY 2018 and FY 2017 consist of pay-as-you-go cost of 
$1,653,682, $1,521,428, $1,426,947 and $1,394,637, respectively, plus estimated implicit rate subsidy of $420,352, 
$420,352, $394,248 and $326,779, respectively. 

Changes in assumptions NCPA funds, at minimum, the Actuarially Determined Contribution to the OPEB fund. 
During measurement perioa ending June 30, 2017, discount rate decreased-from,~0%-to 6.75%. 

* Measurement fiscal year 2017 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown. 

68 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -Continued 
(UNAUDITED) 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 
Last 10 Fiscal Years * FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY2018 

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 1,167,000 $ 1,300,000 $ 1,676,000 $ 1,426,947 
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution {1,939,713} (3,911,488} (3,674,502} (3,454,933} 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess} $ (772,713} $ (2,611,488} $ (1,998,502} $ 2,027,985} 

Covered-Employee Payroll $ 22,705,334 $ 21,671,910 $ 20,379,247 $ 19,556,203 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee 
Payroll1 8.54% 18.05% 18.03% 17.67% 

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown. 

Valuation Date: 
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in 
which contributions are reported. 

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contributions Rates: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rates 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 
Retirement age 

Mortality 

Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
15 years 
5-year smoothed market 
6.75 percent 
7.75% for pre-65 and 6.00% for post-65 
3.52 percent 
6. 75 percent 
In the 2019 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of 
general employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual 
experience. 
Rates based on statistics taken from the latest California PERS 
(CalPERS} Pension Valuation Report. The mortality rates include an 
assumed improvement in future mortality based on Scale BB projected 
to 2028. 

69 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

June 30, 2021 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power& Member Other 

ASSETS Geothermal Hxdroelectric Facilities No.One Ener~ Center No.One Transmission Services A;encl Combined 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted $ 5,011 $ 37,366 $ 1,272 $ - $ 7,997 $ - $ 4,487 $ - $ - $ 56,133 

Unrestricted 661 5,070 1 1 1,788 14,515 110 58,957 81,103 

Investments 
Restricted 1,622 5,352 2,870 7,457 17,301 

Unrestricted 2,901 1,570 1,613 1,524 18,006 25,614 

Accounts receivable 
Participants 

I 

39 135 174 

Other 648 5,631 238 9,615 16,132 

IDIU,rtm,iv,bl, I 
120 105 46 78 426 775 

Inventory and supplies 1,514 1,572 332 284 2,186 5,888 

Prepaid expenses ! 676 890 71 103 684 84 741 3,249 

Due from Agency and other programs* 9,348 (478) 2,657 5,832 19,244 21,909 7,033 (65,545) 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 22,501 51,447 7,203 6,220 41,015 48,144 7,504 22,335 206,369 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Investments 

Restricted 4,401 4,401 

Unrestricted 22,569 13,818 8,374 17,870 78,992 141,623 

Electric plant in service 574,947 395,293 64,865 37,224 410,208 7,736 894 6,165 1,497,332 

Less: accumulated depreciation !546,087) (290,558) ~54,980} !35,068} !109,018} (7,736) {635} ~3,994} (1,048,076) 

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 51,429 ___!!!,_553 9,885 2,156 _ 313,965 17,870 259 81,163 595,280 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 289 123,790 4,805 29,810 51,305 209,999 

Investment in associated company 265 265 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 289 123,790 4,805 29,810 51,570 210,264 

TOTAL ASSETS 74,219 293,790 21,893 8,376 384,790 66,014 7,763 155,068 1,011,913 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 823 9,961 1,185 11,969 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 18,099 18,099 
Asset Retirement Obligations 61,530 165 187 61,882 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 62,353 9,961 165 1,372 18,099 91,950 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 136,572 $ 303,751 $ 22,058 $ 8,376 $ 386,162 $ $ 66,014 $ 7,763 $ 173,167 $ 1,103,863 

* Eliminated in Combination 

70 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 
June 30, 2021 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hvdroelectric Facilities No.One Enerp Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined 

LlABfilTIBS l 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expens s $ 511 $ 646 $ - $ 1 $ 6,059 $ - $ 38,083 $ 44 $ 17,476 $ 62,820 
Accounts and retentions payable - resiricted for construction 
Member advances 791 202 993 
Operating reserves 2,077 250 617 4,221 15,995 23,160 
Current portion of long-term debt 4,690 21,750 4,080 12,880 43,400 

Accrued interest payable 136 4,571 339 1,101 6,147 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,205 27,217 5,036 4,222 36,035 38,083 246 17,476 136,520 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 62,959 62,959 

Operating reserves and other deposits 1,500 18,992 142 38,473 1,453 83,932 144,492 

Interest rate swap liability 16,045 16,045 

Asset Retirement Obligations 67,784 165 187 68,136 

Long-term debt, net 10,815 234,073 15,236 293,654 553,778 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 80,099 269,110 15,401 293,983 38,473 1,453 146,891 845,410 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 88,304 296,327 20,437 4,222 330,018 76,556 1,699 ___!_(i'!,~7 981,930 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory-credits 41,810 3,927 1,157 2,395 39,683 259 2,887 92,118 

Pension and OPEB deferrals 2,187 2,187 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 41,810 3,927 1,157 2,395 39,683 259 5,074 94,305 

NET POSITTON 
Net investment in capital assets 2,027 (25,269) (5,055) 3,209 (25,088} 
Restricted for debt service 3,964 28,655 3,775 6,050 42,444 
Unrestricted 

I 
467 111 1,744 1,759 7,202 (10,542} 5,805 3,726 10,272 

TOTAL NET POSITION I 6,458 3,497 464 1,759 16,461 (10,542) 5,805 3,726 27,628 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND NET PosrhoN $ 136,572 $ 303,751 $ 22,058 $ 8,376 $ 386,162 $ - $ 66,014 $ 7,763 $ 173,167 $ 1,103,863 

I 

71 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 
I 
I 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal H~droelectric Facilities No.One Ener~ Center Transmission Transmission Services Agencr Combined 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Participants $ 3,018 $ 29,468 $ 4,458 $ 4,591 $ 28,202 $ $ 305,955 $ 20,652 $ 2,055 $ 398,399 

Other Third-party 34,457 22,925 4,474 4,045 69,021 271,491 2,723 409,136 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 37,475 52,393 8,932 8,636 97,223 5771446 ~3_ZL --- 21055 _ _ _ 807,535 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 1,041 2,946 402 661 2,152 407,503 414,705 

Operations 18,360 4,723 2,878 1,901 48,056 2,640 10,839 89,397 

Transmission 316 241 18 36 879 184,219 4 185,713 

Depreciation 3,647 9,480 2,203 219 14,141 49 293 30,032 

Maintenance 8,318 7,250 864 2,563 6,372 94 25,461 

Administrative and general 5,394 4,809 820 960 5,426 7,665 (1,688) 23,386 

Intercompany (sales) purchases, net• {832! 311 70 77 404 (30) 

TOTAL OPERA TING EXPENSES 36,244 29,760 7,255 6,417 77,430 594,362 18,621 (1,395} 768,694 

NET OPERATING INCOME 1,231 22,633 1,677 2,219 19,793 ~16,916) 4,754 3,450 38,841 

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense (539) (15,601) (218) (13,800) (30,158) 

Interest income 254 77 38 52 162 631 62 (428) 848 

Other 1,125 1,241 1 3,970 1,150 240 82 7,809 

TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 840 (15,524) 1,061 53 (9,668} 1,781 302 ~346! (21,501) 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (1,791) (8,549) (2,461) 74 862 (3,757) (15,622) 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (2,089! i2,039) (214) 129 i186} !5,662! (4,003) !417) (14,481) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET Po:sITION (1,809) (3,479) 63 2,475 10,801 (20,797) 1,053 (1,070) (12,763) 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 8,267 6,976 401 p16! 5,660 10,255 4,752 4,796 40,391 

NET POSITION, End of year $ 6,458 $ 3,497 $ 464 $ 1,759 $ 16,461 $ - $ (10,542) $ 5,805 $ 3,726 $ 27,628 

• Eliminated in Combination 

72 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMAT
1
ION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 
(000's omitted) I 

I For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other Combined 

Geothermal Hl droelectric Fac:ilities No.One Ener;2: Center Transmission Transmission Services A11encl Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 

Received from participants $ 7,154 $ 29,770 $ 4,417 $ 4,777 $ 27,538 $ - $ 306,060 $ 20,567 $ 1,961 $ 402,244 
Received from others 35,806 24,707 4,474 4,045 69,021 276,062 2,485 (4,220) 412,380 

Payments for employee services (12,187) (4,868) (828) (1,239) (5,753) (2) (10,915) (8,709) (44,501) 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (21,758) (15,493) (4,277) (3,587) (52,043) (586,018) (8,057) 6,534 (684,699) 
Payments from(to) other programs* 832 (311) (70) !77! (404) 30 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9,847 33,805 3,716 3,919 38,359 (3,898) 4,110 (4,434) 85,424 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 18,041 70,797 1,396 32,775 13,157 48,103 184,269 

Interest received on cash and investments 567 427 37 325 1,061 64 1,324 3,805 
Purchase of investments (18,147) (54,763) p,699) (43,688) (13,568! (42,445! (176,310! 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM 

INVESTING ACTMTIES 461 16,461 (2,266! (10,588) 650 64 6,982 11,764 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Acquisition and construction of electric plant (3,096) (162) (13) (349) (845) (7) (4,472) 

Insurance proceeds on asset disposals 6,549 6,549 

Interest paid on long-term debt (323) (13,151) (1,075) (13,496) (28,045) 

Principal repayment on long-term debt (4,595) (20,724) (2,575) (12,515) (40,409) 

Proceeds from bond issues 

Payments to refund debt 
I 

I 

NET ~1~~;~~;~~!~~~~~!t~:: (8,014) (34,037) (3,663! (349! (20,307) (7) (66,377) 
, I 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPI~AL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Other proceeds 1,125 1,328 3,970 1,150 240 81 7,894 

Refunds to participants (2,089) (2,027) (214) 257 (2) (5,662) (4,003) (417) (14,157) 

Payments from(to) other programs i (939! 5,994 2,117 (3,82z.l (17,393) 15,619 (386} (1,18~ 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTMTIES (1,903) 3,967 3,231 t3,570) (13,425} 11,107 (4,149) (1,521} (6,2631 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 391 20,196 1,018 (5,961) 7,859 25 1,020 24,548 

Beginning of year 5,281 22,240 255 1 15,746 11,143 85 57,937 112,688 

End of year $ 5,672 $ 42,436 $ 1,273 $ 1 $ 9,785 $ - $ 19,002 $ 110 $ 58,957 $ 137,236 

* Eliminated in Combination 

73 



I 

I 

I I 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - Continued 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING INCOME TO 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues 

to net cash from operating activities: 
Depreciation 

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN 

Accounts receivable 
Inventory and prepaid expense 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Member advances 

Regulatory assets 
Regulatory credits 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 

I 

$ 

NET CASrROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

Cash and cash equivalents - restriited $ 

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 

End of year $ 

Geothermal 

1,231 $ 

3,647 

4,878 

(299) 
(292) 

1,648 

4,136 

(224) 

9,847 $ 

5,011 $ 

661 

5,672 $ 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Hydroelectric 

22,633 $ 

9,480 

32,113 

{390) 

1,782 

302 

(2~ 

33,805 $ 

37,366 $ 

5,070 

42,436 $ 

Multiple 
Capital 
Facilities 

1,677 $ 

2,203 

3,880 

{101) 

(41) 

p21 

3,716 $ 

1,272 $ 

1 

1,273 $ 

74 

CT 
No.One 

2,219 

219 

2,438 

20 

1,311 

186 

P 6l 

3,919 

$ 

$ 

- $ 

$ 

Lodi 
Ener111, Center 

19,793 

14,141 

33,934 

(273) 

830 

{664) 

4,532 

38,359 

Transmission 

$ 

$ 

7,997 $ 

1,788 

9!785 $ 

- $ 

- $ 

- $ 

- $ 

Purchased 
Power& 

Transmission 

(16,916) $ 

(16,916) 

(3,163) 

7,839 

8,342 

p,898) $ 

4,487 $ 

14!515 

191002 $ 

Associated 
Member 
Services 

4,754 $ 

48 

4,802 

(273) 

(84) 

(330) 

(49) 

44 

4!110 $ 

- $ 

110 

110 $ 

Other 
A~ 

3,450 $ 

294 

3,744 

(5,597) 
(139) 

1,444 

(3,752) 
(167) 

33 

(4,434} $ 

- $ 

58!957 

58!957 $ 

Combined 

38,841 

30,032 

68,873 

(9,332) 
(1,259) 

14,524 

(3,752) 

3,703 

12,667 

85,424 

56,133 
81!103 

137!236 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

June 30, 2020 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Transmission Power& Member Other 

ASSETS Geothermal Hvdroelectric Facilities No.One Energz Center No. One Transmission Services Agencx Combined 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted $ 3,615 $ 16,579 $ 254 $ - $ 6,655 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 27,103 
Unrestricted 1,666 5,661 1 1 9,091 11,143 85 57,937 85,585 

Investments 
Restricted 3,001 18,798 566 3,670 26,035 
Unrestricted 2,536 5,554 505 2,416 12,501 23,512 

Accounts receivable 
Participants 105 4 202 311 

Other 349 6,549 2,363 3,951 13,212 

Interest receivable 120 119 21 114 663 1,037 

Inventory and supplies 1,511 1,583 264 352 2,214 5,924 

Prepaid expenses 387 489 38 55 383 602 1,954 
Due from Agency and other programs,* 8,409 5,516 4,770 2,005 1,851 37,528 6,647 (66,726) 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 21,594 54,299 5,893 2,413 __1_(1,_939 53,~ _ ___hl3~ 9,130 184,673 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Investments 

Restricted 4,898 4,782 9,680 

Unrestricted 20,143 7,860 2,168 16,961 91,670 138,802 

Electric plant in service 572,624 395,162 64,852 36,901 409,363 7,736 894 6,158 1,493,690 

Less: accumulated depreciation (543,209) ~281,109l !52,777} p 4,874l (94,878l (7,73~ ~587l ~3,699) jl,018,869} 

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 49,558 126,811 12,075 2,027 321,435 16,961 307 94,129 623,303 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 2,076 132,350 7,269 29,132 55,062 225,889 

Investment in associated company 265 265 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 2,076 132,350 7,269 29,132 55,327 226,154 

TOTAL ASSETS 73,228 313,460 25,237 4,440 381,506 70,630 7,043 158,586 1,034,130 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 1,081 19,737 1,508 22,326 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 16,936 16,936 
Asset Retirement Obligations 61,651 161 182 61,994 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 62,732 19,737 161 1,690 16,936 101,256 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED ~UTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 135,960 $ 333,197 $ 25,398 $ 4,440 $ 383,196 $ $ 70,630 $ 7,043 $ 175,522 $ 1,135,386 

* Eliminated in Combination 

75 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

June 30, 2020 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal H~droelectric Facilities No.One Enern Center Transmission Transmission Services Agencr Combined 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expensp $ 735 $ 648 $ 22 $ 37 $ 1,527 $ - $ 29,741 $ - $ 17,443 $ 50,153 

Member advances 791 202 993 

Operating reserves 429 250 617 2,910 15,175 19,381 

Current portion of long-term debt 4,595 20,725 2,575 12,515 40,410 

Accrued interest payable 179 6,083 542 1,119 7,923 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,729 27,706 3,756 2,947 30,336 29,741 202 17,!~-- 118,860 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPED liabilities 63,003 63,003 

Operating reserves and other deposits 1,500 17,210 132 30,634 1,783 82,488 133,747 

Interest rate swap liability 18,968 18,968 

Asset Retirement Obligations 66,285 161 183 66,629 

Long-term debt, net 15,505 258,713 19,882 306,536 600,636 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 83,290 294,891 20,043 306,851 30,634 1,783 145,491 882,983 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 90,019 32;_597 23,799 2,947 337,187 60,375 1,985 162,934 1,001,843 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 37,674 3,625 1,198 2,209 40,347 308 3,054 88,415 

Pension and OPED deferrals 4,737 4,737 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 37,674 3,625 1,198 2,209 40,347 308 7,791 93,152 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 1,712 (24,355) (3,598) 1,083 (25,158) 
Restricted for debt service 

I 

3,905 24,847 250 1,405 30,407 

Unrestricted l 2,650 6,483 3,749 (716) 3,174 10,255 4,750 4,797 35,142 
TOTAL NET POSITION 8,267 6,975 401 (716) 5,662 10,255 4,750 4,797 40,391 
TOTAL LIABILI'I;IES, DEFERRE INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSI'f10N $ 135,960 $ 333,197 $ 25,398 $ 4,440 $ 383,196 $ - $ 70,630 $ 7,043 $ 175,522 $ 1,135,386 

76 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNI,j\. POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POW:¢R CORPORATIONS 
(000's omitted) 

I 
I For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal H! droelectric Facilities No.One Ener!Q'. Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined 

OPERA TING REVENUES 

Participants $ 15,341 $ 25,277 $ 7,011 $ 4,770 $ 28,807 $ $ 303,236 $ 21,568 $ 2,110 $ 408,120 

Other Third-party 21,959 20,966 777 998 37,109 112,005 2,960 196,774 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 37,300 46,243 7,788 5,768 65,916 415,241 24,528 ~.110 604,894 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 544 2,452 69 180 1,453 219,354 224,052 

Operations 17,266 4,655 1,471 1,324 31,495 3,822 11,714 71,747 

Transmission 355 431 13 20 1,353 182,570 5 184,747 

Depreciation 3,974 9,412 2,210 204 14,773 85 300 30,958 

Maintenance 15,112 7,515 1,103 2,705 5,688 80 32,203 

Administrative and general 4,796 4,308 1,027 1,153 4,781 7,522 (1,840) 21,747 

lntercompany (sales) purchases, net* (808) 294 75 136 359 (56! 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 41,239 29,067 5,968 5,722 59,902 405,746 19,350 (1,540) 565,454 

NET OPERATING REVENUES (3,939) 17,176 1,820 46 6,014 
- - ----

9,495 5,178 3,650 39~440 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense (620) (22,760) (1,744) (14,261) (39,385) 

Interest income 1,074 1,179 77 31 1,044 1,865 88 3,310 8,668 

Other !27! 465 1,476 1,848 (687! 313 3,388 

TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 427 (21,116) (191! 31 ~11,369! 1,865 (599) 3,623 p7,329! 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUN~S 2,424 (414) (1,613) 4,455 (2,651) 2,201 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS i (598) (2,353) (38! 960 (941! !2,263) (4,642! p,422! (12,297) 

INCREASE (DECRE~SE) IN NET P,SITION (1,686) (6,707) (22) 1,037 (1,841) 9,097 (63) 2,200 2,015 

NET POSffiON, Beginning of year 9,953 13,682 423 {1,753) 7,503 1,158 4,813 2,597 38,376 

NET POSmON, End of year $ 8,267 $ 6,975 $ 401 $ F l62 $ 5,662 $ __ - $ 10,255 $ 4,750 $ 4,797 $ 40,391 

* Eliminated in Combination 

77 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

COMBINING STA.TEMENTS otJ CASH FLOW 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA PO ER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CO ORATIONS 
(000's omitted) I 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 
Received from participants 
Received from others 
Payments for employee services 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Payments from(to) other programs* 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM 

Geothermal 

16,978 $ 

17,016 
(13,594) 
(21,127) 

808 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

H1droelectric 

25,282 $ 

23,205 
(6,282) 

(13,617) 

!294) 

Multiple 
Capital 
Facilities 

7,345 $ 

777 
(1,008) 
(2,576) 

j75) 

CT 
No.One 

4,925 $ 

998 
(1,594) 
(4,033) 

(136) 

Lodi 
Enerfil'. Center Transmission 

30,445 $ 

37,109 
(7,341) 

(35,732) 
(359) 

- $ 

Purchased 
Power& 

Transmission 

303,131 $ 

112,593 

(404,224) 

Associated 
Member 
Services 

21,191 $ 

2,960 
(12,867) 
(8,735) 

56 

Other 

A~ 

2,032 $ 

3,757 

11,099 

Combined 
Total 

411,329 
198,415 
(42,686) 

(478,945) 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 81 28,294 4,463 160 24,122 11,500 2,605 16,888 88,113 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 
Interest received on cash and investments 

Purchase of investments 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM 

22,119 
742 

(21,654) 

34,531 
736 

(46,163) 

4,686 

82 
(564) 

31 

36,867 
769 

(26,144) 

11,327 

1,650 

(4,748) 

91 
46,875 

1,545 

(57,462) 

156,405 

5,646 
(156,735) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,207 (10,896) 4,204 31 11,492 8,229 91 (9,042) 5,316 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Acquisition and construction of electric plant 
Insurance proceeds on asset disposals 

(1,255) (82) 7 

Interest paid on long-term debt (451) (11,217) (1,773) 
Principal repayment on long-term d~bt (4,420) (12,685) (4,195) 

Proceeds from bond. issues 

1

1 22,738 
Payments to refund debt (25,450) 

NET CA!SH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

(349) (44,343) 
36,400 

(13,995) 
(12,040) 

(55) (164) (46,241) 
36,400 

(27,436) 
(33,340) 
22,738 

{25,450) 

~LATEDFINANCINGACTMTIES (6,126) (23,984) (8,673) (349) (33,978) (55) (164) (73,329) 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND 
I 

RELATED FINANCING ACTMTIES 

Other proceeds 
Refunds to participants 
Payments from(to) other programs* 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL 

(27) 
(598) 

3,101 

465 
(2,353) 

10!206 

1,476 
(38) 

(2,666) 
960 

~ 

1,848 
(941) 

9,886 

(2,263) 

(10,052) 

(252) 
(4,642) 

1,705 

313 
(2,422) 

(11,378) 

3,823 
(12,297) 

AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,476 8,318 (1,228) 158 10,793 (12,315) (3,189) (13,487) (8,474) 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

* Eliminated in Combination 

$ 

(2,362) 

7,643 

5,281 $ 

1,732 

20,508 

22J_40 $ 

(1,234) 

1,489 

255 $ 

78 

$ 

12,429 

3,317 

15!746 $ - $ 

7,414 

3!729 

11,143 $ 

(548) 

633 

85 $ 

{5,805) 

63,742 

57!937 $ 

11,626 

1011062 

112,688 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 
I 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF;CASH FLOW - Continued 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues 
to net cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation 

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory and prepaid expense 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Member advances 

Regulatory credits I 

Geothermal 

$ {3,939) $ 

3,976 

37 

{74) 

2,931 
{4,871) 

1,637 

For the Year Ended June 30~ 2020 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 
Multiple 
Capital 

H_idroelectric Facilities 

17,176 $ 1,820 $ 

9,412 2,210 

26,588 4,030 

(106) {26) 
2,239 104 

5 334 
32) 21 

CT 
No.One 

46 $ 

204 

250 

(3) 

241 

155 

(483! 

Lodi 
Ener.liI Center Transmission 

6,014 $ 

14,773 

20,787 

(93) 
883 

1,638 

907 

- $ 

Purchased 
Power& 

Transmission 

9,495 $ 

9,495 

(567) 

1,050 

Associated 
Member 
Services 

5,178 $ 

85 

5,.263 

39 

40 

(2,321) 
(387) 

(29) 

Other 
Agency Combined 

3,650 $ 39,440 

298 30,958 

3,948 70,398 

(3,507) (4,109) 
{51) 2,692 

7,257 4,582 
{387) 

{69) 3,671 
9,310 11,266 

81 $ 28,294 160 $ .24,122 $ 

Accounts payable and other IiabilJies ~ 421 (4 

i NET CAS&l FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 81 $ 28,.294 $ 4,463 $ 160 $ .24,122 $ - $ 11,500 $ 2,605 $ --,--- _ --,---16,888 $ 88,113 

1 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH A~ CASH 
EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
Cash and cash equivalents - restric~ed $ 3,615 $ 16,579 $ 254 $ - $ 6,655 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 27,103 
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 1,666 5,661 1 1 9,091 11,143 85 57,937 85,585 

End of year $ 5,281 $ 22,240 $ 255 $ 1 $ 15,746 $ - $ 11,143 $ 85 $ 57,937 $ 112,688 

79 



OTHER INFORMATION 

GENERATION ENTITLEMENT SHARES - UNAUDITED 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Table of Generation Entitlement Shares I I LEC Debt Shares 

Geothermal Hydroelectric Capital Facilities Combustion Lodi Energy LEC Indenture LEC Indenture 

Project No. 3 Project No. One Project Turbine No. One Center (LEC) Group A Group B 

NCPA Member Participants: 

Alameda 16.8825% 10.0000% 19.0000% 21.8200% 

BART 6.6000% 11.8310% 

Biggs 0.2270% 0.1970% 0.2679% 0.4802% 

Gridley 0.3360% 0.3500% 1.9643% 3.5212% 

Healdsburg 3.6740% 1.6600% 5.8330% 1.6428% 2.9448% 

Lodi 10.2800% 10.3700% 39.5000% 13.3930% 9.5000% 17.0295% 

Lompoc 3.6810% 2.3000% 5.0000% 5.8330% 2.0357% 3.6491% 

Palo Alto 22.9200% 

Plumas-Sierra REC 0.7010% 1.6900% 1.8170% 0.7857% 1.4084% 

Roseville 7.8830% 12.0000% 36.5000% 

Santa Clara 44.3905% 37.0200% 41.6670% 25.7500% 46.1588% 

Ukiah 5.6145% 2.0400% 9.0900% 1.7857% 3.2010% 

Other Participants: 

Azusa 2.7857% 4.9936% 

California Dept. of Water Resources 33.5000% 100.0000% 

Modesto Irrigation District 10.7143% 

Power & Water Resources Pooling Agency 2.6679% 4.7824% 

Turlock Irrigation District 6.3305% 

100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.000% 100.000% 

Note A Note A, B Note A Note B 

Note A: Project Enti~lement shares are after transfers among participants. 

Note B: Project Gen~ration Shares may vary from project cost shares due to varied financing and fuel supply arrangements. 

I 

80 



Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Black & Veatch Corporation - Second Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
Professional Services Agreement for Consulting Services Related to Project Support and Plant 
Operations; Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, 
NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Generation ~~s 

Assistant Gen~ a, Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 226:21 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

\5 



October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-96 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a 
Second Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 
Corporation for consulting services related to project support and plant operations, with any 
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel or her 
designee, extending the agreement expiration date from November 26, 2021 to January 31, 
2022, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by 
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Consulting services related to project support and plant operations are required from time to 
time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task 
Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation effective May 26, 2016. 

NCPA has been working on a renewal agreement with Black & Veatch, however this process is 
taking longer than anticipated. A First Amendment was executed on May 10, 2021 extending 
the agreement expiration date from May 26, 2021 to November 26, 2021. NCPA is currently 
utilizing Black & Veatch for hydrogen expertise support and consulting regarding Lodi's 
Lakehouse Development Project. This Second Amendment will extend the agreement expiration 
date from November 26, 2021 to January 31, 2022, to avoid any lapse in coverage while NCPA 
continues to work on the new agreement with Black & Veatch. NCPA has agreements in place 
for similar services with HDR Engineering, Inc., and Worley Group, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement will remain unchanged at not to exceed 
$1,500,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms and 
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 226:21 



October 28, 2021 
Page3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 2021, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation 
above for Commission approval. 

On October 11, 2021, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

3~ 0:AR!~ 
General Manager 

Attachments ( 4): 
• Resolution 21-96 
• Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 

Corporation 
• Second Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 

Corporation 

SR: 226:21 



RESOLUTION 21-96 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MUL Tl-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

(reference Staff Report #226:21) 

WHEREAS, consulting services related to project support and plant operations are required from time to 
time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency 
(NCPA), NCPA Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Black & Veatch 
Corporation effective May 26, 2016 to provide such services, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with 
Black & Veatch Corporation effective May 10, 2021 extending the expiration date from May 26, 2021 to November 
26, 2021 to allow for sufficient time to negotiate terms on a renewal agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation; 
and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to extend the agreement expiration date from November 26, 2021 to 
January 31, 2022 to allow additional time to continue to negotiate terms on a renewal agreement with Black & 
Veatch Corporation; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. 
No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Second Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional 
Services Agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation, with any changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel or her designee, to extend the agreement expiration date from November 26, 2021 to January 31, 
2022, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA 
Members. 

roll call: 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021, by the following vote on 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Vote Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTl~TASK 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

This agreement for professional services (this "Agreement'') is made by and between the Northern 
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, 
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Black & Veatch Corporation, a corporation with its office located 
at 11401 Lamar, Overland Park, KS 66211 ("Consultant'') (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties; 
as of s/ac./2o1~ , ~("Effective Date; in Roseville, California. · 

. qGtt . . 
Section 1. SERVICES. Subject.to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to Agency the range of services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein eservices"), at the time and place and in the manner specified in a Purchase 
Order or other written authorization. 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and 
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) years from the 
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services i•n the manner and 
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which 
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant 
represents that it is licen~ed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth 
herein. 

As used in this Section 1.2, "Warranty Period" means one (1) calendar year following 
completion of the Services, except that with regard to design, "Warranty Period" means 
one {1.} calendar year following Substantial Completion of the related project; provided, 
however, that in no event will the Warranty Period extend beyond four years from 
Consultant's completion of the Services. "Substantial Completion" means the stage in 
which th~ progress of a project, or applicable portion thereof, is sufficiently complete such 
that the Agency can occupy or utilize the project or portion thereof for its intended purpose. 

If, during the Warranty Period, it is shown there is an error in the Services caused solely by 
Consultant's failure to-meet the standard of performance in this Section 1.2, and Agency 
has notified Consultant in writing of any such error within that period, Consultant shall re
perform, at no .additional cost to Agency, such Services within the original scope of 
Services as may be necessary to remedy such error. Re-performed Services shall be 
warrantied for an additional year, not to exceed four years from the completion of the 
original Services. . . 

If the Services include a technical review of work pe.rformed by Agency's contractors or 
consultants, Consultant shall provide such technical review in order for Agency to have a 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 1 of 20 

• 2595442.1 



greater degree of confidence that such work· will conform generally to the contract 
documents between Agency and Agency's contractors or consultants. Agency's 
contractors and consultants shall remain solely responsible for the quality of the work that 
Consultant reviews, and Consultant's review shall not be deemed to be a warranty or 
guarantee from 'consultant regarding the quality of the work reviewed. Agency agrees that 
its exclusive remedy for defective work by others that is reviewed by Consultant shall be 
from Agency's contractors and consultants who performed the work. 

Consultant shall have no liability for defects in the Services attributable to Consultant's 
reliance upon or use of data, design criteria, drawings, specifications, or other information 
furnished by Agency or third parties not under contract to Consultant (collectively, "Third 
Party information"); provided, however, that (1) this provision shall not excuse Consultant's 
failure to perform the Services to the standard of care in this Section 1.2, and (2) where the 
scope of services includes checking or verifying the accuracy of Third Party Information, 
this provision shall not excuse Consultant from performing such checking or verifying to 
the standard of care in this Section 1.2. 

The obligations and representations contained in Jhis Section 1.2 are Consultant's sole 
warranty and guarantee obligations and Agency's exclusive ~emedy in respect of quality of 
the Services. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THIS ARTICLE, CONSUL TANT MAKES NO 
OTHER WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,.RELATING TO 
CONSULTANT'S SERVICES AND CONSUL TANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED 
· WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES IMPOSED BY LAW INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. This Section 1.2 
governs, modifi~s, and supersedes any other terms in this Agreement which may be 
construed to address warranties or guarantees or the quality of the Services. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
th.e Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole.discretion, at any time during the term of 
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall, 
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such 
personnel. 

1.4 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may include 
Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the 
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
("SCPPA") _or SCPPA members (11Members"). 

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's Services 
under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall 
identify the. specific services to be performed ("Requested Services"), may include a not-to- · . 
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed. · 
Consultant shall have fourteen (14) days from the date qf the Agency's issuance of the 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page2of20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 ' 
2595442.1 



Purchase Order in which to respond in writing whether Consultant chooses to perform the 
Requested Services. If Consultant fails to respond within such time and agree to perform 
the Requested Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order. this Agreement, and 
its Exhibits, the Purchase Order is deemed rejected and Agency shall not be bound by the 
Purchase Order issued to Consultant. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO 
EXCEED ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($1,500,000) forthe Services. which shall 
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursab_les, as set forth in C~nsultant's fee schedule, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 8. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency 
will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices,· not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
■ Services performed; 
■ The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
• At Agency's option. the total number of hours of work p~rforrned under the 

Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent •. and ·subcontractor of 
Consultant performing services hereunder; and · 

• At Agency's option, when Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, for each 
work item in each task. a copy of the applicable time entries showing the name of 
the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person. a brief description of 
the work, and each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation. to 
Agency's reasonable satisfac~on. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 

· 2.2 Monthly-Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, 
for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. 
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of 
the requirements above to pay Consultant. 

·2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state 
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page3of20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



2.4 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
written authorization from the Contract Administrator. · 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after 
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant fails to submit 
an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is 
deemed to have waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency. · 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment ·that may be necessary to perform the Services. 

· Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and 
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed-below for the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain 
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any 
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 · Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general · 
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability, 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily 

· injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out 
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall be at least 
as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 (current edition) on 
".an occurrence" basis covering General Liability, with a self-insured retention or 
deductible of no more than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting 
the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance 
form CA _0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or 
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation, 
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), whether or not owned by the 
Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a limit of · · 
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no 
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all 
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded 
from general liability insurance. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page4of20 
Northern California· Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth· above 
may be met by a combination of underlyi_ng and umbrella policies as long as in 
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability . 
insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in· connection with this 
Agreement in an amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and two million ·dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or 
self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per 
claim. Such insurance shall be on an "occurrence" basis, except that Consultant may 
maintain such insurance on a "claims-made" basis, subject to the following conditions: 
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of this 
Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after completion of 
the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be provided during 
this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services, coverage_ is 
canceled or non-:-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a 
retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase 
11extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the 
Services. 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1).a Certificate of Insurance that 
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein 
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance·pnmary in regard to 
work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4~4.2 · Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall provide 
at least thirty {30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or 

· amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced 
in Section 4. 

4.4.3 [Intentionally left blank.] 

4.4.4 Additional Certificates· and Endorsements. If Consultant provides services to 
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, Agency shall h~ve the right 
to require the Consultant to provide certificates of insurance and/or policy 
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific Agency 
member, SCPPPA or Agency member for which the Services are to be performed. 

4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of 
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page5of20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



agrees to qbtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver Qf 
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shalt be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees, agents 
and subcontractors. 

4.6 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all 
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated, 
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the 
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that 
all workers involved in the provision of Services are\properly classified as employees, 
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insuranc~ required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

.-Section 5. · INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insuran·ce certificates and endorsements 
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this 
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause 
shall apply to any damages or ·claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies 
shall have been determined to apply~ By execution of this Agreement, Consultant 
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element 
of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the 
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, officers, 

· employ~es, and volunteers from and against any and all third party claims for bodily injury 
(including death) or property damage to the extent arising out of the negligence, 
·recklessness. or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of Services under 
this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, claims of an employee of Agency or 
Consultant are deemed third party claims. Consultant shall bear all iosses, costs, 
damages, expense and liabili_ty of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly {"Liabilitiesn). Such 
obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the 
extent that such Liabilities are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of.the 
Agency. . · · 

For the avoidance of doubt, this Section 5.2 shall not affect direct claims or actions 
{including, but not limited to, claims for property damage) by Agency against Consultant. 

5.3 Limitation of Liability. Having considered the risks and potential liabilities that may arise 
out of the Services, the benefits of the Services, and in specific consideration of the 
promises contained in this Agreement and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is 
acknowledged, Agency and Consultant allocate and l_imit such liabilities in accordance with 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page6of20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Revd 1/8/16 · 
2595442.1 



this Section 5.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law: 

In no event shall Consultant be liable to Agency for any loss of profits or revenue; loss of 
use; loss of opportunity; loss of goodwill; cost of substitute facilities, goods or services; 
cost of capital; cost of replacement power; governmental and regulatory sanctions (other 
than sanctions imposed on Consultant by governmental and regulatory agencies); and . 
claims of customers for such damages; or for any special, consequential, incidental, 
indirect, punitive, or exemplary damages in any way arising from or related to the 
performance of this Agreement; 

The total cumulative liability of Consultant and any entity owned by, owning, controlled by, 
controlling or under common control of Consultant to Agency for all claims, losses, 
damages, and expenses in any way arising from or related to the performance of this 
Agreement shall not be greater than Two .Million Dollars ($2,000,000). 

Releases, waivers and limitations expressed in this Agreement concerning liability and 
remedies shall apply even in the event of the fault, tort {including negligence}, strict liability, 
breach of contractor warranty, or other basis of liability of the Party released or whose 
liability .is limited or against whom remedies have been limited and shall extend to the 
officers, directors, partners, employees, licensors, agents, subcontractors, vendors and 
related entities of such Party. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

8.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not ~n employee· 
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of 
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, . 
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes · 
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, 
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall 
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited 
to eligibility to enroll in the California Pub!ic Employees Retirement System {PERS} as an 
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer 
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any 
employee and/or ~mployer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant ot its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and 
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. 
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to 
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency. and ·s1ack & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1 /8/16 
2595442.1 

Page7of20 



the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of · 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and 
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such 
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant's failure to secure workers' 
·compensation insurance·for its employees, agents, or subcontractors. · 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its 
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent 
permitted· by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any 
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of 
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have 
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this 
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance 
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional 
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial 
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation 
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest 
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract 
any porti.on of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approvaf of the Agency. Where· 
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work 
subcontracted by Consultant in pe.rforming the services and shall be responsible for all 
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The 
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its 
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated 
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in 
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's sa~sfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commissio.n. If requested by the Agency, 
Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7 .1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any, 
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page8of20 

\. 



7.3 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant 
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole 
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, pennits, qu~lifications, and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective 
professions. · 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten 
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant · 

' In the event of tennination, Consultant shall ·be entitled to compensation for Services 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may. 
condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all 

I records or documentsJ as referenced in Section 9.1 h~reof. 
:1., 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of-the terms 
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's 
remedies shall include.the following: 

· 8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement that . 
Agency has paid for, or for· which Agency pays pursuant to a final invoice; 

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to· complete the Services not finished by Consultant; 
~b . 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the Services that 
is· unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid 
Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had completed the Services. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,· studies, specifications, 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 

Gs■VEN-2016-013 

Page 9 of20· 



records, files, or any other documents or materials, ir( electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant is required to deliver to Agency as a deliverable under this Agreement shall be 
the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, unless 
approved by Agency in.writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-parties to this 
Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and oth~r documents. Nothing 
contained in this Section shall be construed as limiting or depriving Consultant of its rights 

. to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other projects or work for itself 
or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to the work to be 
performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other 
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and 
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three {3) 
years, or for any longer period required by law,· from the date of final payment to the 
Consultant to this Agreement. · 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement 
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or 
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the 
Agency. ·Under California Government Code Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00}, the 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency; for a period of three (3) years after 
final payment under the Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein, 
shall ,:nean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information, 
whether written, recorded, electronjc, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential 
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in· a 
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information. 
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known 
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledgel (b) was 
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, {c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse 
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as 
confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement, 
either party may disclose· ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the 
other party {"the Receiving Party0

). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the 
Disclosing Party's Confidential !~formation in conflde_nt; and {b) shall take all 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 10 of 20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1 /8/16 
2595442.1 



-reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer 
or disclosure of such Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of · 
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide 
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant 
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, 
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest 
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek 
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have ar:ty liability for such 
permitted disclosures: 

_9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors 
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in · 
connection with this Agreement. · 

9.4i3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency. or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by 'Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California 
Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the 
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential 
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in 
writing .. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of 
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this 
·Agreement: (a} for archival purposes in its computer system; (b} in its legal 
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such 
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall'not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving 
Party~s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have 
a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any actio'1 against the other underthis 
A~reement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 11 of 20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black.& Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



I _, 
i 
! 

state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for· 
the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 

. Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 
Agreement does not cqnstitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of · 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would pla~ 
Consultant in a "conflict of interest, 0 as that term is ~efined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at Califom~a Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work perfomJed pursuant to this 
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 

10.7 · Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speerl Assistant 
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All 
correspondence shall be· directed to or through the representative 

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

Bla~k & Veatch Corporation 
Attention: Sean Kilgrow 
10995 Gold Center Dr. Suite 100. 
-Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 

With copy to: 

Black & Veatch Corporation 
Attention: Carlos Araoz 
10995 Gold Center Dr. Suite 100 
Rancho Cor:dova, CA 95670 · 

Multi-Task -Professional Services Agreement between . GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 12of20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard · 
General· Manager 
Nort~ern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With ~ copy to: 

Michael F. Dean. 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
Meyers Nave 
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of 
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation. 

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or. agreements, either written or oral. All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference· herein. 

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be 
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations~ Agency and Cons!,Jltant agree to resolve · 
the dispute in accordance with the following: · 

10.11.1 

10.11.2· 

10.11.3 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level 
representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to 
re~olve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the i~sue remains unresolved after fifteen { 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagre,ment by 
negoti8:tion between legal ·counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties 
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the 
res~lution of the dispute. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between _ GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 13 of20 . 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 



10.11.4 

10.11.5 

10.11.6 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15) 
days by both Parties of a· disinterested third person as mediator, shall be 
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen 
(15) days from the ~o~mencement of the mediation. · 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this · · 
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either . · . 
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is 
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing 
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement 
· and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's P~oposal (if any), the 

Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto, a 
Purchase Order, or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts; each of which 
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to 
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or-to consult with legal counsel. Therefore, 
the usual constru~tion of an agreement against the _drafting pa_rty shall not apply hereto. 

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the 
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should 
Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member 
(collectively for the purpose-of this Section only "Membe() pursuant to Section 1.4, the 
parties recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the 
Purchase Order and Requested Services relating to such Member. 

Section 11. SAFETY AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 

11.1 Safety and Environmental Regulations. Consultant shail be responsible for the safety of 
its own employees at all times during the performance of any Services. Consultant's 
safety program shall include all requisite components required under Federal, state and 
local regulations, and shall comply with all Agency or project site programs, if applicable. 

11.1.1 Consultant shall not have control or charge· of and shall not be responsible 
for: construction means, method~. techniques, sequences, or procedures 
of construction; the acts or omissions of Agency's contractors, vendors or 
suppliers; or the safety or environmental precautions and programs in 
connection with the work perfonned by Agency's contractors, vendors or 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 14 of 20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 . 
2595442.1 



--; 

i 

suppliers; provided, however, that this Section 11.1.1 shall not apply 
where the Services specified in a Purchase Order specifically include 
these responsibilities. 

11. 1.2 Consultant shall not be responsible for the adequacy or completeness of 
any other entity's safety or environmental programs, procedures, or 
precautions at the job site, and Consultant shall not have the authority to 
stop such other entity.'s work; provided, however, that this Section 11.1.2 
· shall not apply where the Services specified in a Purchase Order 
specifically include such responsibilities. 

Pre-Existing Contamination. "Hazardous Wasten means any toxic or radioactive 
substance so defined under applicable federal, state or local laws or regulations. "Pre
Existing Contamination" is any Hazardous Waste present at the job site that was not 
brought onto such site by Consultant or at the direction of Consultant. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, title to, ownership of, and legal responsibility: 
and liability for Pre-Existing Contamination shall at all times remain with Agency. Agency 
c;1grees to release, def~nd, indemnify, and hold Consultant harmless from and against any 
and all liability and claims, including attorneys' fees, that may in any manner ari,se in any 
way direqtly or indirectly from such Pre-Existing Contamination. 

Agency shall, at Agency's sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, 
transportation, treatment, and delivery for disposal of Pre-Existing· Contamination. Agency 
shall be solely responsible for obtaining a disposal site. for Pre-Existing Contamination. 
Agency shall look to the disposal facility and transporter for any responsibility or liability 
arising from improper disposal or transportation ·ot Pre-Existing Contamination. Consultant 
shall not have or exert any control over Agency in Agency's obligations or responsibilities 
as a generator in· the storage, transportation, treatment, or disposal of any pre-Existing 
Contamination. Agency shall complete and execute any forms or certificates relating to 
regulated activities, including generation, storage, handling, treatment, transportation, or -
disposal of Pre-Existing Contamination.· in the event that Consultant executes or 
completes any such forms or certificates, Consultant shall be; and be deemed to have 
acted as, Agency's agent. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 15 of 20 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. • 
Rev'd 1 /8/16. 

. 2595442.1 · 



' ' 

The Parties have exec~ed this Agreement as-of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY . . 

Oat; 5/rJ /r{p . . g~) ,~ 
RAND s. HOWMi>, Gene~~ager . 

· Attest 

· · ~ ~ 

Approved as to Forni: 

Multi-Task Professfonal $e1Vfces Agreem~t between 
Northern Celifomfa Power Agency and Btad< & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 . 
2595442.1 

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

Date 5 l~<a/ \ ~ 

~~~ · · · ' 
JONfEiCKERT,- KAR 

Power Generation Services Di~ 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page16of20 



i 
j· 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Black & Veatch Corpqration ("Consultant'') shall provide the Northern California Power Agency eAgency") 
and, pursuant to Section 1.4 of the Agreement, Agency members, the Southern California Public Power 
Authority ("SCPPA"), and SCPPA members, with consulting services related to project support and plant 
operation~ as needed. 

Services to include, but not be limited to the following: 

• Feasibility Studies 
• Business Model Development 
• Conceptual Design 
• Cost Estimating 
• Contract Planning 
• Engineering Services (preliminary and detailed) 
• Engineering Studies 
• Execution Planning 
• · Operations and Maintenance Evaluation and Support 
• Vendor Quality .Assurance 
• Construction Management 
• Start-up and Commissioning Service 
• Customer Information System Services 
• Meter Data Management System Services 
• Advanced Metering Infrastructure Services 
• Smart Grid Solutions 
• Technology Advisory Services 
• Project Management Services 
• Smart GriQ Consulting Services 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatc~ Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 

Page 17 of 20 



EXHIBIT B 

·COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in 
Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount 
of expenses is as follows: 

1HOURLY-BILLING-RA TES l·cc Client Bil m5, and Note•,) - -- - - ! 
T~le/E~~~0ption/Hourly 13~~_:_ng ~~_($_~St?) ______ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ ' 

Project Administration 
Project accounting and office support induding clerical, secretarial and bilGnS: 

Project Administration $77.00 
Technicians and Technical Support 

Tech!"ical designers, drafters, and other technical support functions. 

Associate Technician/ Designer 
StaffTechnidan / Deslgner 
Lead Technician/Designer 
Senior Technician/Designer 
Encin•minc and Mana1ement 

$89.00 
$111.00 

$140.00 

$182.00 

Engineering desisn, analysis, and management. Includes departmental and project assignments includins project management, executives and erwneering 
department manaaement. , 

Associate Engineers 
Staff Engineers 
Design Engineers 
Project Engtneer.s 
iSenlor Engineers 
Erqpneering Managers 
Project Managers 
Senior Project Managers 
Executives 

$99.00 
$120.00 

$141.00 

$168.00 

$199.00 

$215.00 
$225.oo · 
$253.00 

$276.00 
Estimating, Project Controls and Procurement 
~fessionals who assess the cost related to projects, track the cost 85.9ociated with a project, and perform planning and scheduling functions related to 
projects. These professional$ also provide procurement support activities. 

Staff Professional 
Lead Professronal 
Senlor Professional 
Specialized Staff 

$11B.DO 

$148.00 

$230.00 

Spl;dalist staff such as scientists, geologists, environmentt!il consultants, lawyers, equipment or technology experts, and constru~on specialists. 

!Associate Specialist 
Specialist 
Lead Specialist 

Senior Specfalfst 

$92.00 

$118.00 

$164.00 

$220.00 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 
2595442.1 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 18 of 20 



p1ent Brllings: Client shall pay to Engineer for the performance of the Services the sum of the following amounts unless the compensation is otherwise 

15tated m the specific ta5k assignment.____ _ __________ _________ __________ _ ___ _ 

L Labor cost will be billed as actual hours charged to this project by Black & Veatch personnel and in accordance with the rates above. 
2. Typicai and customary home office ·expenses. Including computer related exiienses'(networlc .. serwr charges,' PC usage charps, software and design 
ppRcatlon charBes, printing, plotting, and server storage), reprographlc services, document production, fax, telephone, postage/courier, etc. will be bRled at 
rate of $8.00.per hour of direct billed labor. 

3. Expenses for travel and lodging will be billed at actual co;t. These expenses inciude costs~ch • air-fare, persomsl mileage, lodging, mea~ motor vehides 
rental, telephone, special rental equipment, etc. 

4~ _ c;o~-~~d pa~-~~C!S anf~r~~~~st~~irv.office. .. ~-~u_cti .. ~::Pi~~~o~:P-~.~~~-!'~1 .. ~ .. ~~~-!~.~~~ ~ilu.s .. ~~ · .... : ·. --.::: .. ·.:. ·: "•: ·:··::·:· .. --: ·: .--
s. Field assignments of longer than 60 day$ will be billed as actual hours charged to this project by Black & Veatch personnel in accordance with the rate 
sheet plus uplift as determined by current field services policy. Expenses for field assignments can be per diem, actual expenses, or a combination of both as 

ecific to the assignment. 
~ Overtiine applies ontv to nmHXempt ~nei'as-cteflned i,yttie us"Fedeni1 ·waie a~d tioi.r iaw: Overtime vAii'i. biiieci'as·acti,ai.bours c11a,ied to tttis. 
p,oject by Black & Veatch personnel in accordance with the rate sheet plus 5°"-

.. -. -· .. . . . . -~ .. ;cagy idwified abcwe·viiff iie. ·1aizciiritii9 inost·a-·· ··-n,priate · ~ ... _ --·- -a~e baierj on functiOD.inc1 ~ ~ce:·-·~·-- ·-·-·. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall m~t reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in 
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue ~ervice. 

The rates above are subject to on~ (1) annual adjustment upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Agency. . 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between . GS-VEN-2016-013 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation. 
Rev'd 1/8/16 . . 

\, 

Page 19of20 
2595442.1 



EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Co~pJiance for Consultants 

I, jg.-.) ~ !tr,~ ~ ~ _j,e\]\·~ 0~ 
(Name of pers~>n ~igning affidavit)(Titie). . :" . . . . . . 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the iden~ ·and employment 
history of-aH employees of 

BLACK& VEATCH CORPORATION 

for contract work a~ ~OD~. ENERGY CENTER, -~~45 N. THOB~ON ROAD, LOPI CA 95242 

have been conducted as required by the Califomi_a Energy Commission Decision for the abo\fe-!onanied 

projecl ~ J?:· ~ 
~(Signature of officer or agent} . KAR 

Dated this 2 ~ • day of M::3 .· •·· . 20 ( ~ • . 

iHIS Ai=F.JDAVIT OF COMPLIANCi.: .SHAU. 6E APPENDED to THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAtiAND 
SHALL ee RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE 'CALIFORNIA 
ENERGY.COMMl~SION COMPLl~~CE __ PROJECT: ~ANf\G~.:· . . . . . . . . . 

2598203.1& 
···::•· '·· 

Multi• Task Proression~I Services Agreement between 
Northern Caifontia PQW$" Agertcy and ~lack & Veatch Corpor:ation. 
Rev'd 1/8/18 
2595442(1 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 20. of 20 



Attachment A. Sillin·g Rates and Expense Schedule - 2019 

.flRePRl~A~L 



ProjectAdmlntstra11on 
Project accounting and office support including clerical, secretarial and billing. 

Project Administration $n.oo 
Technicians an Tachnlcal Support 
Technical designers, drafters, and other technical support functions. 

Associate Technician / Designer 
Staff Technician/ Designer 
Lead Technician/Designer 
Senior Technician/Designer 
Enafneerfnl and Manaprnent 

$91.00 

$113.00 
$143.00 

$188.00 

Engineering design, analysis, and management. Includes departmental and project assignments including project management, executives and engineering 
department management. 

Associate Engineers $102.00 

Staff Engineers $122.00 

Design Engineers $141.00 

Project Engineers $170.00 

Senior Engineers $202.00 
Engineering Managers $218.00 

Project Managers $235.00 

Senior Project Managers $266.00 

Executives $292.00 

Prufessionals and Professlonal Support 
Professionals who assess and track the cost related to projects, perform planning and scheduling functions related to projects, provide procurement and 
construction support, provide permitting support, and support other project related activities. 

Associate Professional 
Staff Professional 
Lead Professional 
Senior Professional 
Speclallzed Staff 

$87.00 
$140.00 

$192.00 

$235.00 

Specialist staff that provide legal, scientific, economic, and related services. 

Associate Specialist 
Staff Specialist 
Lead Specialist 
Senior Specialist 

$100.00 

$127.00 

$172.00 

$235.00 
Cl1e'1)t Billings , Ciit'nt shall pay t6'Er1g1'lieer for the performance of tt{e Services the s·um of the following' amounts unless the coii1pensat1on' rs otherwise . 

st,ai~d-1n\1~~.s~es\f~~hi1[<'a~~rg;~~ .. ~~ :, . • ·< ·,~r - , ,,-!~' ·:".'·· .. ,:·.~_; ", '; :~ . / , i : . .. ·: · :,. · ,. · . . :~~ - .::._, •\ :, .' :. J,'•,· .. ._ _· · .. '. 
1. Labor cost wfll be billed as acrual hours charged to this project by Black & Veatch personnel and in accordance with the rates above. 
2. Typical and customary home office expenses, Including computer retated expenses (network server charges, PC usage charges, software and desiln 
appllcatlon charges, printing, plotting, and server storage), reprographk services, document production, fax, telephone, postaae/courler, etc. will be billed at a 

rate of $9.25 per hour of direct billed labor. 
3. Expenses for travel and lodging will be billed at actual cost. These expenses Include cost such as air-fare, personal mileage, lodging, meals, motor vehicles 
rental, telephone, special rental equipment, etc. 

4. COst of 3rd party services and for non-customary office costs such as production printing will be billed at actual cost plus 1°'6. 
s. Field assignments of longer than 60 days will be billed as actual hours charged to this project by Black & Veatch personnel In accordance with the rate sheet 
plus uplift as determined by current field services policy. Expenses for field assignments can be per diem, actual expenses, or a combination of both as specific 
to the assignment. 
6. Overtime applies only to non-exempt personnel as defined by the US Federal Wage and Hour Law. Overtime will be blled as actual hours charged to this 
project by Black & Veatch personnel in accordance with the rate sheet plus S°". 

7. Any other professionals not specifically identified above will be placed In the most appropriate category above based on function and experience. 

1. Billing rates are subject to annual adjustment on each January 1. 
2. This Rate Sheet contains Information that may be privileged, confidential and aempt from disclosure under applicable law. Any unauthorized disclosure, 
copying, or distribution of this document or any of Its contents is prohibited. 

2019 Home Office Rates • flle:13.75 
Copyright Black & Veatch 2019. 
All Rights Resened. 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency 

1/18/2019 



N'CPA 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement is 
entered into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agenr1i and Bia~ & Veatch 
Corporation ("Consultanr) ( collectively referred to as 11the Parties") as of ~ I U . 
2021. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement dated 
effective May 26, 2016, (the "Agreement") for Consultant to provide consulting services related to 
project support and plant operations, as needed; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 
Agreement from the original expiration date of May 26, 2021 to a new date of November 26, 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.1-Term of Agreement Section 1.1 of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety 
and replaced with the following: 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end when 
Consultant completes the Services, or no later than November 26, 2021, whichever ocurrs 
sooner. 

2. Other Terms and Conditions: Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the 
Agreement is otherwise unmodified, and terms and conditions remain in full force and 
effect. 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 

First Amendment to Multi• Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern californla Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 1 of2 



Date._f_/_t~ f ~1 . 

NORTHERN CALIFORNtA POWER AGENCY 

~ ~ rM 
RANDY s. H "WARD. General Manager 

A •est: 

I \ ,-\ 

Assistant . Co·rnmission 

Approved as to Form 

F;rsc Amtm.1ment to Molt: ia~k Protr \'>to!"lal SeMces .4t:reemt1\t bftwe.er> 
Northttl'I Cahtorntif Pow•r AIJP.11CV al"ld Blai:k & V~ilt(h r.:orpor~( • 

To1•1plare 6-3-18 

Date: 

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

.. ~~~ 
joN, R. FEICKERT, ._......_ .. - - --
Associate. Vice Praaidant 

OS V£!1.i•.W16--0ll 
Page2'of2 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND BLACK & VEATCH 

CORPORATION 

This Second Amendment ("Amendment") to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement is 
entered into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and Black & Veatch 
Corporation ("Consultant") ( collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of _______ _ 
2021. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement dated 
effective May 26, 2016, (the "Agreement") for Consultant to provide consulting services related to 
project support and plant operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional 
Services Agreement on May 10, 2021 to extend the expiration date from May 26, 2021 to 
November26,2021;and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 
Agreement from the current expiration date of November 26, 2021 to a new date of January 31, 
2022;and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

Ill 

Ill 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.1-Term of Agreement: of the Agreement is amended and restated to read in 
full as follows: 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end when the 
Consultant completes the Services, or no later than January 31, 2022, whichever occurs 
sooner. 

2. Other Terms and Conditions: Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the 
Agreement is otherwise unmodified, and terms and conditions remain in full force and 
effect. 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 

Second Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation GS-VEN-2016-013 
Template 6-8-18 

Page 1 of 2 



Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Stephen C. Pearson, Assistant Counsel 

Second Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Black & Veatch Corporation 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: -------

BLACK & VEATCH CORPORATION 

JON R. FEICKERT, 
Associate Vice President 

GS-VEN-2016-013 

Page 2 of 2 



Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement for HVAC Maintenance Services; Applicable to the following: All 
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public 
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Generatio&.,5W,s 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 227:21 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

)Lo 



October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-97 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered Systems, 
Inc. for HVAC maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, extending the agreement expiration from November 
17, 2021 to January 31, 2022, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

HVAC maintenance services are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 
NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered 
Systems, Inc. effective November 17, 2016, for an amount not to exceed $750,000, for use at all 
NCPA, NCPA Member, SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities. NCPA has utilized this vendor for 
the past five years for HVAC maintenance services at its CT plants, and this vendor has shown 
themselves to be competent and responsible. 

The current agreement is set to expire on November 17, 2021. NCPA is currently in the process 
of obtaining bids for maintenance services for the CT facilities for the next five year term. NCPA 
now desires to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services agreement to 
extend the agreement expiration date to January 31, 2022 to allow NCPA additional time to 
obtain bids and negotiate terms of the agreement with the winning bidder. NCPA has 
agreements in place for similar services with ABM Building Solutions, Comfort Air, Inc., Creative 
Cooling Technologies, EMCOR Services Mesa Energy, Johnson Controls, Inc. and Pullman 
Heating & Cooling, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement will remain unchanged at not to exceed 
$750,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms and 
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 227:21 



October 28, 2021 
Page3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 2021 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On October 11, 2021 the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~.:w~~ 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 21-97 
• Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered 

Systems, Inc. 

SR: 227:21 



RESOLUTION 21-97 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #227:21) 

WHEREAS, HVAC maintenance services are required from time to time for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA 
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA and ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. entered into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement effective November 17, 2016, to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA is currently obtaining bids for maintenance services for the CT facilities for the next 
five year term and this process will not be complete by the current agreement expiration date; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to extend the agreement expiration date from November 17, 2021 to 
January 31, 2022 to allow for sufficient time to obtain bids and negotiate terms of the new agreement with the 
winning bidder; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement with ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by 
the NCPA General Counsel, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Vote Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



Ai'CPA ~,..L __ RECEIVED 

MULTI-TASK OCT 2·8 2016 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND CONTRACTS DEPT. 
ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC. 

This agreement for general services {"Agreement') is made by and between the Northam California 
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 
95678-6420 ("Agency") and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc., a corporation with its office located at 6265 
San Fernando Road, Glendale, CA 91201 {11Contractor'') (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") 
as of \ I /13:: , 2016 ("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of 

i • Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work"}. 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and 
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the 
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and 
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession In which 
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor 
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth 
herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of 
this Agreem~nt, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall, 
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such 
personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work 
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (11SCPPA11

) or 
SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have 
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. 
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be perfonned ("Requested Work"), 
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related 
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the 
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the 
date of the Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to perform 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems. Inc. 
Revd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 



---------------·--------·-···-··· .... , ... ·-·.m ..... 

the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within 
the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested 
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO 
EXCEED SEVEN HUNDRED FIFlY THOUSAND dollars ($750,000.00) for the Work, which shall include 
all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay 
that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services perfonned and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
• At Agency's option, for each work item in each task. a copy of the applicable time 

entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and 
each reimbursable expense! with supporting documentation, to Agency's 
reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the 
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of 
Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, 
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency 
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the 
requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state 
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page2of22 



------------------·--·-

2.4 Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or 
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of ·a Purchase 
Order from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after 
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In 
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the 
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement, 
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and 
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain 
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any 
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general 
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability, 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily 
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out 
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage 
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on •an occurrencen basis covering comprehensive General 
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No 
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance 
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or 
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation, 
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the 
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of 
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no 
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all 
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded 
from general liability insurance. 

Mulfi.. Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northam California Power Agency and Arxo Engineered Systems. Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page3of22 



-.-... ---- -------------~ -----

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above 
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in 
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. [Intentionally omitted] 

4.4 Pollution Insurance. [Intentionally omitted] 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that 
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein 
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2 and in 
Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the Agency as an additional insured and 
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide 
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or 
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced 
in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified 
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by 
the Contractor. 

4.5A Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor perfonns Work for 
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement, 
Agency shall the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance 
and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be 
performed. 

4.6 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of 
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor 
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of 
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents 
and subcontractors. 

4.7 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all 
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated, 
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page4of22 



the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure 
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees, 
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements 
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this · 
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause 
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies 
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor 
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element 
of consideration. · 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the 
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands, 
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs {including without limitation 
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of 
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency. 
Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under 
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active · 
negligence of Agency. · 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee 
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of 
Contracto(s Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency 
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work 
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal 
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not 
qualify for or become entiHed to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited 
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an 
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer 
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any 
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page5of22 



interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. 
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to 
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing 
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of 
Contractor. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and 
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such 
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor's failure to secure workers' 
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its· 
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent 
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold hannless Agency from any 
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of 
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no 
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance 
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's unique professional 
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial 
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation 
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest 
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract 
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where 
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work 
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work 
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such work. The 
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its 
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to 
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to Califomia Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency, 
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Nor-them California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page6of22 



------ -·-·- -·--·- ·--- "··-·-·-··-·· ·- ... ----·--

6.5 CertHication as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials 
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it 
executes this Agreement execute Exhibit D. 

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more 
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction, 
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar 
documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any, 
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 

7.3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor 
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors {if any) have and will maintain at their sole 
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, pennits, qualifications, and 
approvals of whatever nature that are legally req~ired to practice their respective 
professions. 

7 .4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by 
the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7 .5 Registration wtth DIR. During the tenn of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is 
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Wor1c 
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

7.6 PrevaHing Wage Rates. In accord~nce with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less 
than the general prevaiHng rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the 
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate 
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code 
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Werle In accordance with California 
Labor Code Section 1no and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has 
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is 
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project; 
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be 
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work~ Contractor must 
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance 
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page7of22 



California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any 
other third party with regard thereto. 

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Tifle 8, Group 3, Article 
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the 
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at: 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. 

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of 
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial 
Relations, Form A-1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement. 

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 177 4 and 
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency 
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the 
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft 
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor 
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code 
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and 
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the 
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker 
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten 
{10) days prior written notice to Contractor. 

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may 
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all 
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereoij. 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms 
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's 
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016--078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page8of22 



8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor; 
and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is 
unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid 
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to 
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and 
Contractor agree that unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release 
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other 
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements 
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three {3) years, or for any 
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this 
Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement 
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection I audit, and/or 
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the 
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars {$10,000.00), the 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after 
final payment under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term 11Confidential Information•, as used herein, . 
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information, 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page9of22 



whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential 
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a 
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret infonnation. 
Confidential Information shall not include information that: ( a) was already known 
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b} was 
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse 
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as 
Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement, 
either party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party'') Confidential Information to the 
other party (the 11Receiving Party''). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the 
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all 
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer 
or disclosure of such Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of 
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide 
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant 
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, 
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest 
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek 
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such 
permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other 
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection 
with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California 
Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the 
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential 
Information (including all copies thereoij, if requested by Disclosing Party in 
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of 
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this 
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; {b) in its legal 
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems1 Inc. 
Revd· 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 10 of22 



----------------~---···•-. 

copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving 
Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have 
a need to know in connection with this Agreement 

Section 10. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Proiect Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all 
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access 
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of 
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor 
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project 
site and to protect all persons and property the·reon from damage or injury. Upon 
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and 
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to 
Contractor's Work. 

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shaH be solely 
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment, 
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or 
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable,, the entity for which Contractor is performing the 
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or 
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for 
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or 
without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an 
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been 
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the 
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be 
solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which 
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability 
therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non
owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as wen as any 
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on 
the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new 
and in good condition. 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for 
its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the 
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the 
performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Revd5/4116 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 11 of 22 



11.1 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public 
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and 
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and 
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement. 

11.2 Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may 
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own 
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies 
which result from Contractor's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the 
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1) 
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials 
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in 
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon 
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided 
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work. 

Section 12. HEAL TH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and 
enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure 
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of 
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs 
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is perfonning the Work, as 
referenced in Section 1.4. 

12.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely 
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. 

12.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and 
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be 
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training 
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance 
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment. 

12.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and 
will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

12.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the 
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to 
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-

Multl~Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 12of22 



compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work 
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged, 
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this 
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full 
compliance with this Section 12. 

12.5 Contractor shall immediately report any Injuries to the Agency site safety representative. 
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety 
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further 
investigation is requested. 

12.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its 
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct 
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its 
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any 
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request. 

12.7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if 
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

12.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to 
actions including removal from Work. 

12.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a 
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and 
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling 
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks 
owned or leased by the Contractor. 

12.10 If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member 
(collectively "Member" solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to Section 1.4 
hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency under Sections 12.1, 
12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof. 

Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

13.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or iri a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Aooo Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 13 of22 



13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for 
the Eastern District of California. 

13.3 Severablllty. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

13.& Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant 
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All 
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative. 

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Attention: Stephen Alwan 
9290 Beatty Drive 
Sacramento, CA 95826 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 14of22 



----- ------------ ··- --

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Michael F. Dean 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
Meyers Nave 
555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of 
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the reporVdesign preparation. 

13.10 Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. 

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be 
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve 
the dispute in accordance with the following: 

13.11.1 

13.11.2 

13.11.3 

13.11.4 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level 
representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to 
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by 
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties 
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the 
resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15) 
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 15 of22 



13.11.5 

13 .. 11.6 

commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen 
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this 
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to 
either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution 
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time 
periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 
et seq. 

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement 
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal (if any), the 
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a 
Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In the case of any 
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Contractor's Proposal, the 
Purchase Order shall control. 

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to 
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore, 
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the 
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should 
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively 
for the purpose of this section only "Member; pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties 
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase 
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC. 

oa1e 11/ ,rl '" 
RAN~/;~~D, l ~ 
General Manager 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

I I-~ -L 

MICHA L POTTS, S~JJJutrli£ 
Service Branch Manager ~.._ V, ~-v p,,.u, ~ 

GS.VEN-2016-078 

Page 16of22 



Attest: 

Approved as to Form: 

~ era¾Jun~~ 4Y-

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 17 of22 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

ACCO Engineered Systems. Inc. ("Contractor"} shall provide HVAC maintenance services as requested by 
the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its 
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members: 

Services to include, but not be limited to the following: 
• HVAC maintenance 
• Swamp Cooler maintenance 
• Chiller maintenance 

Preventative maintenance services specific to CT facilities to include: 

GENERAL 
General Operation & condition 
Unusual noise & vibration 

REFRIGERATION SYSTEM 181 
Align & adjust drives, belts, couplings 
Record refrigerant & oil pressures · 
Check refrigerant Charge & controlS 
Inspect shaft seals & packing 
Operation of capacity & safety controls 

CENTRIFUGAL CHILLl!R 0 
Chllled & condenser water clrcuns 
Purge system 
on system - level, pressure & proper 

operation of on cooler & differential 
Operating pressures, temps. & vacuum 
capacity & safety controlS, flow J 
swttdleS. run load test ctamer, check 
for proper S1arter operation 

WATER TREATMENT 0 
aosees loop(s) only D 
Water analysis 
Add chemlcalS 
Adjust bleed rate 
Drain, flush & clean sumps 

AIR HANDLING SYSTEMS IX! 
Lubricate fan bearings 
Cheek fan beHS & drfVe augnment 
Check/dean drip pans and drains 
Check expansion valves & bulb clamps 
Check condttfon of fans, serous & cons 

HEATING SYSTEM 181 
Condition of heat exchangers 
Heating coils. traps. strainers & valVes 
Electric resistance h~ ; 
Operattng & safety controls 
Condensate return pump 
Burner operation and flue stack 
Expansion tank 

WATER PUMPS 
Condenser □ Chilled □ Hot □ 
· Lubrfcate pump bearings 
Check operating pressures 
Check drive alignment . 
Check seals and ·packing glands 
Purge air from pumps 

SERVICE PROGRAMS 

CENTRAL CONTROLS 0 
Check/calibrate thermostats. numtcHstats 
Check automatic control valves, damper 
& vane operators & central control panels 

CONTROL AIR COMPRESSOR 0 
Check drive belt tension & allgnment 
Compressor 011eve1 
Drain condensate 1i'0m receiver 
Operation & adjustment of pressure 

SINltch/Valve 

ELECTRICAL 181 
Record voltage & motor amperage 
LUbrleate motor bearings 
Magnetic starter connectrons 
Control box covers 

CONDENSING MEDIJM 
Tower D Evaporative 181 Air cooled D 
Lubricate fan bearings 

. - Check condenser col for leaks & scale 
Clean air Intake screens 
operating & safety controls 
Check sumps, chemicals & algae 
Dampers, damper motors & linkage 
Eliminators & spray noZZles 

□ ACCOCUARD: ACCO WIii regularty & systematically 
examine, adjust & lubricate your system as required; and, as 
conditions warrant. WIii repair or replace mOVing parts to keep 
your system operating. The ACCOGUARD agreement Includes 
nonnal maintenance & emergency service labor, parts & repairs. 

□ ACCOSERVE: ACCO WIil regularly & systematically 
examine~ adjust & lubricate your system as required. The 
ACCOSERVE contract rndudes labor portion of normal 
ma1ntenance, emergency seNlce and cost Of labor for 
repall'S. Alt par1s and materials will be bllled extra. 

igr ACCOCARE: ACCO Wit regularly and systemaucany 
examine, adjust & lubncate your system as required. Under an 
ACCOCARE agreement an other service calls, Including labor & 
replacement parts, will be done on proper NORTHERN 
CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY authorization and billed as 
extra. 

MulU-Task General Services Agreement between 

0 ACCOAUDIT: ACCO Will, at regular Intervals, 
supervise your employees or make an lnspedlon of your 
system and report findings In writing. ACCOAUDIT 
Agreement cost rs based on estimated time spent. or 
flXe<lfee. 

GS-VEN-2016-078 
Northern California Power Agency and Arm Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 Page 18of22 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in 
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of 
expenses is as follows: 

Standard Hourly Rate (East Bay): $149.00 (3% annual increase) 
Standard Hourly Rate (Sacramento): $135.00 (3% annual increase) 

Overtime Hourly Rate (East Bay): 1.5 x standard rate 
Overtime Hourly Rate (Sacramento): 1.5 x standard rate 

Pricing specific for CT facilities preventative maintenance services mentioned in Exhibit A: 

• Annual price (Year 1): $13,875.00, invoiced quarterly at $3,468.75 
• Annual Price (Year 2): $14,291.25, invoiced quarterly at $3,572.81 
• Annual Price (Year 3): $14,719.99, invoiced quarterly at $3,680.00 
• Annual Price (Year 4): $15,161.59, invoiced quarterly at $3,790.40 
• Annual Price (Year 5): $15,616.44, invoiced quarterly at $3,904.11 

Pricing for services to be performed at other NCPA facilities, NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be 
quoted at the time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in 
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 19 of22 



EXHIBIT C 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

I, Stephen Alwan, Service Sales Manager 

(Name of person signing affldavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

for contract work at 

ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 

(Company name) 

Lodi Energy Center, 12745 N. Thornton Road, Lodi, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by · al' m· Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

Dated this ___ ii_-__ day of 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND 
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA 
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page20of22 



NOT APPLICABLE· EXHIBIT D 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I, ___________________ ____ _, 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in 
confonnity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background investigations in 
confonnity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to time, 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ______ day of _____ _. 20 _ 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND 
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA 
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Caflfomia Power Agency and hxxJ Engineered Systems1 Inc. 
Re,td 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 21 of22 



EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5} 

It is an Employer as that tenn is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement C'Agreemenr solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it 
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered 
Work on the Project ( as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another 
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the 
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto {a copy of which was received and is 
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the 
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are 
later made thereto. 

If it perfonns Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated 
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local 
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and 
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned. 

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with 
the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents. from any 
Employer{s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered 
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform 
Covered Work. 

DATED: __ lf,__h,----f/4_'/,6 __ Name of Employer 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Acco Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Rev'd 5/4/16 
2650956.1 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page22of22 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered 
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and ACCO Engineered 
Systems, Inc. ("Contractor'') (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of _______ _ 
2021. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective November 17, 2016, (the "Agreement") for Contractor to provide HVAC maintenance 
services at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 
Agreement from the original expiration date of November 17, 2021 to a new date of January 31, 
2022;and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.1-Term of Agreement of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following: 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end when Contractor 
completes the Work, or no later than January 31, 2022, whichever occurs sooner. 

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 1 of 2 



Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to. Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: _____ _ 

ACCO Engineered Systems, Inc. 

BRANDON ELLIS, Service Sales Manager 

GS-VEN-2016-078 

Page 2 of 2 



PUBllC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
Professional Services Agreement for Compliance Support Services Including Biological 
Monitoring and General Compliance Support; Applicable to the following: All Northern California 
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Generation S~~s 

Assistant Gener~) anager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZl City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 228:21 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-98 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
for compliance support services, including biological monitoring and general compliance support, 
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, 
increasing the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000, for continued use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Compliance support services, including biological monitoring and general compliance support 
services, are required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. NCPA entered 
into a five-year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc., 
effective April 23, 2018 for an amount not to exceed $200,000, for use at any facilities owned or 
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or 
SCPPA Members 

This agreement has been used frequently by NCPA for CEC certification at its plants and 
biological monitoring for various projects, and it is now running low on funds. To ensure sufficient 
funds are available for the remainder of the contract term, this amendment will increase the not 
to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000, for continued use at any facility owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with EGS Consulting and Stratus 
Environmental. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total not to exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $200,000 to 
$500,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms and 
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 228:21 



October 28, 2021 
Page 3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 2021 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On October 11, 2021 the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~~ ,~ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 21-98 
• Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with CH2M Hill 

Engineers, Inc. 

SR: 228:21 



RESOLUTION 21-98 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #228:21) 

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. entered into a 
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement, effective April 23, 2018, for CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. to provide 
compliance support services, including biological monitoring and general compliance support, for use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, this agreement has been used frequently by NCPA for CEC certification at its plants and 
biological monitoring for various projects, and is now running low on funds; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000 to 
ensure sufficient funds are available for the remainder of the contract term; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task 
Professional Services Agreement, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, to increase the not to exceed amount from $200,000 to $500,000, for continued use at any facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MUL Tl• TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement')· is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 f'Agenct) and CH2M HIii Engineers. Inc., a 
corporation with its office located at 2485 Natomas Park Drive, Suite 600, Sacramento, CA 
95833 n::onsultann (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of 

Afci \ 13' , 2018 ("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the 
manner specified therein. 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five 
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is 
shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing 
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced 
to provide the Services set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel 
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Services Provided. Services. provided under this Agreement by Consultant may 
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's 
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The 
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed {"Requested 
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services 
and expendit1:1res authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the 
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar 
days from the date ·of the Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to 
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested 
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to 
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period 

Multi-Task Professional Seivlces Agreement between 
Northem Caltfomla Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 1 of 16 



Section 2. 

2.1 

specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services 
on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($200,000.00) for the 
Services, which shall include all fees. costs. expenses and other reimbursables, 
as set forth in Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay 
that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency 
expenditures under this Agreement. 

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Services performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 

the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and 

• At Agency's option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, 
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries 
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each 
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, 
with supporting documentation, to Agencys reasonable satisfadion. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-201&-006 

Page2 of 17 



2.4 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to 
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this 
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant 
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) 
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Services. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant 
with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) each accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liablllty Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering loss or liability, including the cost of defense of 
action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and property damage which 
may arise out of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a 
limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000. aggregate. Commercial 
general coverage shall be ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 
0001 on "an occurrence" basis covering General Liability. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 for the term of this Agreement covering any loss 
or liability, including the cost of defense of action, arising from the 
operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), whether or not 
owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall 
provide a limit of $1,000,000 each accident. This insurance shall provide 
liability covering motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent 
coverage may be excluded from general liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the lim_its equal or exceed those stated. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 3 of 17 



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall retain sufficient revenues 
and/or capitalization to self-insure Consultant's professional liability under this 
contract and shall at all times be capable to covering any resulting liability to 
Agency based upon Consultant's work in connection with this Agreement in an 
amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurance and and 
two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate to cover for the Consultant's errors 
and omissions. Consultant shall retain such revenues and/or capitalization for 
two (2) years after completion of the Services. 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Acord Certificate 
of Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy blanket endorsements to the 
policies referenced in Section 4.2, ad~ing the Agency as an additional 
insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work 
performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4.2 Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall provide at least thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to Agency of any canceUation. 

4.4.3 Reserved. 

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides 
services to Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, Agency 
shall have the right to require the Consultant to provide certificates of 
insurance and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, 
naming the specific Agency member, SCPPPA or Agency member for 
which the Services are to be performed. 

4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any 
insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of 
any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain an endorsement to effect this waiver of 
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver 
of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.6 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of 
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues 
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4, or self
insured by Consultant, during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that 
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as 
employees, agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by 
workers' compensation insurance required by applicable law during this 
Agreement. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page4of 17 



Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the 
proportionate extent arising out of the negligence, recklessness or willful 
misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of Services under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense and 
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate 
to such claims ("Liabilities"). Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and 
indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused 
by the negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency. 

5.3 Limitation of Liability. Consultant's liability for Agency's damages will, in the 
aggregate, not exceed the greater of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) or 
the· coverage limits provided by the insurance policies carried by Consultant in 
accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement. In no event shall Consultant, its 
affiliated corporations, officers, employees, or any of its subcontractors be liable 
for any incidental, indirect, special, punitive, economic or consequential 
damages, including but not limited to loss of revenue or profits, suffered or 
incurred by Agency or any of its agents, including other contractors engaged at 
the project site, as a result of this Agreement or Consultant's performance or 
non-performance of services pursuant to this Agreement. Limitations of liability 
provided here will apply whether the Consultant's liability arises under breach of 
contract or warranty; tort, including negligence; strict liability; statutory liability; or 
any other cause of action, and shall include Consultant's officers, affiliated 
corporations, employees and subcontractors. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only 
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel 
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the 
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, 
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 5of 17 



shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all 
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employm·ent by Agency, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any 
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge 
and· agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the Services, 
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Consultant's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and 
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant 

Multi-Task Professlonal Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 6of 17 



itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to 
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that 
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

8.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7 .1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that 
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for 
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, 
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant 
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section 
9.1 hereof. 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by all the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 7of 17 



8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 
Consultant; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the 
Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had 
completed the Services. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to· the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Govemment Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northam Cslifomia Power Agency and CH2M HIU Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page8of 17 



information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise.a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, ( c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party m~y disclose (''The Disclosing Party") confidential 
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that 
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, govemment or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential lnfonnation (including alt copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: ( a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in flies of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M HiU Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 9of 17 



necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information 'to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 1 O. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement Is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Consultant in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, 
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's 
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

Multi-Task.Professional Services Agreement between 
Northem Gallfomla Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 10 of 17 



10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Attention: Karen Parker 
2485 Natomas Park Drive, Suite 600 
Sacramento, CA 95833 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northam California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

General Counsel 
Northam California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Ro~eville, CA 95678 

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
fl~~ page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
oh;onstruction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professio·nal responsible for the reporVdesign preparation. 

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

10.11.1 

10.11.2 

10.11.3 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes· through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 11 of 17 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 



10.11.4 

10.11.5 

10.11.6 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The altemative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute 
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to 
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by 
Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the tenns of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Consultant's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, tl1e usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this Section only 11Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third 
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Services 
relating to such Member. 

Ill 

Ill 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomia Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 12 of 17 



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Dale 4-/z-1/13 _ 

j~l rh 
General Manager 

Attest: 

.. i\.A-~ . A,~ -
'f ,,1_r,,,, if.I . 

Assistant Seer. ary of the ~on 

Mulit-Task Plofasslonet Sffifces Agreement betwetn 
Norlhem Calfomla Power Agency and CH2M HUI Engineers, fnc. 
Revtd 8127/2017 

CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. 

Date. /{PR,L %3, Zol§ 

--~~ -
BRETT ISBELL 
Designated Manager 

GS.VEN-201a.ooe 

Par,e13of 17 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide on-call compliance support for biological 
monitoring and general compliance support services as requested by the Northern California 
Power Agency (" Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA members. 

Services to include, but not be limited to the following: 

• As identified in the Biological Resources Mitigation Implementation and Monitoring Plan 
("BRMIMPu) for the Project, biological monitoring will need to be conducted at the Project 
after construction is complete for the lifetime of the Project anytime there will be ground 
disturbance, or if biological resources (birds, wildlife, etc.) need to be relocated. 
Consultant will provide an on-call biological monitor for the Project. 

• Regulatory compliance support such as review of permit conditions, changes in 
regulatory requirements, preparation of permit documentation, license amendments. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern Csllfomia Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6127/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 14 of 17 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount as set 
forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an 
estimated amount of expenses is as follows: 

2018 Hourly Rates 

Principal 

Principal Technologist 

Sr. Project Manager 

Sr. Technologist 

Project Manager 

Engineer Speclallst 

Project Engineer 

Associate Engineer 

Staff Engineer 2 

Staff Engineer 1 

tateaory 

Sr Engineering/Environmental Tech 

Jr Engineering/Environmental Tech 

GIS/Graphlcs 

Office/Clerical/ Accounting 

Expense Rates 

Task 

Small Quantity In-house Reproduction 

Other Direct Expenses 

Overnight Mall 

First Class Mall (for large mailings only) 

Automobile MIieage (personal car) 

Travel & Living 

Health & Safety 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 

Unit 

Each Item 

Each Item 

Each Item 

Each Item 

Permlle 

Each item 

Per hour for H&S-tralned staff 

Northern C&lifomia Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

Rate 

$242.82 

$209.04 

$ 209.04 

$209.04 

$195.74 

$195.74 

$166.38 

$140.29 

$126.14 

$118.64 

$126.14 

$112.01 

$140.01 

$84.82 

2018 
Rate($) 

No cost 

At cost 

At cost 

At cost 

$0.535• 

At cost 

$1.75 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 15 of 17 



Expense Rates 

Task 

CH2M-owned Field Equipment (e.g., GPS 
Units) 

Subcontractors and Outside Services 

• Or established federal rate. 

Unit 

Each item 

Each item 

2018 
Rate($) 

At CH2M's standard rate 

At cost 

The hourly rates contained in this Exhibit B are subject to a calendar year escalation adjustment 
upon 30 days' advance written notice to Agency. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern Cslifomla Power Agency and CH2M HIii Engineers, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 16 of 17 



EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background lnvesUgatlons to ascertain the accuracy of the Identity 
and employment history of all employees of: 

for contract work at: 

CH2M Hill Engineers. Inc. 

(Company name) 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745N. THORNTON ROAD, LOOI. CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required ·a · gy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

1gna re o officer or agent) · 

Dated this Z3 NI day of , ... 11.ts«'-.. . . , 20 dl_. 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT 
SECURJTY PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE 
FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE 
PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Nonhem C81ifomla Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 
Rav•d 8/27/2017 

GS-VEN-2018-008 

Page 17 of 17 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement is entered 
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and CH2M Hill Engineers, 
Inc. ("Consultant") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of ________ , 202_. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Professional Services Agreement, effective April 23, 
2018 (the "Agreement") for CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. to provide compliance support for biological 
monitoring and general compliance support services at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, 
its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a "NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $200,000 to a 
"NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $500,000; and 

WHE~EAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

Ill 

Ill 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND dollars ($500,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, 
expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant's fee schedule, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that 
Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency 
expenditures under this Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
-specifically set forth herein. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

First Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M Hill Enginee~s, Inc. 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Template 6-8-18 Page 1 of 2 



Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and CH2M Hill Engineers, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: _____ _ 

CH2M HILL ENGINEERS, INC. 

DAVID ALLARD, Manager of Projects 

GS-VEN-2018-006 

Page 2 of 2 



PUBllC AG!:NCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
General Services Agreement for Water Treatment Related Services; Applicable to the following: 
All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Generatiot~s 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe: 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members ~ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 229:21 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-99 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, 
LLC for condensate polisher resin regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, 
RO & UF membrane cleaning and other water treatment support services, with any non
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel or her 
designee, modifying the warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 and adding emergency 
delivery pricing in Exhibit B, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Condensate polisher resin regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, RO & UF 
membrane cleaning and other water treatment support services are required from time to time 
for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC effective November 1, 2020. 

Per Section 12.1 of the Agreement, "For the Lodi Energy Center Condensate Polishers, 
Contractor will guarantee, by way of an amendment to the. Agreement, a throughput amount to 
be determined and mutually agreed upon ... ". Discussions 1were had between Evoqua and 
NCPA and a throughput amount of 28,000,000 gallons was mutually agreed upon. This First 
Amendment will modify the warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 and add emergency 
delivery pricing to Exhibit B. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement will remain unchanged at not to exceed 
$1,000,000 over the remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms and 
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 229:21 



October 28, 2021 
Page 3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 2021, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation 
above for Commission approval. 

On October 11, 2021, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~.!WA~~ 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 21-99 
• Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water 

Technologies, LLC 

SR: 229:21 



RESOLUTION 21-99 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MUL Tl-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

(reference Staff Report #229:21) 

WHEREAS, condensate polisher resin regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, RO & UF 
membrane cleaning and other water treatment support services are required from time to time for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, 
by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Evoqua Water technologies, 
LLC effective November 1, 2020 to provide such services, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, per Section 12.1 of the Agreement, "For the Lodi Energy Center Condensate Polishers, 
Contractor will guarantee, by way of an amendment to the Agreement, a throughput amount to be determined 
and mutually agreed upon ... ". Discussions were had between Evoqua and NCPA and a throughput amount of 
28,000,000 gallons was mutually agreed upon; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to modify the warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 and add 
emergency delivery pricing to Exhibit B; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. 
No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC, with any changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel or her designee, to modify the warranty language in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 and add emergency 
delivery pricing to Exhibit B, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by 
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

roll call: 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021, by the following vote on 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Vote Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTI-TASK 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 
EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 851 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company with its office located at 210 Sixth Avenue, Suite 3300, 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 ("Contractor") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of 
NDVGrol::tt: I , 2020 ("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods 
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ('Work"). 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) 
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Perfonnance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing 
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to 
provide the Work set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to 
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may 
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPAD) or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work'1, may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary . 
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be 
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the 
Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to 
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does 
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2O20-O71 



agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase 
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees, 
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency 
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures 
under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
■ At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the 

applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the 
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a 
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with 
supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, Cafifomia 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perfonn Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform 
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until 
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northem California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-202()..()71 

Page 2 of 30 



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have thirty (30) days 
aft~r completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 
any amounts due within the thirty (30) day period, Contractor is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 
Additionally, invoices with errors will be returned to Contractor for correction. 
Contractor shall have thirty (30) days to resubmit corrected invoices. Any 
invoices not properly corrected or invoices that take longer than thirty (30) days 
to return, the Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment for the Requested Work from agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Work. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this 
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor 
with fimits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 

Multi-Task General Sentices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020..071 

Page 3of30 



mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable. 

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable. 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in 
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. 

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs 
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to 
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and 
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to 
be performed. 

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work 
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page4 of30 



and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent 
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation 
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and from and against all third party losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), for personal injury, death 
or damage to tangible property to the extent caused by negligence by Contractor, 
its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by the sole or 
gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be 
construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then the 
exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

5.3 Transfer of Title. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous 
materials, Contractor shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and control 
of such materials and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused 
thereby, including without limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of 
such materials, until Agency accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this 
Agreement, such acceptance shall occur after Contractor or its agents complete 
transfer of such materials into appropriate containers, machinery, storage tanks 
or other storage apparatus identified by NCPA. In the event a spill, leak, 
discharge or release requires notification to a federal, state or local regulatory 
agency, Contractor shall be responsible for all such notifications. Should 
Contractor be required to remedy or remove such materials as a result of a leak, 
spill, release or discharge of such materials into the environment at Agency's Site 
or elsewhere, Contractor agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site 
to a level sufficient to receive a "No Further Action Required" or "Closure Letter' 
from the appropriate regulatory authority. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only 
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 5 of 30 



to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by 
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, 
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or 
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but 
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to 
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement 
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including 
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Contractor's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page6 of30 



subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall 
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself 
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors 
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with 
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all 
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to 
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission. Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at 
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. 

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or 
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types 
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall 
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontradors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that 
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

7.4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7.5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants 
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to 
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

7.6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with Califomia Labor Code Section 
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a 
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 7 of 30 



than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work 
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in 
performing .the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general 
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which 
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker 
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request. 
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the 
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the 
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any 
worker or any other third party with regard thereto. 

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 
31 Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding 
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on 
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. 

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined 
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10} days of the 
Contractor's receipt of Agency's written request therefor. Contractor's failure to 
timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties 
pursuant to state law. 

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 177 4 
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty 
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work 
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under 
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular, 
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to 
Se_ction 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker 
by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Te.rmination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor. 

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page8 of30 



may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to 
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof). 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of 
th~ terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by 
Contractor; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work 
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would 
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the 
Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF.RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Ag.ency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General SeNices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 9 of 30 



9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party") Confidential 
Information to the other party (the "Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know 
in connection with this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomla Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 10 of30 



9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shan not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 1 O. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Proiect Site. Each Project site may include the power plant 
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, 
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner 
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if 
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced 
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons 
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a 
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, 
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to 
Contractor's Work. 

10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be 
soiely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of 
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, 
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be 
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost, 
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment, 
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without 
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an 
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to 
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by 
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither 
Ag·ency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 11 of 30 



assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, 
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project 
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and 
in good condition. 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely 
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency 
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as 
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

11.1 Nature of Work. Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in 
de~ign and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in 
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent 
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Contractor warrants the services for ninety (90) days from performance 
("Warranty Period"). 

11.2 Deficiencies in Work. If Agency gives prompt written notice of breach of this 
warranty to Contractor within the Warranty Period, Contractor shall be obligated 
at its own expense, and as Agency's sole and exclusive remedy, to perform, all 
further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies which result from 
Contractor's failure to perform any Work in accordance with the standards 
required by this Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Contractor, 
(i) Agency shall be responsible for any labor required to gain access to the work 
so that Contractor can assess the available remedies and (ii) Agency shall be 
responsible for all costs of installation of repaired or replaced work. If Contractor 
determines that any claimed breach is not, in fad, covered by this warranty, 
Agency shall pay Contractor its then customary charges for any repair or 
replacement made by Contractor. Contractor's warranty is conditioned on 
Agency (a) operating and maintaining the work in accordance with Contractors 
instructions, (b) not making any unauthorized repairs or alterations, and (c) not 
being in default of any payment obligation to Contractor. Contractors warranty 
does not cover damage caused by chemical action or abrasive material, misuse 
or improper installation (unless installed by Contractor) and (ii) media goods 
(such as, but not limited to, resin, membranes, or granular activated carbon 
media) once media goods are installed. 

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, to the extent 
assignable, such as insurance, provided by or reasonably obtainable from 
suppliers of equipment and material used in th~ Work 

Section 12. Mix Bed Guarantee 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Po~r Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 12 of 30 



12.1 Warranty. Any deviations from the requirements, assumptions or conditions 
contained of this section 12 will void the warranty. Agency must ensure that all 
conditions set forth in this section, including all the feedwater water parameters 
listed in Exhibit A, ("Incoming Water") are met including Agency provided 
materials, equipment, facilities, utilities, and other things, described herein. This 
warranty shall be deemed void if Agency fails to meet any of the following 
obligations pertaining to media use and the system in which media is used. 

For Lodi Energy Center Condensate Polishers, Contractor will guarantee, by way 
of an amendment to the Agreement, a throughput amount to be determined and 
mutually agreed upon, based upon the process as defined by the Throughput 
Volume Determination Plan by May 31, 2021 as per the treated water 
specifications outlined in Exhibit A ("Effluent Water"). If the parties are unable to 
mutually agree to the throughput amount by the date specified, the throughput 
guarantee will be void and Contractor will have no responsibility or liability as it 
relates to the throughput guarantee. 

The warranty shall be deemed void if the Agency fails to meet the following 
influent water conditions: 

• Feed water must not contain any oxidizing agents including, without 
limitation, chlorine, ozone or permanganate. 

• Sequestrants, cleaning or treatment chemicals, and any other chemicals 
used in the system must be compatible with the media. 

• Influent water to each vessel shall be free of entrained air to the extent that 
entrained air could disrupt media beds in any system. 

• Bacteria levels in the influent and influent delivery mechanisms such as, for 
example, piping and manifolds in any well, shall be <5 cfu/ml. If Contractor 
Water Technologies is requested to backwash and sanitize a specific media 
bed after the start of a particular run then Condition a. applies. Furthermore, 
the detection of bacteria at any level in the influent and influent delivery 
mechanisms may compromise the media bed life. Therefore, Contractor 
assumed no responsibility or liability relating to the bacteriological quality of 
the incoming water or within the wells and shall bear no costs relating to 
media sterilization due to bacteria in the incoming water or elsewhere in the 
wells. 

• Should any of the sodium, chloride, sulfate, phosphate, silica, specific 
conductivity, ammonia, total organic carbon, temperature range, temperature 
peak, and total iron values exceed the feedwater water parameters listed in 
Exhibit A, the warranted treatment volume will be adjusted and a new 
Warranty would be provided. 

This section 12.1 does not require Agency to do any additional monitoring. 

12.2 Remedies. The sole remedy for each of Contractor's vessel that fails to reach 
50% of this mix bed guarantee is a full credit for the regeneration cost will be 
applied to Agency's account. If a vessel reaches 50%-100% throughput, then a 
pro-rated credit for the regeneration cost will be applied to the Agency's account. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 13of30 



For example, if the throughput is 21,000,000 gallons, then the Agency would only 
pay for 70% of the price. 

12.3 System Operation and Maintenance. Agency agrees, at its own expense, to at 
all times maintain the system as necessary for Contractor to fulfill its obligations 
hereunder. The design parameters (system, equipment and peripheral 
components) must be consistent with sound engineering practice and the system 
is operated within the design parameters. The system shall be operated and 
maintained in accordance with the written parameters provided in this supplied 
Media Bed Life Warranty. The warranty shall be deemed void if the Agency fails 
to meet the following system conditions: 

• The media must be operationally protected against excessive hydraulic 
changes including, without limitation, water hammer, and rapid pressure 
swings. 

• The system shall not be backwashed or the beds otherwise hydraulically 
altered once a service run has started, as this will reduce the expected 
throughput. 

• The media must be maintained in a clean condition and must not be 
contaminated by particulate matter, colloidal or precipitated solids, 
biological growth or foreign materials (including but not restricted to 
cationic surfactants, solvents, soluble oils, free oils, lipids, and high 
molecular weight natural polymers. 

• Agency must keep media moist at all times after installation. 

• Media loss from the bed will be excluded from this warranty. Without 
limitation, loss of media due to failure of distributors, media traps, or other 
procedures are the responsibility of the Agency. 

• Warranty does not apply if media bed is removed from service before the 
throughput is reached. Prematurely removing media for reasons 
including, without exceeding effluent water specifications, uranium 
loading or high differential pressure will void the warranty. 

12.4 Water Monitoring. Agency is responsible for ensuring that frequent, adequate 
system performance data are routinely recorded in a systematic format that is 
regularly reviewed. Agency agrees to provide conductivity data on a daily basis, 
as well as total volume treated. Agency agrees to make this data available to 
Contractor on a reasonable basis at Contractor's reasonable request. Contractor 
reserves the right to obtain copies of calibration records for requested 
parameters. 

12.5 Disputes. Should premature breakthrough occur, Contractor reserves the right to 
inspect installed media bed to investigate effects of flow characteristics. 
Inspection will include but not be limited to inspection of top of media bed to 

Multi•Task General SeNices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS•VEN-2020-071 

Page 14 of 30 



ensure that no visible shifting or channeling has occurred, and the collection of 
water samples and spent media. Should it be determined by Evoqua that 
premature breakthrough has occurred due to improper operation, warranty will be 
void. 

12.6 THE FOREGOING SETS FORTH CONTRACTOR'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE 
WARRANTY AND REMEDY WITH RESPECT TO MEDIA BED LIFE. THIS IS 
NOT A PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE. CONTRACTOR LIABILITY UNDER 
THIS WARRANTY SHALL BE LIMITED TO DIRECT DAMAGES ONLY AND 
SHALL NOT EXCEED THE ANNUAL PRICE PAID TO CONTRACTOR UNDER 
THE CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR RESERVES THE RIGHT TO UPDATE THIS 
BED LIFE GUARANTEE ON A YEARLY BASIS. 

FURTHERMORE, THE DETECTION OF BACTERIA AT ANY LEVEL IN THE 
INFLUENT AND INFLUENT DELIVERY MECHANISMS MAY COMPROMISE 
THE BED LIFE. THEREFORE, EVOQUA ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY OR 
LIABILITY RELATING TO THE BACTERIOLOGICAL QUALITY OF THE 
INCOMING WATER OR WITHIN THE WELLS AND SHALL BEAR NO COSTS 
RELATING TO MEDIA STERILIZATION DUE TO BACTERIA IN THE 
INCOMING WATER OR ELSEWHERE IN THE WELLS. 

12.7 THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 11 AND 12 ARE THE 
CONTRACTOR'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES AND ARE SUBJECT 
TO THE LIMITATION OF LIABILITY PROVISION BELOW. CONTRACTOR 
MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PURPOSE 

Section 13. HEAL TH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, 
and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program 
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall 
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations 
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4. 

13.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to 
safety perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. 

13.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training 
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may 
be. encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified 
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for 
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and 
material handling equipment. 

13.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware 
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 15 of30 



13.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance 
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall 
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the 
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result 
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is 
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be 
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for 
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 
12. 

13.5 Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety 
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the 
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and 
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested. 

13.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of 
its -employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall 
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of 
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental 
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site 
safety representative upon request. 

13. 7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous 
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

13.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be 
subject to actions including removal from Work. 

13.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the 
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for 
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including 
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous 
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the 
Contractor. 

13.10 If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA 
member (collectively 11Member" solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to 
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency 
under Sections 13.1, 13.2, 13.4, 13.5, and 13.6 hereof. 

Section 14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

14.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

Multi•Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technolpgies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 16 of30 



14.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of Califomia in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

14.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

14.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

14.5 Successors and. Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

14 .. 6 Conflict. of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

14.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel 
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

14.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 
Attention: Branch Manager 
1440 Venture Lane 
Turlock, CA 95380 

With a Copy to: 
Evoqua Water Technologies LL 
Attention: General Counsel 
21 0 Sixth Avenue, Suite 3300 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 17 of 30 



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

14.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

14.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

14.11 Alternative Dispute ,Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

14.11.1 

14.11.2 

14.11.3 

14.11.4 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2020.071 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 18 of30 



14.11.5 

14.11.6 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

14.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

14.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

14.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

14.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only "Member'') 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third 
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to 
such Member. 

Section 15. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING ELSE TO THE CONTRARY, CONTRACTOR 
SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, 
PUNITIVE OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES, AND EXCEPT FOR INDEMNITY 
OBLIGATIONS FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL INJURY, 
DEATH OR DAMAGE TO TANGIBLE PROPERTY TO EXTENT OF 
CONTRACTOR'S NEGLIGENCE, CONTRACTOR'S TOTAL LIABILITY 
ARISING AT ANY TIME FROM THE SALE OR USE OF THE WORK, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY LIABILITY FOR ALL WARRANTY 
CLAIMS OR FOR ANY BREACH OR FAILURE TO PERFORM ANY 
OBLIGATION UNDER THE CONTRACT, SHALL NOT EXCEED ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS PAID FOR THE WORK. THESE LIMITATIONS APPLY WHETHER 

Multi-Task General SeNices Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 19 of30 



/ 

THE LIABILITY IS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY 
OTHER THEORY. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

oate , \ I? I~ 
1~ ~ I~ 

RAND,- S. HOWARD, 
General Manager 

Attest: ( 

Approved as to Form: 

om mission 

/ Ja e E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

WILLIAM MERTES, 
Director of Operations 

Northam catlfornla Power Agency and Evoqua Wat.er Technologtes, LLC. 
Revd 71912019 

GS•VEN-2020-071 

Page20of30 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC ("Contractor") shall provide condensate polisher resin 
regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, RO & UF membrane cleaning, and 
other water treatment support services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency 
(

11Agencyn) at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members: 

CT Facilities services to include, but not be limited to the following: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologlea, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 21 of30 



Lodi eww Center 9rJdeoate e9Mbm: 

These units wdl be provided on a rental and excha~se ba.lls. that wHI be char1ed $100 per month per veuei 
rental and $1,458.00 per exchan,e~ The estimated exchange frequency Is one (1) vessel per month but this 
number could cnan,e based on the feedwater to the vessels and resin pe·rformance. A minimum of two 
vessels are to be shipped fer regeneration at anv one time which wlU still aHow· for there to be sufficient 
resin capacity o:n: site for the demfneraflzaflon i)rocess. One vessel Is to be In servlee, with one in standbv 
and one In on-site Inventory. 

aonLE TYPES AND FUNCTIONS" 

Num. Vessel Size Resin Type Bottle Function 

s 60 ft3 Steel Vessels Mbced Bed Removal of dissolved solids to produce de-ionized 
water 

FEEDWATER/TREAT£D WATER SPECIFICATIONS 

I. Condensate potlth• feed water ohanact:erittlo.l: 
Parameter 

Sodium 

Chlarlde 

Sulfate 

Phosphate 

Silica 

Spedftc ConductMty 

Ammonia (as NH.3) 

Total Orpnfc carbon 

Temperature Range, normal 

Temperature • peak durir,g 
t,vpass 

Total trcm 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Feedwater 

<I 

<.3 

<I 

<3 

< l! 

< 30 

< S 

<300 

70-120 

160 for 30-60 min 

,0.2: 

UnJt 

u1A 

uf/L 

ug/L 

uf/L 

ug/L 

us/cm 

mg/L 

ug/L 

•F 

"'F 

m,/L 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page22 of30 



U. T,-at.ed Water Specification: 
Parameter Feedwater Unit 

SOdium <1 u,/L 

Chloride e1 UJ/L 

Sulfate < u,/L 

Phos · ate < Uf,/l. 

Silica <5 "1/1. 
Specific c.onduetiVlty <0.1 US/cm 

Temperature Range# normal 90 •F 

Temperature- peak during 
bypass 160for 3o.60 min •F 

REGENERATION PROCEDURE QUAU1Y CONTROL, ANO TROU81.£SHOOTING 

To provide Increased rebblUty based on prox1·m1ty, Evoqua worked to establish a reliable reseneration procedure 

specific for the NCPA conden·sate polisher resin that eoufd be completed at our fadHty Jn MffpJtas, CA. The p neral 
{approximately 8 hour) regeneration procedure is1ndude:d below, Dedicated NCPA resin Js regenerated alone and Is not 

mterminjled with our fSoat resin or resin from another customer, Tht regeneration procedure Is proprfetary but we esn 

share a more detailed summ ry upon request. 

Prooedure 

• Vessel arrival and locclng 

• Resin separation anion/cation 

• Inspect individual resin volume 

• Add either or both anion and cation resin from NCPA maintained heel if necessary 

• NaOH 50% anion soak- Extended 

• HCI 36" cation soak - Extended 

• Quality Check 

c <Sppb :silica 

• :>10 megohm resistivity 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2O20-071 

Page23 of30 



Quality Control and Troubteshootma 

NCPA charges are received and segregated from all other AtSin as the first step to our quality control and 
tracking. Following the regenenltion above,. the following steps are completed to ensure that the resin 
processed ,meets ttte quatity specification and run length anticipated: 

• High purity DI Water rinse 
• Measure rinse water for resistivity targeting >10megohm 
• \l\lhen resistivity target is reached -test rinse water for s;Jica target is <~ppb 

• Transfer to vessel, apply batch label, and make ready for shipment 

Troubleshooting is a subjective exercise based on the resin application and the issues being observed. 
However, a general approach to assessing pelformance includes: 

• Interfacing with Operations to determine system performance 

• Detemtining correct vessel resin volumes 
• Vessel inletfoutlet water sampling 
• Resin capacity testing 

To ensure resin capacity. in addition the resin sampling associated with the current short run 
troubleshootlng. we will conduct annual resin sampllng before and after regeneration. Samples to be 

collected In Milpitas and tran5fen:ed to Rockford for analyslst 

A quality control report will be attached to and provided with the return of each vessel. The 
qu~lity report will document the date and time the regeneration process started and finished, 
rinse water Silica, resistivity and chlorides, individual resin volumes as received, volume of resin 
added, heel volume remaining. Failure to provide the quality report will deem the vessel has not 
been regenerated. No charge will be incurred for such a vessel and it will be sent back unused 
for regeneration. · 

Agency's exhausted resin may be stored at Contractor's facility. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page24 of30 



lgdj Eoe,gy Ceotec- CJ2 <STIG) Mfxed Be<f Pofisher 

These units and resin will be provided on a rental and exchange basis that win be chargt-d $265 per month 
per vessel rental af)d $875.00 per exchange. The estimated exchange frequency is not readily predictable 

but based on historical data, we anticipate two (2) vessels per month. A minimum of two vessels are to be 
shipped for regeneration at any one time which will still allow for there: to be sufficient resin capacity on site 

for the demlnerallzation process. 

aonLE TYPES AND FUNCTIONS* 

Num. Resin Type 8~1• Function 

8 60 ft3 Steel Vessels Mixed Bed Removal of dissolved solids to produce de-ionized 
water 

Qil- Lqdj emmi AJameda Peafser Yml Bed PqJi§her 

These units and restn will be provided on a rental and exchans~ basts that wlll be charged $18.75 per mo.nth 
per bottle rental and $62.00 pe:r exchan1e. The estimated exchanae frequency Is not readily pr.:edlctable but 
based on hlstorlcal data, we antidpate 64 bottles per year. 

BOTI'LE lVPES AND FUNCTIONS• 

Facility Num. Bottle Size 

Lodl 16 3.6 ft3 FRP Bottles 

Alameda 16 3.6 ft3 FRP Bottles 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 

Resin Type Bottle Function 

Mixed Bed Removal of dissolved solids to produce de-ionized 

water 

Mixed Bed 

CT2 (STlG) 

00 
>10 
<2 

Removal of dissolved sohds to produce de-Ionized 
water 

da 

3.6 
>10 >10 
<20 

GS-VEN-2020-071 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

Page 25 of30 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses! shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates .and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

CT Facilities costs: 

Cost Summarv 
11m &limited ADIHIII Cost 

Condensate Palsher Rental $6000/v~ar 
Condensate Polisher Regen $14,175/year 
60 cu. ft. Dt Vessel Rental $25,440/~ar 
60 cu. ft. DI Vessel Reatt $15,750/vear-
3.6 cu. ft DI Yestel Rental $7,'ZOO/year 

- d 
L Annu~I T nt ~• { n d c.ita c .:c l v r 

•based on historical e,cchan,e ·frequency 

Pricing for services to be performed at other NCPA facilities, NCPA Member or SCPPA 
locations will be quoted at the time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 26 of 30 



I, 

EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Tltle) 

do hereby certify that background Investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

for contract work at 

Evoqua Water TectmoloqJes. LLC 

(Company name) 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

have been conducted as required by __ y Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

Dated this M Jf/: day of _____ _. 20 1Q . 
THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multl-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Californla Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev•d 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page27of30 



EXHIBITD 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compllance for Hazardous Materlals Transport Vendors 

I, ___ ...--..IA~!d___._( l......._tl__._cJ'.Y'..-...;;;.........k_, ........_(vl_.e_vf __ .e_r ____ _, 
(Name of person signing affidavlt)(Tltle) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and Implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.8O2(a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

as required by the California Ene y Commission Dec· ion for the above-named project. 
' 

Dated this 6J tfr J/j day of ______ _. 20 ff) 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Muttf-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologles, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN•2020-071 

Page28of30 



NOT APPLICABLE 

EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement ("Agreement'' solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) 
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the 
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered 
Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements 
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the 
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to 
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as 
if made by the undersigned. 

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, 
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

DATED: _______ _ Name of Employer 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

(Authorized Officer & Title) 

(Address) 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page29 of30 



EXHIBIT F 

Throughput Volume Determination Plan 

SUMMARY 

Due to the high variability of throughput volumes observed over the past several years, a mutually 
equitable throughput guarantee could not be determined and included in the current contract renewal. 
Through review of the data and discussions between Evoqua and NCPA Operations staff, a plan was 
developed to determine and address the causes of the variability. With the variability addressed, we are 
confident a mutually agreeable throughput volume guarantee can be determined. 

APPROACH 

Evoqua observed a recent resin slurry operation, performed by NCPA. At the end of the slurry process, a 
significant amount of exhausted resin remained in the vessel, visually estimated to be between 10% -
15% of the resin load. Exhausted resin, when later mixed with regenerate resin, will impact the 
subsequent run by increasing leakage of inorganic constituents. In order to verify that this is the cause of 
short runs, a mutually-agreed-upon approach was developed to ensure all resin is removed during the 
slurry process. For the data to be meaningful, the effort will target three consecutive slurry/regeneration 
events. Historically, for successful runs, the average run time has been about 2.5 months. However, the 
duration is highly variable based upon plant operation. As a result, the process of generating the 
necessary data will take several months to complete. 

ACTIONS 

During each of the next three vessel slurry/regen operations: 

Contact Evoqua prior to initiating sluicing to allow for Evoqua participation 
NCPA to confirm all resin is removed during the sluicing process, preferably with photographs 
Evoqua to grab samples of spent resin prior to and after regeneration for analysis. Analysis will 
define the level of exhaustion on receipt and validate the efficacy of the regeneration process by 
measuring the H/OH conversion %. 
Evoqua to photo-verify removal of all resin from transport vessel prior to regeneration. 
Evoqua to quantify that the volume and ratio of spent resin received, and afte~ regeneration. The 
target regenerated resin volume is 54 cuft with a 2: 1 ratio of cation to anion. 
If required, Evoqua will add resin as required to meet the target volume and ratio 
NCPA to track analytical data (NCPA LEC Steam Cycle Chemistry Log} on a periodic basis, as 
well as total throughput achieved (Condensate Polisher Log} and share that data with Evoqua for 
mutual verification 

Additional step for short run: 

Open 20" manway to inspect _resin bed PRIOR to sluicing 
o Due to the high velocity operation, bed mixing is possible, and inspection may provide insight into 

this possible contributor to a short run 

CONCLUSION 

Data review after the conclusion of the three controlled vessel change outs will be used to identify a 
mutually agreeable throughput guarantee. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomla Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 30 of30 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, 

LLC 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement is entered 
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and Evoqua Water 
Technologies, LLC ("Contractor") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of 

-------' 2021. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement dated 
effective November 1, 2020, (the "Agreement") for Contractor to provide condensate polisher resin 
regeneration, DI mixed bed vessel rental and regeneration, RO & UF membrane cleaning, and 
other water treatment support services; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Warranty and Remedies language set 
forth in Sections 12.1 and 12.2 to the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the pricing set forth in Exhibit 8 to the 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 12.1 Warranty is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Any deviations from the requirements, assumptions or conditions contained of this section 
12 will void the warranty. Agen,cy must ensure that all conditions set forth in this section, 
including all the feedwater wafer parameters listed in Exhibit A, ("Incoming Water'') are met 
including Agency provided materials, equipment, facilities, utilities, and other things, 
described herein. This warranty shall be deemed void if Agency fails to meet any of the 
following obligations pertaining to media use and the system in which media is used. 

For Lodi Energy Center Condensate Polishers, Contractor will guarantee 28,000,000 
gallons throughput. 

The warranty shall be deemed void if the Agency fails to meet the following influent water 
conditions: 

a. Feed water must not contain any oxidizing agents including, without limitation, 
chlorine, ozone or permanganate. 

b. Sequestrants, cleaning or treatment chemicals, and any other chemicals used in 
the system must be compatible with the media. 

c. Influent water to each vessel shall be free of entrained air to the extent that 
entrained air could disrupt media beds in any system. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 1 of 3 



d. Bacteria levels in the influent and influent delivery mechanisms such as, for 
example, piping and manifolds in any well, shall be <5 cfu/ml. If Contractor 
Water Technologies is requested to backwash and sanitize a specific media bed 
after the start of a particular run then Condition a. applies. Furthermore, the 
detection of bacteria at any level in the influent and influent delivery mechanisms 
may compromise the media bed life. Therefore, Contractor assumed no 
responsibility or liability relating to the bacteriological quality of the incoming 
water or within the wells and shall bear no costs relating to media sterilization 
due to bacteria in the incoming water or elsewhere in the wells. 

e. Should any of the sodium, chloride, sulfate, phosphate, silica, specific 
conductivity, ammonia, total organic carbon, temperature range, temperature 
peak, and total iron values exceed the feedwater water parameters listed in 
Exhibit A, the warranted treatment volume will be adjusted and a new Warranty 
would be provided. 

This section 12.1 does not require Agency to do any additional monitoring. 

2. Section 12.2 Remedies is amended and restated to read as follows: 

The sole remedy for each of Contractor's vessel that fails to reach 50% of this mix bed 
guarantee is a full credit for the regeneration cost will be applied to Agency's account. If a 
vessel reaches 50%-100% throughput, then a pro-rated credit for the regeneration cost will be 
applied to the Agency's account. For example, if the throughput is 21,000,000 gallons, then the 
Agency would only pay for 75% of the price. 

3. Exhibit B - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES is amended and restated 
to read in full as set forth in the Attached Exhibit B. 

4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: _____ _ 

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

AARON BOLES, Area/District Manager 

GS-VEN-2020-071 

Page 2 of 3 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

CT Facilities costs: 

Cost Summarv 
Item Estimated Annual Cost 

Condensate Po.Usher Rental $6000/year 
Condensate Polisher Regen $14,175/ year 
60 cu. ft. 01 Vessel Rental $25,440/year 
60 cu. ft. DI Vessel Regen $15,750/year• 
3.·6 cu. ft DI Vessel Rental $7,200/year 

Emms1ted Annual Iotal Cost <t tC.O· CIC.C \fr 

*based on historical exchat1ge frequency 

The rate for weekend and emergency delivery of tanks to CT1, CT2 and LEC, not due to fault of 
Contractor, will be $150/hour with a four (4) hour minimum. 

Pricing for services to be performed at other NCPA facilities, NCPA Member or SCPPA locations 
will be quoted at the time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs 
in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Evoqua Water Technologies, LLC 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VE N-2020-071 

Page 3 of 3 



PUBLIC AGUICV 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Hometown Connections, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task 
Consulting Services Agreement Applicable to Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA 
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks 

Assistant General 
Manager/CFO 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Information Services 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members [8] 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 238:21 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

19 



Hometown Connections, Inc. - First Amendment to 5 Year MTCSA 
October 28, 2021 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-104 authorizing the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) General 
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task Consulting Services 
Agreement with Hometown Connections, Inc. for various consulting related tasks including but 
not limited to organization assessments, strategic planning, market research, and training, with 
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, 
increasing the not to exceed to $1,000,000, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), 
or SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Hometown Connections, Inc. (HCI) is a national, non-profit utility services organization 
specializing in the unique challenges of community-owned utilities. Their team of consultants 
and vendor partners help utilities streamline business processes, enhance customer service, 
improve security, and develop plans for the future. Serving community-owned utilities of every 
size and type, HCI provides products and services to develop all areas of the utility business, 
including operations, cybersecurity, business strategy, customer care, finance, workforce, and 
technology. 

On July 19, 2019, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with 
HCI, for services to the Agency and/or its Members in an amount not-to-exceed $250,000. Since 
inception, HCl's contract has been used six times by NCPA Members (Redding (3), Alameda, 
Lompoc, and Truckee Donner) nearing the not-to-exceed limit. Due to expressed Member 
interest, the Agency now desires to amend the agreement to increase the total compensation 
from the not-to-exceed amount of $250,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000 over the 
term. NCPA's investment in HCI as a founding member in 2018 was for just this purpose - to 
provide access to technology and services and integrated solutions that are specifically designed 
to help public power utilities succeed in the communities they serve. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total not-to-exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $250,000 to 
$1,000,000 with no other changes to the terms and conditions. Purchase orders referencing the 
terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA and/or Member 
procurement policies and procedures. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 202--rfheFacilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

·sR: 238:21 



Hometown Connections, Inc. - First Amendment to 5 Year MTCSA 
October 28, 2021 
Page3 

On October 11, 2021 the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~~ (~ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
• Resolution 21-104 
• First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Hometown 

Connections, Inc. 
• Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Hometown Connections, Inc. 

SR: 238:21 



RESOLUTION 21-104 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK CONSUL TING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #238:21) 

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and Hometown Connections, Inc. entered into 
a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement effective June 19, 2019, for Consultant to provide for 
various consulting related tasks including but not limited to organization assessments, strategic planning, 
market research, and training; for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, 
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, Hometown Connections, Inc. is a provider of these services being utilized six times by NCPA 
Members nearing the not-to-exceed limit; and 

WHEREAS, due to continued expressed interest in utilizing the Consultant, the Agency now desires to 
amend the Agreement to increase the total compensation from the not-to-exceed amount of $250,000 to a not
to-exceed amount of $1,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into the First Amendment, for continued use at any 
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement is 
entered into by and between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency'') and 
Hometown Connections, Inc. ("Consultant") (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of 

-------I 2021. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement 
dated effective July 19, 2019, (the "Agreement") for Hometown Connections, Inc. to provide 
consulting services based on public power best practices including organization assessment, 
strategic planning, compensation studies, management consulting, training and workshop 
services, and other services as requested; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a "NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $250,000 
to a NOT TO EXCEED amount of $1,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to amend the Scope of Services set forth in 
Exhibit A to the Agreement to update the listed subcontractors utilized by Consultant; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in 
writing and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section -~■-••··:-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as 
follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO EXCEED one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses 
and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that 
Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential 
Agency expenditures under this Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. Exhibit A - SCOPE OF SERVICES is amended and restated to read in full as set 
forth in the attached Exhibit A. 

3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except 
as specifically set forth herein. 

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 1 of 3 



Date: -------

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY 5. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

Date: -------

HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. 

TIM L. BLODGETT, President and CEO 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 2 of 3 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Hometown Connection, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide the following consulting services 
based on public power best practices as requested by the Northern California Power Agency 
("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency*, its Members, SCPPA, or 
SCPPA members, including, but not limited to: 

• Organization assessment 
• Strategic planning 
• Customer services 
• Market research 
• Compensation studies 
• Management consulting 
• Training and Workshop services 

o Leadership Development 
o Governance Facilitation 

• Other services as requested 

*This agreement is not intended for use at NCPA's Lodi Energy Center facility. 

Subcontractors utilized by Consultant include: 
• Phyllis E. Currie 
• Susan Ryba 

First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 3 of 3 



MOL Tl-TASK CONSUL TING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. 

This Consulting Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 {"Agencyn) and Hometown Connections, Inc., a 
Delaware charitable nonstock corporation created by its Members, with its office located at 
12081 W. Alameda Pkwy, #464, Lakewood, CO 80228-2701 ("HCr' or "Consultant") {together 
sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of 7 J )<j / , 2019 ("Effective Date") in 
Roseville, California. ' ' 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the 
manner specified therein. 

1. 1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five 
{5) year from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is 
shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing 
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced 
to provide the Services set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel 
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may 
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southem 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's 
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The 
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed {"Requested 
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services 
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the 
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar 
days from the date of the Agency's issuance--otthe·-Purchase Order in which to 
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested 
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 1 of 15 



perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day 
period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested 
Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its 
Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($250,000.00) for the Services, 
which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in 
Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar 
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely 
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
per service/purchase order during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost 
for services performed and reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. 
Invoices shall contain the following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Services performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 

the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and 

• At Agency's option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, 
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries 
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each 
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, 
with supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely _responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 2 of 15 



2.4 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to 
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this 
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion ·of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested 
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any 
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Services. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss ·or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering au-motor vehicles and 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 3 of 15 



mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General LiabiHty/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally omitted 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured 
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation. of Coverage. Consultant shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.4.3 Hi.gher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant. 

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides 
services to Agency mernbers, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant 
to this Agreement, Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and 
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member. 

4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.5 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of 
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues 

---- - --they-are and remain covered by the policies referenced-in Section 4 during this 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreemenfbetween 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page4 of 15 



Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or 
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endOrsemenfs required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only 
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel 
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the 
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, 
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all 
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any 
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Consultant or its employees, agents, -or-subcontractors, as well as for the 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 5 of 15 



payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the Services, 
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Consultant's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant 
shall have no ·authority~ express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting'. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and 
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant 
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to 
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that 
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 6 of 15 



6.4 Certificati_on as to California En~rgy Commission. This agreement is not 
intended for use at NCPA's Lodi Energy Center. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7 .1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement.·. 

7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, ·shall .comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that 
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten {10) days prior written notice to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for 
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, 
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant 
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section 
9.1 hereof. 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by all the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by: Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall includet but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 7 of 15 



8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 
Consultant; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the 
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had 
completed the Services. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as.Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 

·-- - not include information that: (a) was already known tothe·Receiving Party 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 8 of 15 



or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose (''The Disclosing Party") confidential 
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted ·disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that 
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information, Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof}, if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 9 of 15 



subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

10.4 No lmpli~~ Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit · of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Consultant in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

10. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Monty 
Hanks, Chief Financial Officer and Assistant General Manager, or his designee, 
who shall act as the Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be 
directed to or through the representative. 

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VE N-2019~002 

Page 10 of 15 



Mr. Tim Blodgett, President and CEO 
Hometown Connections, Inc. 
12081 W. Alameda Pkwy., #464 
Lakewood, CO 80228-2701 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

10.9 Professional Seat Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. , 

10.10 Integration,; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

10.11.1 

10.11.2 

10.11.3 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. . 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties--SAall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page11of15 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 



Ill 

Ill 

10.11.4 

10.11.5 

10.11.6 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute 
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to 
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by 
Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Consultant's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

10.13 Counterparts- This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Consultant provide Services to an Agency member, SCCPA 
and/or a SCPPA member (collectively for the purposes of this section only 
"Member") pursuant to section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may 
be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested 
Services relating to such Member. 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between ES-VEN:-2019-002 

Page 12 of 15 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Afjeney. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. 

- -.......-..... · _ld_ t_·. DJ_ Date 7,/412./1 9 
,.... ___ if 

Approved ·aa to Fonn: 

Muii-Tuk Ccnsutttng ServrCII AQ189m8Rtbett.wen 
NDltlWn C.lfomla Powar Agen~ and tbn1tOwn Connedlollli, Inc. 
Ra-Id 2128l.»tlt __ 

E.S-VEN-Z)19-002 

Plgl13of15 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Hometown Connection, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide the following consulting services based 
on public power best practices as requested by the Northern California Power Agency 
("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency*, its Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA 
members, including, but not limited to: 

• Organization assessment 
• Strategic planning 
• Customer services 
• Market research 
• Compensation studies 
• Management consulting 
• Training and Workshop services 

o Leadership Development 
o Governance Facilitation 

• Other services as requested 

*This agreement is not intended for use at NCPA's Lodi Energy Center facility. 

Subcontractors utilized by Consultant include: 
• Phyllis E. Currie 
• Thomas Nanney 
• Paul H. Allen, P.E. 
• Susan Ryba 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/26/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 14 of 15 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount 
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of expenses will 
be quoted at the time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Hometown Connections, Inc. 
Rev'd 2/28/2019 

ES-VEN-2019-002 

Page 15 of 15 



PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Approval of the Third Amendment to the Lease Agreement with Consolidated 
Communications for the Disaster Recovery Center Facility 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General NIA 
Manager/CFO 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: General Services 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 239:21 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Third Amendment to DRC Lease Agreement 
October 28, 2021 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-105 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute the 
Third Amendment to the Lease Agreement extending the period for up to two years or April 30, 
2024, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the General Counsel. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2009 the NCPA Commission approved the lease of a 3,797 square foot facility from 
SureWest Telephone (now Consolidated Communications) as the backup site for our mission 
critical 24/7 Scheduling and Dispatch operations. This facility provides replicated hardware, 
software and data to provide seamless transfer of personnel to this site in case of emergency. 

In early 2021, Consolidated Communications approached NCPA with an offer to purchase the 
building. Since multiple buildings sit on the parcel sharing utilities ( electric, gas, water, 
wastewater, etc.), NCPA needed to engage with an architect firm to analyze the scope of work 
and provide an estimated cost to split the parcel, add independent utilities, an emergency 
generator, and impacts of other property attributes. With the current lease set to expire in April 
2022, staff requested a two-year extension to the current lease. This will allow sufficient time to 
analyze the financial impacts of a parcel split. If a parcel split is not financially feasible, it allows 
additional time to seek alternatives such as an ownership percentage of the same property or 
finding another building to purchase. 

The terms of this third amendment are largely unchanged with monthly base rent increasing 2% 
each year, the same as previous amendments. New language was added to terminate the 
lease upon sale of the building to NCPA. There will be no further options to extend the lease 
when it ends on April 30, 2024. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of the third amendment will cost $130,608 through April 2024. The lease is included in 
the current fiscal year budget with funds available in the General Services budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 6, 2021 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation 
above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RANDYS. HOWARD 
General Manager 
Attachments: 

Resolution 21-105 
- Third Amendment to DRC Lease Agreement 

SR: 239:21 



RESOLUTION 21-105 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

(reference Staff Report #239:21) 

WHEREAS, in 2009 the NCPA Commission approved the lease of a 3,797 square foot facility from 
SureWest Telephone (now Consolidated Communications) as the backup site for mission critical 24/7 
Scheduling and Dispatch operations; and 

WHEREAS, Consolidated Communications approached NCPA with an offer to purchase the building 
which requires NCPA additional time to hire an architect to analyze the scope of work, provide an estimated 
cost to split the parcel, add independent utilities, an emergency generator and impacts of other property 
attributes; and 

WHEREAS, the current lease set to expire in April 2022 requires NCPA to request a two-year extension 
to the current lease allowing sufficient time to analyze the financial impacts of a parcel split or if not financially 
feasible, allow additional time to seek other properties for purchase or lease; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks approval of the Third Amendment which will cost a total of $130,608 through 
the end of the lease; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
adopts authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute the Third Amendment to the Lease 
Agreement extending the period for up to two years or April 30, 2024, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the General Counsel. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2021, by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 

---~-Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



THIRD AMENDMENT TO STANDARD 
INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL MULTI- TENANT LEASE-GROSS 

(7664 Old Auburn Rd., Building A, Citrus Heights, California) 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO STANDARD INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL 
MULTI-TENANT LEASE - GROSS (this "Amendment"), dated solely for reference 
purposes as of June 28, 2021, is entered into by and between CONSOLIDATED 
COMMUNICATIONS OF CALIFORNIA COMP ANY (FKA SUREWEST 
TELEPHONE), a California corporation ("Lessor"), and NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
POWER AGENCY, a Californiajointpowers agency ("Lessee"). 

RECITALS 

A. Lessor and Lessee are parties to that certain Standard 
Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease-Gross, dated December 15, 2009 (the 
"Original Lease") which was previously amended by a certain First Amendment to the 
Lease dated as of April 6, 2015 (the "First Amendment") and the certain Second 
Amendment to the Lease dated as of Mach 29, 2019 (the "Second Amendment"). The 
Original Lease, First Amendment and Second Amendment are hereafter collectively 
referred to as the "Lease." Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined 
herein shall have the meaning or meanings given them in the Lease. 

B. Pursuant to the Lease, Lessor has leased to Lessee space agreed to contain 
3,800 rentable square feet (the "Premises") in the building located at 7664 Old Auburn 
Rd., Building A, Citrus Heights, California (the "Building"). 

C. The Lease by its terms shall expire on April 30, 2022 but Lessor is 
nonetheless prepared to extend the Term of the Lease, all on the following terms and 
conditions. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 

1. Extension. The Term of the Lease is hereby extended such that the Lease 
shall expire on April 30, 2024. Lessee shall have no further option to extend the Term of 
the Lease. 

00011096.4 



2. Base Rent. Base Rent shall continue in effect until April 30, 2022 under 
the terms of the second Amendment. From and after May 1, 2022, the schedule of Base 
Rent shall be as follows: 

Period Monthly Base Rent 

May 1, 2022 - April 30, 2023 $5,388.00 

May 1, 2023 -April 30, 2024 $5,496.00 

All such Base Rent shall be payable by Lessee in accordance with the terms of the 
Lease. Should Lessor and Lessee agree to a sale of the Building to Lessee, Lessee's 
obligation to pay Base Rent shall cease on the date the Building is sold to Lessee and the 
rent for any partial month shall be prorated for the number of days in the month that 
precede the date of sale. 

3. No Additional Security Deposit. No additional security deposit shall be 
required in connection with this Amendment. 

4. Termination. Either party may terminate the Lease by providing written 
notice of termination to the other party no less than three hundred and sixty-five (365) 
days written notice. In addition, this Lease shall terminate upon sale of the Building to 
Lessee. 

5. " Condition of the Premises. Lessee is in possession of the Premises and 
accepts the same "as is" without any agreements, representations, understandings or 
obligations on the part of Lessor to perform any alterations, repairs or improvements, 
except as expressly provided in the Lease (as amended by this Amendment). 

6. Inspection by a CASp in Accordance with Civil Code Section 1938. To 
Lessor's actual knowledge, the property being leased or rented pursuant to the Lease (as 
amended by this Amendment) has not undergone inspection by a Certified Access 
Specialist (CASp ). The foregoing verification is included in this Amendment solely for 
the purpose of complying with California Civil Code Section 193 8 and shall not in any 
manner affect Lessor's and Lessee's respective responsibilities for compliance with 
construction-related accessibility standards as provided under the Lease. 

7. OFAC Representations. Lessee represents and warrants to Lessor that (a) 
each individual executing this Amendment on behalf of Lessee is authorized to do so on 
behalf of Lessee and that Lessee is not, and the entities or individuals constituting Lessee 
or which may own or control Lessee or which may be owned or controlled by Lessee are 
not, (i)in violation of any laws relating to terrorism or money laundering, or (ii) among 
the individuals or entities identified on any list compiled pursuant to Executive Order 
13224 for the purpose of identifying suspected terrorists or on the most current list 
published by the U.S. Treasury Department Office of Foreign Assets Control at its 
official website, http://www.treas.gov/ofac/tllsdn.pdf or any replacement website or 
other replacement official publication of such list, and (b) Lessee shall not engage in any 
actions in violation of any such laws or associate with such individuals or entities during 
the Term of the Lease. Lessee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

00011096.4 2 



Lessor from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, risks, liabilities and 
expenses (including attorney's fees and costs) arising from or related to any breach of the 
foregoing representation and warranty. 

8. Lease Status. As a material inducement to Lessor to enter into this 
Amendment, Lessee warrants, represents and certifies to Lessor that: (a) to the best of 
Lessee's actual knowledge, Lessor is not in breach or default under the Lease, nor 
has any event occurred, which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or 
both, would constitute a breach of default by Lessor; (b) Lessor has fully performed 
all of Lessor's construction obligations (if any) and paid any Lessee improvement 
allowance (if any) owing to Lessee; (c) Lessee has accepted possession of the 
Premises; ( d) Lessee does not have any defenses or offsets to payment of rent and 
performance of its obligations under the Lease as and when same becomes due; ( e) 
no actions, whether voluntary or otherwise, are pending against Lessee under the 
bankruptcy laws of the United States or any state thereof; (f) Lessee has not assigned 
the Lease or subleased any portion of the Premises; and (g) the Lease, as amended 
by this Amendment, constitutes the complete agreement of Lessor and Lessee with 
respect to the Premises, and there are no other amendments, oral or written, to the 
Lease. 

9. Right of First Opportunity to Purchase: If, at any time, during the lease 
term, Lessor elects to sell the Building, Lessor shall notify Lessee of its intent to sell 
the building. Lessee shall have one hundred and twenty (120) days to come to mutually 
agreeable purchase terms with Lessor. If Lessee and Lessor can't come to mutually 
agreeable purchase terms within one hundred and twenty (120) days, then Lessor shall 
be free to openly market the Building for sale to other parties. 

10. Miscellaneous. 

(a) This Amendment and the attached exhibits, which are hereby 
incorporated into and made a part of this Amendment, set forth the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the matters set forth herein. There have been no 
additional oral or written representations or agreements. Under no circumstances 
shall Lessee be entitled to any Rent abatement, improvement allowance, leasehold 
improvements, or other work to the Premises, or any similar economic incentives 
that may have been provided Lessee in connection with entering into the Lease, unless 
specifically set forth in this Amendment. 

(b) Except as herein modified or amended, the provisions, 
conditions and terms of the Lease shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

( c) In the case of any inconsistency between the provisions of the 
Lease and this Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment shall govern and 
control. 

(d) Submission of this Amendment by Lessor is not an offer to 
enter into this Amendment but rather is a solicitation for such an offer by Lessee. 
Lessor shall not be bound by this Amendment until Lessor has executed and delivered 
the same to Lessee. 

00011096.4 3 



(e) Each signatory of this Amendment represents hereby that he or 
she has the authority to execute and deliver the same on behalf of the party hereto 
for which such signatory is acting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have duly executed this 
Amendment as of the day and year first written above 

LESSOR: 

CONSOLIDAIBD COMMUNICATIONS 
POWER OF CALIFORNIA COMPANY, 
California joint a California Corporation 

By: ------------

Print Name: -----------

Its: _____________ _ 

Date: _____________ _ 

00011096.4 4 

LESSEE: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY, a not-for-profit 
powers agency 

By: ------------

Print Name: __________ _ 

Its: ---------------

Date: --------------



Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: IBEW Local 1245 Memorandum of Understanding 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: Elizabeth Gonzalez METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Human Resources Manager NIA 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Human Resources 

This item is being considered in Closed Session. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency representatives: General 
Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human 
Resources Manager Elizabeth Gonzalez. Employee organization: IBEW Local 1245 
(Geothermal and Combustion Turbines). 

Contingent upon action taken during Closed Session Item 24, the Staff Report, 
Resolution and Memorandum of Understanding will be provided to the Full Commission 
in Open Session for final consideration and approval. 



PUBLIC AGE NCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Hydroelectric Employee Association (HEA) Memorandum of Understanding 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: Elizabeth Gonzalez METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Human Resources 

This item is being considered in Closed Session. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency representatives: General 
Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human 
Resources Manager Elizabeth Gonzalez. Employee organization: Hydroelectric 
Employees Association (Hydroelectric Facility). 

Contingent upon action taken during Closed Session Item 25, the Staff Report, 
Resolution and Memorandum of Understanding will be provided to the Full Commission 
in Open Session for final consideration and approval. 



FUBllC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: Monty Hanks 

Assistant General 
Manager/CFO 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Risk Management 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 240:21 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Competitive Pricing Process 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 
October 28, 2021 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 21-106 authorizing the General Manager to negotiate and bind policy year 
2022 property and liability coverages at a not-to-exceed amount of $5,700,000. This authority 
includes a not-to-exceed of $3,700,000 for property insurance and $2,000,000 for casualty 
insurance. 

BACKGROUND: 

Property Program 
Last year when the Agency embarked on the 2021 insurance marketing, it was a challenging 
renewal process. The property insurance market continued to harden and the Agency was 
faced with the catastrophic loss of the LEC turbine with insurers paying out $44 million for the 
claim. The Agency found itself in a difficult position where we had to increase our not-to-exceed 
authority three times. As a result, the property premium almost doubled from the prior year. 

Despite this setback, the Agency made a commitment to the Members to hit the 'reset' button 
on our approach to marketing our insurance program and included it in our 2021-2026 Strategic 
Plan to "Develop a strategy for long-term, cost-effective insurance coverage." The Agency 
terminated the agreement with our insurance broker, Aon Risk Solutions, and issued an RFP to 
five capable firms. The Agency selected Alliant Insurance Services to serve as our insurance 
brokerage consultant. 

Each insurance policy and the related insurance market conditions are reviewed before the 
renewal date and remarketed as requirements for qualified insurers experienced in underwriting 
the applicable insurance risk. Current property and liability insurance coverage expires on 
December 15 and December 31, 2021, respectively. NCPA met with Alliant in August 2021 to 
strategize how to approach the markets this year and decided on the following: 

1. Find new markets to bid on our program 
2. Focus on further strengthening our current market relationships 

a. When safe, schedule onsite visits, tours and in-person meetings 
b. Attend industry conferences 
c. Communicate frequently throughout the year 

3. Enhance program effectiveness 
o Focus on concurrency in terms and conditions 
o Remain open to evaluating alternative levels of insurance for NCPA 
o Appraise assets in 2022, as currently scheduled 

In September 2021, Alliant scheduled 13 marketing meetings with nine US and twelve London 
underwriters; both incumbent and new markets. Overall, the meetings went well but. feedback 
from our incumbents made it clear the market is still facing another year of premium increases 
due to market conditions and the continued recovery of the LEC loss. Most underwriters quoted 
that we would see a "meaningful" or "significant" rate increase in excess of 20% and some 
indicated to expect higher deductibles. In 2021, NCPA's property premium was $4.76 million. A 
rate increase of 20% would reflect a premium of $5.7 million- an increase of almost $1 million 
as shown in the table below. 

SR: 240:21 



Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 
October 28, 2021 
Page3 

Expiring Policy 

%of Full 

1 Program Premium 

AEGIS 39% $3,500,000 

AIG 20% $?,~~0,,09~ 
Swiss Re 10% $4,077,67q1 
Munich Re 10% ~S.3,~.?~,2-~~ -
Lloyds Syndicates 10% $5,_520,100 
Starr Tech 3.50% $6,443,196 

"EIM 3% $3,~00,000 
Helvetia 2.50% $5,417,500 _ -
~E§IS_Ll_~yds 2% $~,~~~,138-
Terrorism 

Net 

Premium 

$1,365,000 

,$1,4~0~000 

_$407,7~~. 
$355,5261 -
$552,0lOi 
$225,512'. 
$105,000 

_$}~~~3-~ 
- ?~~!2j} 

$49,960: 

Estimated Renewal 

Full Net 

Premium Premium 

~4,200,000' $1,638,000 

$8~94~,000 $1, 788!000, 

$4,8~_3,?94 $489,_~20 

_ .$~, 266, ~13. _$~2~, ~31 
$6,624,120 $662,412 

$7, 731,~35 $270,614 

$4,~09,009 $1_26,0_~ 
$6,501,000 _ $162,525 

$~!?~!~~? _ $~3~~~! 
$59,952• 

1000/4 $4, ~~S/~55: $5, 706,~46· 

New Market - FM Global 
Shortly after the last renewal, staff reached out to FM Global directly given their significant 
experience and strong reputation in the property insurance market. Founded in 1835, FM Global 
insures more than a third of the Fortune 1000 companies and total assets in excess of $25 
billion. FM Global takes an engineering-first approach helping their clients be resilient against 
natural disasters- and this philosophy matched our core principles. FM Global is guided by the 
belief that most losses are preventable and they will dig deep to understand each business' 
needs to help reduce risk. 

We marketed our program to them in 2018, but never understood why they did not provide our 
broker with a quote. We learned very quickly that they perform their own Loss Control analysis 
and do not rely on other firms reports when evaluating risk-meaning FM Global's robust 
underwriting process takes more time to complete than others in the industry. Since the 
marketing of NCPA's program starts just three months prior to expiration of our program, this 
was not enough time to coordinate site visits for FM Global engineers. In order to have FM 
Global quote, NCPA held weekly meetings beginning in February and eventually scheduled site 
visits in April, May and June. After FM Global completed its review, a meeting with the Plant 
Managers was held to review findings and recommendations. This was the critical last step 
prior to FM Global providing a quote. To put this in perspective, AEGIS, the current incumbent 
with a 39% share, scheduled virtual loss control visits. Feedback received from the Plant 
Managers .regarding the loss control process was more positive with the FM Global team than 
the AEGIS team. 

A comparison of key terms in the expiring program and FM Global's proposal is detailed in the 
table below: 

SR: 240:21 



Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 
October 28, 2021 
Page4 

Premium 

LECShare* 

Expiring Est. Renewal 

Stacked Program Stacked Program 

$4,755,455 $5,706,546 

$1,290,000 $1,548,000 

100% of Account 

FM Global FM Global FM Global 
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3** 

$3,402,621 $3,692,561 $4,094,315 

$923,020 $1,001,671 $1,403,425 

Policy Limit $325,000,000 $500,000,000 

Business Interruption 

Earth Movement 

Flood 

$50,000,000 $50,000,000 

Debris Removal 

Decontamination Costs 

Demolition 

Water Damage 

Deductibles 

Property 

LECTurbines 

Flood 

Wildfire 

Rate Lock 

$75,000,000 

$75,000,000 (aggregate) 

lesser of $25,000,000 or 25% of loss 

$5,000,000 

$25,000,000 

$5,000,000 

3.5% @ $Sm, 2.5% @ $2.Sm 

54% @ $1m, 40% @ $500k; Total $978k 

3.5% @ $Sm, 3% @ $2.Sm 

84% @ $2m, 10% @ $1m; Total $2.0lSm 

3.5% @ $Sm, 2.5% @ $2.Sm 

54% @ $1m, 40% @ $500k; Total $978k 

$10,000,000 

One Year 

*Assumes allocation based on percentage of AV 

**Option 3 inch~des Bl for LEC. Bl is purchased by Hydro & Geo 

$40,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 

$100,000,000 (per occurrence) 

Policy Limit 

Policy Limit 

Policy Limit 

Policy Limit 

$1,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,000,000 

Two Year 

As shown in the table, FM Global's proposal has several enhancements in critical areas such as 
providing a policy limit of $500 million versus $325 million and higher sublimits. In addition to 
the policy enhancements and reduced premium, FM Global provides other value-added 
services that help reduce NCPA risk, truly making this a partnership. Loss control visits and 
engineering services are included at no additional charge. For example, if staff engages in a 
large or complex project, the FM Global team of engineers are ready to assist with plan review 
services providing their input based on their experiences and data fact sheets, where 
applicable. To reflect their commitment to a long-term partnership, FM Global's proposal also 
includes a two-year rate lock. The property premium quoted in Option 2 is $1 million less than 
2021 premiums and $2 million less than what is estimated from the other markets for 2022. 
Coupled with a 2-year term, the Agency is set to save over $4 million. 

The remaining markets have been directed to provide their indications by the week of October 
18th . Unless they can competitively quote, match (or improve) policy coverages, and provide 
similar value-added services, staff plans to bind property coverages with FM Global. 

FM Global's proposal includes three options for the Agency to consider. Staff recommends 
selecting Option 2, keeping the Earth Movement at $75 million. While the likelihood of an 
earthquake is unknown, the policy limit is based on an aggregate total. Damage from one 
earthquake could use the majority, if not all, of the $40 million aggregate offered in Option 1 

SR: 240:21 



Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 
October 28, 2021 
Page 5 

very quickly, limiting available protection and increasing potential exposure if another 
earthquake impacts one of our other facilities during the same policy period. In addition, the 
LEC PPC declined adding Business Interruption insurance as provided in Option 3. If Option 2 
is selected, staff recommends a not-to-exceed authority of $3.7 million providing sufficient room 
to bind coverage. 

Casualty Program 
Alliant Insurance Services plans to target an aggressive marketing of the primary liability 
program to ensure best in class pricing, terms, and conditions. While Alliant is estimating an 
increase of 15% to the program (resulting in a new premium of around $1. 72 million), staff 
recommends establishing a not-to-exceed of $1.8 million to provide sufficient flexibility for the 
General Manager to bind coverage. 

Since LEC has no transmission lines and is not located in one of the CPUC's wildfire threat 
tiers, liability insurance is much easier and more cost effective to obtain on a separate policy. 
Last year, staff sought a not-to-exceed amount of $209,100 and the actual premium was 
$150,369. While Alliant is estimating an increase of 15% to the program (resulting in a new 
premium of around $173,000), the LEC PPC recommends establishing a not-to-exceed of 
$200,000 to provide sufficient flexibility for the General Manager to bind coverage. 

A comparison of the Casualty premiums is reflected in the table below. 

NCPA 
Coverage 2021 Premium 2022 Premium Expectations 

Auto $51,620 $60,000 

WC $232,185 $240,000 

AEGIS- $3SM x $200k $9991876 $:1,149,800 

EIM- $2SM x $35M $151,141 $188,900 

lronshore- $15M x $60M $65,650 $82,000 

TOTAL: $1,soo,4n $1,720,700 

LEC 

Coverage 2021 Premium 2022 Premium Expectations 

AEGIS- $35M x $200k 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The total cost of the policy year 2022 insurance programs is an estimated, not-to-exceed of 
$5,700,000. The Agency is estimated to save at least $2 million in property premiums over the 
expiring coverages in 2022 and over $4 million during the term. The Casualty program is 
expected to increase approximately 15%. Staff will return in January with a final report of 
coverages and premiums. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity wo_uld_no_lresult in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirecLcnange Jn the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 240:21 



Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2022 
October 28, 2021 
Page 6 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On October 11, 2021 the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and 
approved the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

On October 14, 2021 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation 
above for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

14~ lh 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 21-106 

SR: 240:21 



RESOLUTION 21-106 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING THE MAJOR INSURANCE RENEWALS 

FOR THE POLICY YEAR OF 2022 

(reference Staff Report #240:21) 

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (the Agency) is required by 
various of its contracts and agreements with its members and its generating and 

- transmission project participants to provide for property, casualty and other insurance to 
protect its interests therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency utilizes the insurance brokerage services of Alliant 
Insurance Services, Inc. to market and place the Agency's insurance programs. Each 
insurance policy and the related insurance market conditions are reviewed prior to the 
renewal date and remarketed as required to qualified insurers experienced in underwriting 
the applicable insurance risk; and 

WHEREAS, underwriters have provided premium indications for property and 
casualty programs; and 

WHEREAS, in order to negotiate coverage before expiration of the policies, this 
action grants the authority to the General Manager to bind coverages with not-to-exceed 
rates for the 2022 renewal premiums of $3,700,000 for property damage coverage which 
includes $1,001,671 for LEC and $2,000,000 for casualty coverage which includes 
$200,000 for LEC; and 

WHEREAS, LEC PPC reviewed and approved on October 11 th and the Facilities 
Committee reviewed and recommended on October 14th ; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable 
indirect change in the physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of 
Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is 
necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission of the Northern 
California Power Agency approves granting the authority to the General Manager to bind 
coverages at the proposed not-to-exceed rates for the 2022 renewal premiums of 
$3,700,000 for property coverage and $2,000,000 for casualty coverage. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of _____ _, 2021 
by the following vote on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 21-106 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



PlJBllC AG£NCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Overview of Budget Process and Approach- Request for Guidance of FY2023 
NCPA Operating Budget Directions 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: 

Division: 

Monty Hanks {lUA 
Assistant. General 
Manager/CFO 

Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 237:21 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Overview of Budget Process and Approach 
October 28, 2021 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Commission provide guidance and direct staff to prepare the FY2023 
Operating Budget in accordance with the accepted directions. 

BACKGROUND: 

As part of the budget process, staff is seeking Commission guidance of budget directions prior to 
budget preparation for the next fiscal year (FY2023). Staff discussed the budget review process 
and specific budget directions/targets with the Facilities Committee and Utility Directors at their 
meetings on October 6th and 14th , respectively. No changes were suggested by the Utility 
Directors. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Direction provided in this presentation will provide budget guidance for FY2023. Specific fiscal 
impact is not known at this time. Actual fiscal impact will be presented at the time of final 
approval of the budget, currently scheduled for April 2022. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~1 1-k.J\ 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Budget Directions FY2023 Presentation 

SR: 237:21 



A PU8llC AGENCV 

CPA 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Operating Budget for FY23 
Proposed Process and Recommendations 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

NCPA Strategic Plan 2021-2026 
• M ission 

• We provide cost effective wholesale power leading to a reliable and resilient carbon neutral 
supply, ratepayer focused power management, sustainable generating assets, energy-related 
services, and advocacy on behalf of public power consumers through joint action. 

• Vision 
• To be the premier provider of energy generation, energy-related services and support to our 

citizen owned members and customers. 

Strategic Priorities 

Attract 

Advocate 

Prepare 

Protect 

• Dev elop and retain professional. diverse. high quality staff 
and governance 

- -- -

•Maintain position as a credible. solution-oriented coalition builder 
and leader in state and federal legislative and regulatocy policy 
arenas 

• Develop and-maintain diverse generation resource portfolio in 
accordance with or exceeding renewable portfolio standard and 
capact,ty obligations . _ . _ ~- __ _ _ __ . 

•Prepare,. utilize and-build on the itrerigths and uniqiieaspeit:s and 
aggregation of joint powers agency structure to benefit NCPA's 
IJl~~-'l"._a - - - - -

• Develop and enhance strategies to control costs and minimme risks 
while optimizing the value of assets 

• Maintain financial stre~ grow new revenue to reduce member 
costs 

• Provide products and services that enhance the opportunity that 
NCPA Member utilities provide to their communitie& 



~CPA NO RT H E RN CAL I F O RN I A POWER AGENCY 

Proposed Budget Process 

• Continued approach to review draft budgets through Facilities, 

LEC and L&R Committees, UD Meetings, etc. 

• Budget is prepared on a project/program basis 

• Allocation for all allocated costs (Power Management, L&R, 
Judicial Action, Administrative & General and direct allocations) 

will use previously approved methods - no changes proposed at 
this time but will be reviewed internally 

• Continued focus on NCPA controllable costs and aligning budgets 

with expectations and previous actuals 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Issues Impacting FY2022/23 Budget 

• Inflation - CPI Index as of August 2021 was 5.3% 

• Impact to plant O&M budgets 

• Used as a baseline for increases to routine expenses 

• Plants 
• Hydro 

- McKays Cleanout +$4.4m 

• Reduced $3.3m in FY22 to $2.2m to keep budget flat to prior year 

• Forecast of $6.6m in FY23 & FY24 

- D/S +$3m 

• 2012 Hydro refunding should generate savings 

- Reservoir levels could impact generation and revenue 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Issues Impacting FY2022/23 Budget 

• Plants (cont.) 

• Geo 

- Projects +$2.Sm {minimum), could be higher with new projects or 
updated estimates after engineering studies 

- Fire system modernization 

- Maintenance reserve funding -$1.3m 

- Battery storage study/ activities 

• LEC 
- New projects identified 

- PG&E rate case 

- Hydrogen study/ activities 

• Transmission, energy & natural gas prices 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Issues Impacting FY2022/23 Budget 

• Insurance Premiums 

• Property- 20% increase, "'$lm+ 

• Casualty- 15% increase 
- Pressures to increase deductibles ($200k) without premium offset 

• Legal and Consulting 

• Increased use of legal contracts 

• Integration of new projects 



~CPA N O R T H E R N· C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Issues Impacting FY2022/23 Budget 

• PERS Pension 

• "'$200k increase 

• Normal cost and 15y UAL remains relatively flat from prior 
year 

• lOy UAL contribution "'$1.8m increase over 15y 

• OPEB 

• $1.Sm reduction (no UAL); funding normal cost 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Budget Recommendations for 2022/23 

• Plant costs 

• Debt service as scheduled plus trustee & administrative costs 

• Fuel as required for estimated plant operations 

• Regular operating & maintenance - target 5.3% increase 

• Maintenance/capital projects - reviewed with project 
participants {Facilities Committee & LEC Participants) 

• Transmission Costs 

• Based on the published rate {estimated during budget prep) 

CAISO Energy Load Costs 

• Forecasted Load x Dlap Price {based on forward curve) 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Budget Recommendations for 2022/23 

• Pass-throughs 
• Based on information from outside entities 

- Membership dues, subscriptions, transmission services, WREGIS, and 
other member services projects, etc. 

• Legal 
• Judicial action and all other legal expenses should be lower 

than previous years 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Budget Recommendations for 2022/23 

• Salaries 

• Target of "'$1m increase to include: 
- Unions negotiated general wage increases 

- Broad banding adjustments for merits, promotions, upgrades, etc. 

• PERS UAL 
- Include two budget versions to fund at lOy and lSy amortization 

• All other operating expenses 
• Target no more than s~3% increase from previous year base 

budget continuing to refine by aligning closer to actuals 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Budget Recommendations for 2022/23 

Questions? 



PUS t ;C AG ENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: NCPA's Emergency Declaration Discussion 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: 

Division: 

Jane Luckhardt 

General Counsel 

Executive Services 

Department: Legal 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

N/A 

Staff will provide a verbal update and discussion on NCPA's Existing Emergency 
Declaration regarding COVID-19 at the meeting. 



PUBllC f,GPlCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: Overview of FY 2021 Billing Settlement Process and Preliminary Results 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Informational 

FROM: 

Division: 

Monty Hanks · 

Assistant General 
Manager/CFO 

Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

N/A 

Staff will provide an overview and presentation at the meeting. 

..3 I 



A PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

FY2021 Annual 
Settlements Summary 
Preliminary Draft Results 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E NI C Y 

Timeline 

• FY2021 Annual Settlements Process 

• 9/10: Lockdown FY21 data 

• 9/17: Settlement team related work 

• 9/18 to 9/26: Accounting team related work 

• 9/27: Settlements creates preliminary draft 

• 10/1: Accounting internal review 

• 10/5: Final billing settlement draft 

• 10/6: Draft ready for Facilities review [informational] 

• 10/11: Draft ready for LEC PPC review [informational] 

• 10/28: Draft ready for Commission review [informational]_ 



~CPA NORTHERN CAL I FORN I A POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: Plant Budget 

Routine O & M Costs 
Variable 
Fixed 
Administration 

andatory Costs 
Routine O & M Cos.ts without Labor 
Labor 
Total Routine O & M Costs 

other Plant Costs 
Fuel 
GHG Allowance Costs 
CA ISO Charges (variable} 
CA ISO Energy Purchases (variable) 

Service 
Insurance 
Other Costs 
Generation Services Shared 
Administrative & Genera 
Power Management Allocated CoslJs 

Totaf O & M Costs 

Projects 
Operations & Maintenance 

Less: Third Party .Revenue 
ISO Energy Sates 
AnciNmy Services Sales 
GHG Allowance Cremts. 
Interest Income - Opera'liunli 
lnteres!: Income (NCPA) 
Interest Income (CDWR) 
Other lnCOffte 

FY 2019 
Budget 

$4.733,380 
3.443,662 

205,529 
298,336 

f7 
11 ~ 

l 

13.965,072 

33,,092,116 
0 

,68!) 

5.1113 .848 
26~079.652 

,25,976 
24,926 

368,963 
2.182,080 

,134 
83;,549,,627 

52,000 

Lodi Ene-rgy Cef'lte, 
Annual Operating Cost Summa;,y Report 

FY2019 
Actual 

$4,384,901 
4,310,567 

101 ,790 
394_!669 

9 ,191,927 
5 ,363,628 

14 ,555,555 

45 ,844;088 
0 

739,706 
4 ,382.275 

26,050,85 
614 ,129 
201,128 
325,938 

2 ,075,401 
1,322,317 

96,121 ,395 

41 ;020 
6~950 

1:,46'1,10 
1509·fJJ77 

st;630:,«12 

FY2020 
:But:l:ge!t 

$5,381~629 
646,090 
209,845 
:JilM,750 

B,~314 
5 ,:558:,3 10 

14 , 1'.00.624 

39,,51:3,, 147 
0 

583,969 
3 ~826:,263 

26, 054:,428 
674,1548 
12il ,792 
~ .783 

,792 
1.4393156 

;1m,ose-::-m2 

917,4.33 
2 ,9 19,HJa 

.4~.174 
5 ,332,7 15 
~'17 

u~: 
.DecemlJe!l", 2019 

$1.187.499 
1.700,222 

73,243 
891162 

3,150,126 
2.723.771 
5.873,897 

18.761.187 
0 

508,292 
916,441 

13.027,214 
306,404 
70,636 

199,71!5 
906,606 
719,.578 

41,,289.970 

l4) 

592,458 
748_..087 

1 .348,869 

Proposed 
FY2021 
Budget 

$5,436,362 
2 ,717,065 

211',377 
309,455 

8 ,674 ,259 
5 ,789,039 

14,463,298 

32,955.703 
,695,359 
780,84 

3 ,049,750 
26,023 ,835 

898,338 
1'06,546 
353,712 

2 ,317,930 
1,523,860 

91,1'69,172 

52.4 14,,938 76,972,68.1 72,8IJZ551 31,770,,378 55,590,251 
1.028,631 1,631 ,418 1,43'?,533 1,1133,934 1,71 1,986 

0 0 0 0 ...§~ .375 
.945 276,884 " ~94.5 18-7,534 94,945 

:2 .355 308,449 242.305 133,693 242,355 
.545 85,791 ~ .545 30,077 48.545 

D 5,797 0 530 0 
53.829.414 79,261 ;020• 1'4.,4121(929 33:~ 156.146 ~ 151,457 

,Budget 
lnef"e' 

(Decrease} 

$54,733 
70.975 

1.532 
4 ,705 

13 1,945 
23D.72.9 
3&Z674 

(6,557,444 
B,SHIS,-359 

(100,128) 

6, 

ii 

·s,5131 
p[D,593) 
223,6191!1 
(22,24115) 
13 .929-

.::.12 ,138 
~704 

1102.5 

0 
n 
D 
0 

Net Annual Budget Cost To 'Parlicipands $31,33:\,320 $18,349,452 S19.,97'388 SS,482.693 $27,923,503 -· .- ___ _ 



~CPA N O R T H E R N C A L I F O R N I A P O W E R A G E N C Y 

Draft Results: Plant Generation Performance 

Project 

Hydro 

Geo 

CT1 

CT2 (STIG) 

LEC 

Budget 
MWh 

508,507 

738,552 

15,641 

4,987 

1,316,988 

Actual 
MWh 

203,126 

759,263 

11,861 

44,799 

1,231,541 

Over/ (Under) 
Estimate 

(305,381) 

20,711 

(3,780) 

39,812 

(85,447) 



~CPA NO RT H ER N CAL I F O RN I A POWE R AGENCY 

Draft Results: Plant Revenue Performance 

Project 

Hydro 

Geo 

CT1 

CT2 (STIG) 

LEC 

Budget 
Net ISO Revenue 

Including Fuel 

$21.Sm 

$25.3m 

$281k 

$1.3m 

$20.3m 

Actual 
Net ISO Revenue 

Including Fuel 

Total 

$21.1m 

$30.Bm 

$2.3m 

$2.9m 

$29.7m 

Already Refunded 
or (Collected) thru 

Settlements 

($721k) 

$5.5m 

$2.0m 

$1.6m 

$9.4m 

$17.8m 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: Plant Summary -$1.5m Charge 

Project 

Hydro 

Geo 

CT1 

CT2 (STIG) 

LEC 

Collections 

$29.89 million 

$3.04 million 

$4.57 million 

$3.96 million 

$15.54 million 

Actual 

$30.12 million 

$3.83 million 

$4.54 million 

$4.43 million 

$16.0 million 

Refund/ (Deficit) 

$250k 

($799k) 

$31k 

($471k) 

($459k) 



~CPA NORTHERN CAL I FORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: Hydro Project 

O&M* 

Labor 

Projects 

Total Annual Budget Cost 

Less Revenues* 

Net Cost to Participants 

*(Costs)/Revenue Previously Trued Up During FY21 

Net Settlements Refund/(Collection) 

FY21 FY21 
FY21 Actual U nder/(Over) 

Approved Budget Costs/Revenues Budget 

$ 43,991,105 $ 44,157,994 $ (166,889) 

5,389,265 4,867,345 521,920 

4,880,000 4,929,916 (49,916) ,. 
54,260,370 53,955,255 305,115 

25,093,526 24,325,198 768,328 

29,166,844 29,630,057 (463,213) 

Already Refunded 
Budget Net Actual Net or (Collected) Thru 

ISO/Fuel Revenue ISO/Fuel Revenue ARB 

21,808,296 21,086,670 (721,626) 

258,413 



~CPA NORTHERN CAL I FORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: Geo Project 

0&M* 

Labor 

Projects 

Total Annual Budget Cost 

Less Revenues* 

Net Cost to Participants 

*(Costs)/Revenue Previously Trued Up During FY21 

Net Settlements Refund/(Collection) 

FY21 FY21 
FY21 Actual U nder/(Over) 

Approved Budget Costs/Revenues Budget 

$ 21,855,201 $ 23,459,911 $ (1,604,710) 

11,121,191 10,867,547 253,644 

2,585,000 3,983,721 (1,398,721) ,, 
35,561,392 38,311,178 (2,749,786) 

27,055,567 34,479,441 {7,423,874} 

8,505,825 3,831,738 4,674,087 

Already Refunded 
Budget Net Actual Net or (Collected) Thru 

ISO/Fuel Revenue ISO/Fuel Revenue ARB 

25,276,296 30,749,120 5,472,824 

(79~,737) 



,.,A.GcPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: CT1 Project 

O&M* 

Labor 

Projects 

Total Annual Budget Cost 

Less Revenues* 

Net Cost to Participants 

*(Costs)/Revenue Previously Trued Up During 

Net Settlements Refund/(Collection) 

FY21 FY21 
FY21 Actual U nder/(Over) 

Approved Budget Costs/Revenues Budget 

$ 3,023,351 $ 3,721,217 $ (697,866) 

1,193,226 1,239,019 (45,793) 

3,667,000 3,691,856 (24,856) ,. 
7,883,577 8,652,092 (768,515) 

1,311,400 4,109,207 {2,797,807) 

6,572,177 4,542,885 2,029,292 

Already Refunded 
Budget Net Actual Net or (Collected) Thru 

ISO/Fuel Revenue ISO/Fuel Revenue ARB 

280,535 2,278,537 1,998,002 

31,290 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: CT2 Project 

O&M* 

Labor 

Projects 

Total Annual Budget Cost 

Less Revenues* 

Net Cost to Participants 

*(Costs)/Revenue Previously Trued Up During f 

Net Settlements Refund/(Collection) 

FY21 FY21 
FY21 Actual U nder/(Over) 

Approved Budget Costs/Revenues Budget 

$ 7,072,079 $ 9,938,053 $ (2,865,974) 

880,502 828,546 51,956 

36,500 8,272 28,228 

7,989,081 10,774,871 (2,785,790) 

2,371,273 6,340,736 (3,969,463) 

5,617,808 4,434,135 1,183,673 

Already Refunded 
Budget Net Actual Net or (Collected) Thru 

ISO/Fuel Revenue ISO/Fuel Revenue ARB 

1,275,405 2,930,533 (1,655,128) 

(471,455} 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: LEC Project 

O&M* 

Labor 

Projects 

Total Annual Budget Cost 

Less Revenues* 

Net Cost to Participants 

*(Costs)/Revenue Previously Trued Up During FY21 

Net Settlements Refund/(Collection) 

FY21 FY21 
FY21 Actual U nder/(Over) 

Approved Budget Costs/Revenues Budget 

$ 85,380,130 $ 90,790,629 $ (5,410,499) 

5,789,039 5,753,140 35,899 

2,905,789 2,209,035 696,754 

94,074,958 98,752,803 (4,677,845) 

66,151,457 79,801,819_ (13,650,362) 

27,923,501 18,950,985 8,972,516 

Already Refunded 
Budget Net Actual Net or (Collected) Thru 

ISO/Fuel Revenue ISO/Fuel Revenue ARB 

20,283,959 29,715,946 9,431,987 

(459,471) 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Draft Results: Other -$1.9m Refund 

• Management Services 

• Legislative & Regulatory $307k 

• Judicial Action $41k 

• Power Management ($73k) 

• Risk Mgmt., Settlements, Integrated Systems Support $443k 

• Pass-through Costs $417k 

• Third Party Revenues 

• Interest income $642k 

• PM revenues (excess of budget) $220k 



~CPA NORTHERN CAL I FORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Encumbrances - Totaling $5.36m 

• Hydro - $327k 

• Union Dam Maintenance, vehicle, and misc. invoices received after June 30 

• Geo - $330k 

• Emergency Eyewash Stations*, SCADA system upgrade, Geo Facility upgrade, Plant 2 Diesel 
Tank and vehicle 

• CTl - $2.27m 

• Diesel Starter project and legal 

• LEC - $155k 

• Legal and misc. invoices received after June 30 

Admin Services - $772k 

• GP Software upgrade**, EV Station** and misc invoices received after June 30 

IS - $487k 

• Med impact activity {consulting and cyber security software and protections) 

Travel, Training, Legal, and Contingency - $1.04m 

*Capital projects carried over from FY20 

**Capital project carried over from FY19 



~CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Next Steps 

• Calendar 
• 11/3 - Present final to Facilities Committee 

• 11/15 - Present final to LEC PPC 

• 11/18 - Present final to UDs 

• 12/2 - Commission approval 



PUB ll C AGEN CY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 21-25 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Closed Session 

FROM: 

Division: 

Jane Luckhardt 

General Counsel 

Executive Services 

Department: Legal 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 

21-25' 

21. Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: In 
Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company, Debtors; United States 
Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California, Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead Case) and 19-
30089 DM. 

22. Anticipated Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) - two (2) cases. 

23. Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1 ): Name of case: 
Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and City of Santa 
Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C. 

24. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 .6: Agency representatives: General 
Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human 
Resources Manager Elizabeth Gonzalez. Employee organization: IBEW Local 1245 
(Geothermal and Combustion Turbines). 

25. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency representatives: General 
Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human 
Resources Manager Elizabeth Gonzalez. Employee organization: Hydroelectric Employees 
Association (Hydroelectric Facility). 


	Redding_Commission_Meeting_Flyer
	Draft_Minutes_10012021
	Item_5_100621_Fac_Comm_Meeting_Minutes_&101421_Special_Fac_Comm_Meeting_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report_SEP_30_2021
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Month_Ended_SEP_30_2021
	Item_12_NCPA_Surplus_Property_Disposal
	Item_13_2022_Committee_Meeting_Calendar
	Item_14_Annual_Financial_Statements_Audit_Report_Years_Ended_JUN_30_2020_2021
	Item_15_Black_&_Veatch_Corp_Second_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTPSA
	Item_16_ACCO_Engineered_Systems_Inc_First_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTGSA
	Item_17_CH2M_Hill_Engineers_Inc_First_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTPSA
	Item_18_Evoqua_Water_Technologies_LLC_First_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTGSA
	Item_19_Hometown_Connections_Inc_First_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTCSA
	Item_20_Consolidated_Communications_Lease_Agreement_NCPA_DRC_Third_Amendment
	Item_26_Closed Session_IBEW_Local_1245_MOU
	Item_27_Closed_Session_HEA_MOU
	Item_28_Major_Insurance_Renewals_Policy_Yr._2022
	Item_29_FY2023_Overview_of_Budget_Process_and_Approach
	Item_30_NCPA_Emergency_Declaration__Discussion
	Item_31_ Billing_Settlement_Process_&_Prelim_Results_FY2021
	Items_21_thru_25_Closed_Session

